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Dear Shareholders,

It has not been easy but our country has overcome this very
tough time and has effectively curbed the spread of the
Coronavirus in early 2020. Our Company remains strong
amidst the tight supply of medical consumables and PPE
during this very trying period. We have set up a four tier
system — “Wuhan frontline + designated hospitals in each
region + fever clinics and community precaution +
centralised and guaranteed supply of medical materials” to
combat COVID-19 showing how social capital hospitals can
support the entire medical system. On behalf of the Board,
| would like to express my most sincere gratitude to all
shareholders for their support, the management and staff’s
for their hardwork and dedication, our partners for their trust
and confidence and the very strong support from all parties

fighting this virus with us.

In 2019, the business scale of the company’s hospitals
increased steadily. The annual outpatient volume of our
member hospitals increased by 6.8% Year-on-Year whilst the
1.7%.
perspective of operating figures, the annual medical service
revenue of our member hospitals has achieved RMB6.87
billion,

volume of inpatients increased by From the

representing an increase of 2.8% compared with
year 2018. Excluding the impacts of Yanhua Hospital and
contribution of the Runneng Hospitals, the medical hospital
revenue of our in-network hospitals recorded Year-on-Year
increase of more than 10%.
performance of the Group's existing hospitals during the
reporting period, the impact of the Yan Hua IOT agreement

Due to the satisfactory

dispute was mitigated. Therefore, the Group’s net profit in
2019 was RMB401 million, showing a Year-on-Year decrease
of only 8.9%.
contribution to the Group in the Reporting Period and 2018,
the Group's 2019 net profit was RMB397 million,
representing an increase of 10.5% Year-on-Year.

After deducting Yanhua Hospital's after-tax
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During the Reporting Period, we focused on the three
strategic goals of "leading the scale, improving capabilities,
and focusing on innovation”. We aimed at strengthening our
support to the medical institutes, adding value, and
enhancing the management efficiency of the Company.
Under the framework of China Resources Group’'s 6S
strategic management system, and together with China
Resources Medical’'s many years of hospital operation and
management experience, we have designed and built our
characterised operation and management system and
applied in all there levels — "“Company-Hospital-Discipline”.
In order to improve the patient’'s medical experience, we
launched our “RUNXIN" patient service system during the
year which effectively improved our service quality. We also
strengthened the EHSQ system and continued to enhance
quality and reduce risks. We created our own info-tech
platform, and tailored our centralised “Medical + Internet
“strategy. In October 2019, Guangzhou 999 Brain Hospital
successfully obtained the Internet hospital license and has
online medical consultation, which

since launched our

further facilitates remote consultation for our patients.

In the final stage of state-owned enterprise hospital reform,
we continue to choose suitable SOE owned hospitals as
investment targets. In December 2019, China Resources
Medical and the Sinotruk Group entered into a formal
agreement on the reform and restructuring of the Jinan
Zhong Qi
establishment of the corresponding joint venture, China

Hospital in Shandong. Upon completion of

Resources Medical will own 75% of its shares with an
injection of cash into the joint venture. The Sinotruk Group
shall hold the
injection. The Company manages the assets, personnel and
business operation of the hospital as a whole and will

remaining 25% interest with an asset

implement the plan to complete the for-profit reform of the
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital. In addition to mergers with and
acquisitions of other hospitals, we are also looking into the
development of specialty services through industry research
and strategic analysis. We have worked out our strategy in
this regard and will continue to incubate internally and at the
same time actively seeking merger and acquisition targets.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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Under the current national medical reform policies, hospitals’
medical
capabilities will become more important for the medical
institutes to succeed in the new situation. In 2020, we will

technology standards and refined management

take the strategy of “strengthening specialists and branding”
as a strategic goal, and will continue to look for high-quality
for-profit general hospitals and SOE owned hospitals as our
acquisition targets; promote internal disciplines and build
specialist hospital
businesses in the Greater Bay Area; and cooperate with

groups; focus on fostering new
fellow companies in obtaining new projects. At the same
empower discipline with great potentials
construction within the system and cultivate discipline

time, we will

clusters; strengthen further in the patient service system
and build a better brand name; improve operation efficiency
in various disciplines; enhance our quality control system
and build reputation in medical QC. In addition, we will
continue to innovate “Medical + Internet” products and
implement net connected medical operations; innovate
hospital management products to increase revenue and
efficiency; implement tiered diagnosis and treatment

entrances to build our brand name in the community.

2020
demonstrated our

is a special year. China Resources Medical has

medical technology standards and
management capabilities in fighting the Coronavirus. In the
future, we will continue to do our best to provide patients
We believe that by

medical

with quality medical services.

simultaneously enhancing our services and
reach a new height, and we shall

continue to fulfill our commitment to the community and our

technology, we will

shareholders.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
Chairman
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Business Review

The development of healthcare sector in China has become
unprecedentedly important following China’s latest stage of
medical reform having been efficiently launched for ten
years and with the government’'s implementation of the
"Healthy China" strategy. The aging population, changes in
the disease spectrum, infectious diseases and
people’s pursuit of a healthy life are driving the demand for
medical services.

seasonal

In late 2019, the Standing Committee of the National
People's Congress approved and issued the “Basic Medical
and Health Promotion Law"” covering different aspects of the
field of healthcare. Based on the experience of national
reform of the medical system, it has based on the principle
of “maintaining basic coverage, enhancing capabilities of
lower-level medical institutions and facilitating the system
and mechanism” to make a top-to-bottom and systemic
arrangement, rights of medical
institutions operated by social capital under the new law.
the National Health
Commission, together with ten government authorities
the National Development and Reform
the Ministry of Finance and the National
issued the

and ensure various

During the Reporting Period,
including
Commission,
Healthcare Security Administration,
“Opinions on Promoting the Sustainable and Regulated
Development of Social Entities’ Participation in Healthcare

jointly

Industry” to encourage the development of medical
institutions by social capital with the government support,
simplifying the procedures in seeking government approval
for industry's entry, clarifying the complementary
mechanism between public and private medical institutions,
and further promoting the sustainable and healthy
development of private medical institutions. Medical
institutions as established by social capital shall play an
important role in China’s medical and healthcare service
system, and have great potential in business development.
At the same time, a series of measures of the medical
reform such as the elimination of mark-ups on drugs and
consumables, the
Centralised Drugs Procurement Policy, and the reform of
medical insurance payment methods have created rooms for

implementation of national-level

price adjustment of medical services, and increased the
incentive for hospitals to further refine its operation and
management.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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During the Reporting Period, we continued to strengthen
the management and efficiency improvement of our medical
institutions, further improved the operation management
system at group
management ability. We have also established the
disciplinary operation system to help enhance the specialty
ability; and built a patient service system to improve the
patients’ experience. Our Environmental-Health-Safety-
Quality system has also been strengthened in order to
reduce various risks and improve our medical services. We

level, and enhanced the refined

also are also continuously exploring innovative models to
achieve our “group medical internet”
principle. Based on the above measures, the operating
efficiency and profitability of in-network hospitals have made
satisfactory improvement.

level services +

As of December 31, 2019, the Group managed and
operated a total of 107 medical institutions in 10 provinces
and cities in China. The number of outpatient and inpatient
visits of our in-network hospitals increased by 6.8% to
8,780,915 times and 1.7% to 252,368 times, respectively;
but the average outpatient spending per visit recorded a
Year-on-Year decrease of 4.5%, while the average inpatient
spending per visit increased by 1.5%. The total revenue
from medical business of our in-network hospitals grew by
2.8% to approximately RMB6.869 billion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

List of Medical Institutions under the
Group’s Management and Operation

rEEEELEBREBIME

Beijing" bmm 1 5 11 28 45
Hebei A e = 1 = = 1
Shandong®? = = 2 1 1 4
Shanxit" I = 1 = = 1
Jiangsu ST ER = 1 — — 1
Anhui® ZEO 1 6 16 6 29
Hubei il 2 = 3 14 19
Guangdong" BEERM 1 1 — 2 4
Guangxi™ B = 1 1 — 2
Hainan ysqEd] S — — 1 1
Total ks 5 18 32 52 107

Notes: Gk

(1 During the Reporting Period, the Group has begun in providing hospital (1) WMERARN AEBEERBEEERERREHRBERE

management services to the Run Neng Hospitals. R o
2) Pursuant to the hospital operation and management agreement which was  (2) BEAEEERZRUBBELZEERAA KSR

entered into between the Group, Tai'an Taishan Urban and Rural
Development Limited Company* (RZHEILMBEREEER2AA) and
Tai'an City High Speed Rail New District Development Centre* (&M=
TR BRI R L) dated March 21, 2018, the Group provides operation
and management services to Tai'an City Hospital for a cooperation term of
20 years. Tai'an City Hospital has commenced operation in April 2020.

ZhEEHMEERERP O AR BHAR2018F
SA2AZBRELERERHZ  AEEBARTM L
Bl tEE REERY - AEHRA20F - L
T EEFE B 2020 4 A HIA4E -

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operating data for 2019

BEEENWESN

20195 & EE B

For-profit hospitals & Fl £ Bz 385 88.4% 889,035 14,734 407,483 297,784 15,788 721,055

Sponsored hospitals £ ER 6,689 711% 3,843,220 176,602 1,161,357 2,266,261 50,936 3,478,554

10T hospitals IOTE bt 3,148 75.0% 4,048,660 61,032 1581933 1,043,594 43,667 2,669,194

Subtotal At 10,222 73.0% 8780915 252,368 3,150,773 3,607,639 110,391 6,868,803
Operating data for 2018 2018 F & EE B

For-profit hospital(s) &M1&k 395 85.7% 887,322 13612 422,737 256,484 14584 693,805
Sponsored hospitals i Efr 6,174 785% 2,550,240 159,810 768,970 1,942,637 27,506 2,739,113
IOT hospitals IOT&fk 3,811 82.0% 4,784,859 74626 1,899,780 1,293,625 57,496 3,250,901
Subtotal NGt 10,380 80.1% 8,222,421 248,048 3,091,487 3,492,746 99,586 6,683,819
Notes: i
During the Reporting Period: RREBN :
(1) For-profit hospitals include: Jian Gong Hospital and 999 Clinic (which was (1) BRGEREE  BEER - = AMPE (2019FF
excluded in 2019). BIE) °
(2) Sponsored hospitals include: Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital, Huaikuang (2) BEEREEE: BRZDNKEIER FRERE
Hospital Group, Xukuang Hospital, Wugang Hospital Group and the Run B - RrEsEi - R S E ROHeE KB (K2019
Neng Hospitals (which were newly added in 2019). EFE) o
3) IOT Hospitals include: Yan Hua Hospital Group (which was excluded in  (3) IOTE BT B2 4% « BALEITEE (201956 D) - RHEE
2019), Jing Mei Hospital Group, Mentougou Hospital, Mentougou freEe® - PISEBRE - MEBRP Bl - MEER
Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital, Mentougou Hospital for Women and FIRE - IBEEEEER - IBERE-ERT - R
Children, Shunyi District Konggang Hospital, the Second Hospital of Shunyi TEME=FLER - IS SRR F(EIOTIRZED
District and Baoding Third Center Hospital. Please refer to the section EREMBLHARE(BEREEIREST — Hx
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Supplementary BRI ER o
Information” in this report for details of update of Yan Hua IOT
Agreement during the Reporting Period.
(4) OT Hospital(s) include: Tai'an City Hospital (which has commenced operation  (4) OTERBIE : FLmiLER (B1R2020F4/EA

in April 2020).

B -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

Financial data

Financial data for 2019

Revenue from goods Bm Rk REYE

B 7% S 1%
2019 B 7 B 1%

and services 2,115,320 744,132 426,112 907,101 37,975 = =
Cost of sales and HE RRBHEA

Services (1,353,029) (551,995) (173,902) (607,856) (19,276) = =
Other income Hit A 16,445 1,655 = 10,206 4,584 - -
Other gains and HinfERER

losses (790) (790) = = = = =
Selling and distribution ~ EERHEER

expenses (15,750) (2,412) (4,389) (8,924) (25) = =
Administrative THER

expenses (99,115) (65,043) (6,715) (20,298) (7,059) = =
Other expenses HEEBR (1,961) (836) - - (1,125) - -
Segment results ABEE 661,120 124711 241,106 280,229 15,074 - -
Headquarters BHELER

operating

expenses (138,704) = = = = (138,704) =
Other profit or loss Hipgs 31,179 - - - - - 31,179
Finance costs HHBER (16,942) - - - - - (16,942)
Share of profit of joint ~ fE(GA% /B4

ventures/ RAEFIE

associates 4,646 = = = = = 4,646
Income tax FiEHt (140,665) = = - = = (140,665)
Net profit or loss B 400,634 124,711 241,106 280,229 15,074 (138,704) (121,782)
Revenue from BREFHAE

medical

business ot 6,868,803 721,055 3,478 554 2,669,194 = = =

Note: Among the revenue from medical business, only the portion of for-profit i : BEEXBKRAF EFEFMEERNEZEEBKA

hospitals amounting to about RMB721 million has been included in the
consolidated revenue of the Group, whilst the medical business revenue of
the sponsored hospitals and IOT/OT Hospitals in aggregate of about
RMB6.148 billion was not included in the Group’'s consolidated revenue
and only the management fee income and supply chain business income
derived from the latter two types of hospitals were included in the

Group's consolidated revenue.

WARB7T2VETTEMAAEE Z 46t - EHR
B AIOT/OTER W EREBRAGTHARE
61.48 L AR AR LB S Gl - B RIRNIR
MEERNEEERHREXTREMATKES
Brias o

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWED N

Financial data for 2018 2018 F B B & 15

Revenue from goods R kRS NS

and services 2,059,478 737,688 300,496 990,765 30,629 - -
Cost of sales and HERRBKA

services (1,302,800) (553,608) (76,644) (652,189) (20,359) - -
Other income Hi A 15,663 1,916 = 13,747 = = =
Other gains and HithmREE

losses (1,472) (1,472) — — — — —
Selling and distribution ~ #EERAHER

expenses (19,888) (3,407) (2,314) (14,088) (79) - -
Administrative THER

expenses (103,980) (74,136) (7,395) (19,495) (2,954) - -
Other expenses HtBH (239) (103) - — (136) - —
Segment results FREE 646,762 106,878 214,143 318,740 7,001 — —
Headquarters BNELER

operating

expenses (99,562) - — - = (99,562) -
Other profit or loss HivEs 47,297 — — — — — 47,297
Finance costs BBER (7,701) = = - = = (7,701)
Share of profit of joint ~ JEEA% /B

ventures/ RAEFIE

associates 2147 = = = = = 2,147
Income tax FrigHt (149,387) = - - = = (149,387)
Net profit or loss BRE 439,556 106,878 214,143 318,740 7,001 (99,562) (107,644)

Revenue from medical ~ EBFEHUAD
business™e® 6,683,819 693,805 2,739,113 3,250,901 = = =

Note: Among the revenue from medical business, only the portion of for-profit 7 : EBEEBWASR EHLFMERNEEEBIA

hospitals amounting to about RMB694 million has been included in the PARECABITEMNARNEES GHES - MBHE
consolidated revenue of the Group, whilst the medical business revenue BB MIOT/OTER M BB XK WARTHARE
of the sponsored hospitals and I0T/OT hospitals in aggregate of about 59.90B T AR M AR EE A GH s - ERIRREM
RMB5.99 billion was not included in the Group’s consolidated revenue and HERMNEEE REEEXBNEMNAREERS O
only the management fee income and supply chain business income Yz e

derived from the latter two types of hospitals were included in the

Group’s consolidated revenue.

EHBRERARLAT — T 5% 15
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

Segment Results

During the Reporting Period, the Group fully implemented
the strategy of improving quality and enhancing efficiency,
and as a result the performance of our network hospitals
increased steadily which effectively offset the adverse
effects brought by the Yan Hua IOT Agreement dispute.
Nevertheless, the aggregated results of all segments in
2019 amounted to about RMB661 million, which increased
by approximately 2.2% as compared with the previous year.
Excluding the results contribution of the Yan Hua Hospital
Group to the Group during the corresponding periods, the
aggregate results of all segments in 2019 and the same
period of the prior year was RMB657 million and RMB540
million, respectively, representing a growth of 21.7%.

Segment Results — For-Profit Hospitals

As the site of our 999 Clinic in Shenzhen has been included
in the local demolition plan, its operation is temporarily
suspended. Therefore, in 2019, Jian Gong Hospital was the
only for-profit hospital of the Group. During the Reporting
Period, due to the increase in both the number of patients
and average spending per patient of Jian Gong Hospital, the
medical business revenue of the for-profit hospital segment
increased by 3.9% Year-on-Year, and the segment results
recorded an increase of 16.7% and reached approximately
RMB125 million, and profit margin of such segment also
increased to 17.3% from 15.4% in the prior year.

DEREE

HREHAN AEE2AEHRREIEBRE
WEEBREERTRST  BESEE T &
LIOTH & FAET RO TR FE  M2019F
BEBOIBFBETFHOAARKE61ET
1}3$*L$Htti*§£72 2% ° AAFFR AR {E ¥ b
HERTERSBEHASENEE TR
20195 B EB Y HBIHEEH RARKGE.57E
T EFAARBSAVETL BHER
21.7% °

DEREA — ENMNER

A= NPIZ B R R AL PRI A & 2 30 B4 &)
AEHIFBHE - HEEDEF - 20194
KEEBZZHEERS I EDRSEZ B -
WEHAN AEZERZEARRREE
& AR BB o 5B Y B R S AU A A L 3
£3.9% @ D HFHASRERLIER16.7%E
AR 26187 MO EBFBERITUEF
#)15.4% B E17.3% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWED N

Revenue from medical BEREBBA

business 721,055 693,805 27,250 3.9%
General healthcare services #1& BB RS 64,033 46,014 18,019 39.2%
Third-party supply chain FE=HHERE

service fees fR 7% & 23,077 25,081 (2,004) -8.0%
GPO gross profit GPOEFI 41,155 42,592 (1,437) -3.4%
Profit contribution FEERAE 128,265 113,687 14,578 12.8%
Operating expenses and BEEBERREM

other profit or loss Ba (3,554) (6,809) 3,255 -47.8%
Segment results DEEE 124,711 106,878 17,833 16.7%
Segment profit margin 2 ER A E =R 17.3% 15.4% 1.9ppt

Segment Results — Sponsored Hospitals

During the Reporting Period, the Group has begun in
providing hospital management services to the Run Neng
Hospitals. In 2019, the Run Neng Hospitals recorded about
RMB432 million medical business revenue, which led to a
27.0% Year-on-Year increase in medical business revenue of
such segment to RMB3.479 billion. Although the
contribution of the Run Neng Hospitals was limited during
the period, its revenue growth has driven the segment
profit to increase by 12.6% Year-on-Year to RMB241 million.
The profit margin of such segment (excluding the Run Neng
Hospitals) increased slightly to 7.9% from 7.8% of the prior
year. Capital injection to the joint venture platform holding
the entire interests in the Run Neng Hospitals has been
completed in late December 2019 and
consolidated to the financial statements of the Group since
then.

its has been

DEBEE — B EER

WEBRAN  AEECHRBEHERBRIEMR
B E RS c 2019F AL R BIRER T4
ARBANEBEILIHBEEBRA @ TERH
B D AR B R EB W AR IER27.0%
EARKE34.79ET - BE B RERAHA
EELEFNBHER  BHEEEREERAN
EBRAEBRTSZOENFERLLE R
126%EARE24118TL - T2 B ZERR
WO HANBERA—F27.8%MAZE
7.9% - BB EERER 2 FAa R AFER2019
F12ATHETREEL A FRANER 2T
]k o

EHBRERARLAT — T 5%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

Revenue from medical BEREBBA®

business Mt 3,478,554 2,739,113 739,441 27.0%
Hospital management BEREERBEE

services fees 134,029 101,475 32,554 32.1%
Third-party supply chain F=HitEE

service fees R & 100,164 117,618 (17,454) -14.8%
GPO gross profit GPOEF| 19,365 8,162 11,203 137.3%
Profit contribution FMBEMES 253,558 227,255 26,303 11.6%
Operating expenses and BEERAREM

other profit or loss B (12,452) (13,112) 660 -5.0%
Segment results DEEE 241,106 214,143 26,963 12.6%
Segment profit margin 2 B F = 6.9% 7.8% -0.9ppt

Note: In 2019, the revenue from sponsored hospitals’ medical business included & @ 2019F BB 2 BEEXBEAT S RED A
the contribution of the Run Neng Hospitals during the Reporting Period WHERERNBREEBRANARELI2ET -
which amounted to approximately RMB432 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Segment Results — IOT/OT Hospitals

Due to adverse effects of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement
dispute, the medical business revenue as well as the results
of the IOT/OT Hospitals segment of the year decreased by
17.9% and 12.1%, respectively. Excluding the impacts of
the Yan Hua Hospital Group on such segment during the
corresponding two periods, as a result of the Group's

improvement in its operation efficiency and quality, the
medical business revenue of the I0T/OT Hospital segment
has increased by 11.0% Year-on-Year to RMB2.67 billion,
and the segment results increased significantly by 30.3%
from RMB212 million in 2018 to RMB276 million.

EEENWES N
DEPELE — IOT/OTEPR
FRIZHIOTHEFZZE ' IOT/OTE
ﬁ% MEBEEKIKAMTES ;“;UTMT
7.9%F12.1% ° 40 [7) BF +0 Bk 48 B8 W ER HA F
ﬂntft SR EEEZ D HNTE  EAEEIR
BB R SR ZI4E T - IOT/OT E& B 2 2B Y 28

BEBEWARLIERETI1.0%EARK26.7
(=S /\*B%ii@tézmsiaﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%zmﬁ
TR T30.3% % ARK2.76(57T

Revenue from medical BREKEBAD
business!" 2,669,194 3,250,901 (581,707) =-17.9%
Hospital management BERERRBEE
services fees 98,600 98,926 (326) —0.3%
Third-party supply chain F=FHERE
service fees R & 91,610 109,268 (17,658) -16.2%
GPO gross profit GPOERH| 142,572 154,192 (11,620) -7.5%
Profit contribution FEERA 332,782 362,386 (29,604) -8.2%
Operating expenses and EEBEAREM
other profit or loss B (52,553) (43,646) (8,907) 20.4%
Segment results? 2 EBRE? 280,229 318,740 (38,511) -12.1%
Segment profit margin 2 B FE = 10.5% 9.8% 0.7ppt
Notes: e
(1 The revenue from medical business of the IOT/OT Hospital segment did (1) IOT/OTEPT2019F B & E ISR A R & R BB

not include the contribution of the Yan Hua Hospital Group in 2019. In
2018, Yan Hua Hospital's contribution in medical business revenue of such
segment was RMB846 million.

(2) The results of the IOT/OT Hospital segment in 2019 included the result
contribution of the Yan Hua Hospital Group, which amounted to
approximately RMB4.2 million, whilst in 2018, Yan Hua Hospital's result
contribution was approximately RMB107 million.

B BEEBRA - MZEEZENR2018F 8
B & BB A AR ¥E8.4618 T

EEY9 |

(2) IOT/OTEP2019F D MBEEFT SR Bt EE 2 %
EEBHAREL20E T fﬁ;i%k%ﬁ%zmsﬁ,ﬁluaag
CERZEZETBOARE1.07E

EHBRERARLAT — T 5%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWED N

Segment Results — Other derived
businesses

During the year, the segment results of the other derived
businesses of the Group was approximately RMB15.07
million and was around 2 times when compared with the
prior year. Such growth was mainly due to the increase in
income generated from consultation business, physician
companies and clinic network.

Headquarters operating expenses

The total operating expenses of the headquarters amounted
to approximately RMB139 million in 2019 (2018: RMB99.56
million), accounting for 58.4% of the total administrative
expenses of the Group (2018: 48.9%) and such an increase
was mainly due to the increase in staff costs.

Other profit or loss

During the Reporting Period, other profit or loss of the
Group totaled approximately RMB31.18 million (2018:
RMB47.30 million), which was mainly due to the decrease in
fair value of the shares of UMP Healthcare Holdings as held
by the Group.

Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, the total finance costs of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB16.94 million (2018:
RMB7.7 million), which was mainly due to the increase in
the balance of outstanding bank loan.

Income tax expenses

During the Reporting Period,
expenses amounted to RMB141 million (2018: RMB149
million). The effective income tax rate of the Group's
recurring business was 26.0% (2018: 25.4%).

the Group’s income tax

Net profit

The Group's originally in-network hospitals delivered
satisfactory performance during the Reporting Period, which
effectively offset the adverse impact of the Yan Hua IOT
Agreement dispute. In 2019, the Group’'s net profit was
about RMB401 million, representing a decrease of 8.9%
Year-on-Year.

HMpTE R

DEBEE —

FAREE 2 AMITERB D BAMBOR/A

R#&1,5078 70 4958 —ﬁszH FE
A BHABAEFERA  BEEEMZFET
HET 2 EBIERTEL ©
IM_.\I:IBEAEFH
20195 » BN BELEAATHARE1.39E

7T (2018 : /\Eﬂé}a%a%ﬁ) CEAER R
BT E B AHANGS8.4% (20184
48.9%) » HIBINT B R HNATLRA EFHFT
g(o

HitiE &

HREHA  AEBZEMBRATHARE
3, 1188 T (20184 : AR¥4,730& 7T) 1EFE
MTHATEHRAEEMBE B ABEKER
BEERNAREBEZ TR

MBER

MEBA - $%@Zﬂﬂ%%§ﬁﬁé§+%@)\§ﬁ%
1,694& 7T (20185 : ARMET7087T) »

R A R SR 1T B SRR RS D AR o
FrEHRER

REHAN AEECAEHRERAARE
1.41187C (20185 : ARM1.491870) A%

EEEUEBNBRMBHT X B26.0%
(20184 : 25.4%) °

A
AEEETEREBRERSHANEERR
BIE - BT RE T HAIOTIHHF RO Y
€ - 20195 AKEFFIBAARELONE
7L R TF£8.9% ©
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By excluding the result (after tax) contributed by Yan Hua
Hospital to the Group during the Reporting Period and in
2018 which respectively amounted to RMB3.14 million and
RMB79.84 million, the Group's net profit for 2019 was
RMB397 million (2018: RMB360 million),

increase of 10.5% Year-on-Year.

representing an

Sponsorship Rights, Service Contracts
and Goodwill

Pursuant to IAS 38, an intangible asset shall be regarded by
the entity as having an indefinite useful life when, based on
an analysis of all of the relevant factors,
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is
expected to generate net cash inflows for the entity.

there is no

The Group has considered the following factors and
concluded that the Group has the ability to renew the
service contracts of Xukuang Hospital,
Group and 999 Brain Hospital (“Service Contracts”, and each
of the hospitals, the *“Sponsored Hospital”) through the
sponsorship rights, and it is appropriate to classify the
sponsorship rights and service contracts as the intangible
assets of the Group of infinite useful life:

Huaikuang Hospital

1. The sponsors of the Sponsored Hospitals are
subsidiaries of the Group;

2. The rights and obligations of the sponsors as stipulated
in the articles of associations of each Sponsored
Hospitals include,
operation status and financial reports of the Sponsored
Hospitals, (i) recommending members to the executive
committee which
Sponsored Hospitals; and

among others, (i) access to the

is the highest authority of the

3. According to the articles of association of Xukuang
Hospital, Huaikuang Hospital Group, 999 Brain Hospital
and also Wugang Hospital,
committee comprises three members recommended by
the sponsor, one member elected by the employees
and one member who is the chairman of the labor
union of the relevant hospital.

right in

Contracts with the relevant resolution to be approved

by simple majority vote of the executive committee.

their respective executive

Executive committee

has the absolute renewal of the Service

EEEFWED N
NP R R B R 2018 F FAL B B Y A S

M EEER BRI ABARK314E T
NMAR®7,9848 7T - BN &£ B 201945 F A
HAEARE397E T (20184F « ARS3.60
87T) » AER10.5% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWED N

Management of the Company performed
reviews of sponsorship rights,
goodwill annually or more frequently if events or changes in
indicated a potential impairment. The
recoverable amounts of the abovementioned sponsorship
rights,
based on the fair value under income approach less costs of
disposal. These calculations required the use of estimates
and professional judgements,
Company involved an external valuer in these calculations.
Based on the management’'s assessment, no impairment

impairment
service contracts and

circumstances

service contracts and goodwill were determined

and management of the

was required on the abovementioned sponsorship rights and
service contracts and goodwill as at December 31, 2019.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals, Investments in and
Receivables from Joint Venture(s) and
Subsequent Plans for Material Capital
Investments

Save for the capital respect of the
involvement in the proposed reform of Jing Mei Hospital
Group and further investments in Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital
(details of which has been disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated December 4, 2019), the Directors
confirmed that, as at the date of this report, there are
currently no concrete plans to acquire any material
investment or capital assets other than those conducted in
the Group’s ordinary course of business.

requirements in

Investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings

UMP Healthcare Holdings, listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange, is mainly engaged in providing healthcare
solutions and services in Hong Kong. Details of investment
in UMP Healthcare Holdings have been disclosed in the
Company's annual reports in prior years. Pursuant to the
relevant accounting standards, the Company has categorized
the investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings as financial
assets at FVTPL. As at December 31, 2019, the fair value of
the investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings was
approximately RMB113 million.

ARRIEREYRE REaRLEEE
TRERSE  —RMs8FET WEEW
EMNIER B EBUB RN RERIE
MBS EIBEMMETT o LR IE - RS
AR EEENTIE S5 HIEERREET
EENAABERELERKANGTEMS - &£
REBNGTESZREMBEHNE A2

EEEEFIIBEEMETHBTE - BRI
EEEHTE B ZE2019%F128318 Lt £
g REEREKEEETTIRRME -

EARE - WENHE RRE
ERARNREREREE QTR
BREABETBREANEREE

B%ﬁ% R2ERHERER RN EURE
BERESRBR T —PRA(FBHENEAF
EIHﬂ%ZO19¢12H4EIZ“¢)Zﬁﬁ?%ﬁZK
N BERER  RARE BRI EERE
WETMERKRERELREE  ERBAEE
HEXEBETERIN

HBSBBEENRE

BMEBBEEREBMIFMER EMHAA
BOREBREREBEZEEHRNRE - @
Rt BB EBNREMESN D ERNRTILA]
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Future Outlook

In 2020, our goal is to strengthen the specialties and
establish our brand. We shall focus on developing
specialties with scale, good brand name and great potential.
Our “"RUNXIN" patient service system for patients shall be
further enhanced to gain prestige in respect of patient
experiences of the China Resources Medical network. We
shall launch innovative “Medical + Internet” products to
provide easy access to our medical services. Meanwhile, we
shall further improve our quality control system for our
hospitals and operation systems for various disciplines,
continue to assist the mentioned goal of specialties
development, especially for our big six discipline clusters:
i.e. orthopedic, encephalopathy, rehabilitation, oncology,
cardiology and gastroenterology, and provide patients with
high-quality and efficient medical services.

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financing

We adopt a prudent treasury management policy to maintain
a solid and healthy financial position. The Group funds its
operations principally from cash generated from its
operations and also bank facilities. Its cash requirements
relate primarily to operating activities, business expansion,
repayment of liabilities as they become due, capital
expenditures, interest and dividend payments.

As at December 31, 2019, the Group’s consolidated bank
balances and cash, certificate of deposit and bank financial
products amounted to approximately RMB2.276 billion in
total (December 31, 2018: approximately RMB1.9 billion)
which were primarily in RMB. The Company, as borrower,
obtained a revolving term loan facility of HK$800 million (or
its equivalent in U.S. dollar or Renminbi) on March 27, 2017
(the “Revolving Term Loan”), and obtained a fixed term
loan with credit line of HK$1.2 billion (or its equivalent U.S.
dollar or Renminbi) on June 21, 2018 (the “Fixed Term
Loan”), from a bank in Hong Kong (the “Bank”). On
September 19, 2019, the Company, as borrower, entered
into a supplemental facility letter (“Facility Letter”) with the
Bank and pursuant to which the Revolving Term Loan
together with the Fixed Term Loan have been revised to a
revolving term loan in an aggregate amount of HK$3 billion
or its equivalent in U.S. dollar or Renminbi with no fixed
term until further notice by the Bank. As at December 31,
2019, the Group had interest-bearing bank borrowings of
HK$646 million (equivalent to approximately RMB578 million)
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2018: HK$560 million
approximately RMB491 million)), and unutilised bank facilities
with a credit line of HK$2.354 billion (equivalent to
approximately RMB2.109 billion). As at December 31, 2019,
all the Group’s bank borrowings carried interests at floating
rates and would be due within one year. As at December
31, 2019, the Group’'s amounts payable to the sponsored

(December 31, (equivalent to

hospitals of the Group amounted to RMB256 million
(December 31, 2018: RMB255 million).

As at December 31,
liabilities (excluding payables to hospitals sponsored by the
Group) divided by total assets, the Group’s gearing ratio
was 7.3% (2018: 6.7%).

2019, on the basis of interest-bearing

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates
and Other Risks

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in
foreign currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk, mainly pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in
the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against RMB.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management
manages the currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considers
hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

We are also exposed to risk of talent shortage, so we have
been taking an active approach to attract, train and retain
sufficient qualified doctors, management personnel and other
medical staff members, otherwise the business of hospitals
affiliated to the Group would be affected to some degree.
Please refer to the paragraph headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Employees and Remuneration
Policy” for those measures mentioned above.

We also recognise that our relationship with patients and
partners is key to the resilient development of the Group.
We strive to provide qualified services and medical staffs
with extensive experiences to our patients. By leveraging on
sophisticated medical skills and equipment, we try our best
to cater to our patients’ needs for medical treatments. We
also cooperate with our partners to achieve the sustainable
development of our business.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWED N

Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2019, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities or guarantees that would have a
material impact on the financial position or operations of the
Group.

Pledge of Assets

As of December 31, 2019, the Group did not have any
material pledge of assets.

Subsequent Events
The outbreak of novel coronavirus

The outbreak of novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") continues
to spread throughout China and to countries across the
world. The Group will monitor the developments of
COVID-19 situation closely, assess and react actively to its
impacts on the financial position and operating results of the
Group. Up to the date of this report, the assessment is still
in progress. Given the dynamic nature of these
circumstances, the related impact on our Group’'s
consolidated results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition could not be reasonably estimated at this stage
and will be reflected in the Group's 2020 interim and annual
financial statements.

About the Yan Hua IOT Agreement Dispute

Please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report — the
Yan Hua 10T Agreement Dispute” to this report for further
details.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As of December 31, 2019, the Group had a total of 1,178
fulltime employees (December 31, 2018: 1,120 employees).
For FY2019, the staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration
in the form of salaries and other benefits) was
approximately RMB355 million (FY2018: RMB316 million).

The Group ensured that the remuneration packages of
employees remain competitive and the remuneration level of
its employees was determined on the basis of performance
with reference to the profitability of the Group, industry
remuneration standards and market conditions within the
general framework of the Group's remuneration system. The
Group has also adopted the Share Option Scheme and the
Share Award Scheme so as to provide incentives or rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2019.

Principal Business

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is mainly engaged in the provision of general healthcare
services, hospital management and consulting services as
well as derived business from hospital group in Mainland
China. Details of the principal activities of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties being faced by the
Group, as well as the business outlook of the Group
(including key performance indicators of future development
of the Group) are provided in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 25 of this annual report.
Relevant discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance for
the year ended December 31, 2019 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the paragraph headed “Financial Review"” under the section
headed "“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
23 to 25 of this annual report.
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Significant events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report, if any, are set out in the paragraph
headed “Subsequent Events” on page 25 of this annual
report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes the
importance of good environmental In  this
connection, the Group has strictly adopted and implemented
policies and procedures to conduct environmental protection
work on a standard which is not less stringent than the
prevailing environmental laws and regulations of the PRC.
We believe that we were in compliance with all relevant
PRC laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
in all material respects during the year ended December 31,
2019 and as at the date of this Directors’ Report. No
environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative
sanctions were reported to our management.

stewardship.

The Group has formulated the "“Hazardous Substances
Safety Management Plan” ({(EEWELZ2EE5E])) and the
“Medical Waste Management System” ((E&ZEEEY)E 124l
J£)) for all hospitals according to the relevant requirements
of the "“Environmental Protection Law of the People's
Republic of China” ({#E ARKEMEIRIEREZL)). The above
systems focus on the management of hazardous substances
(containing hazardous chemicals and medical waste),
including storage location, container labelling, protection,
leakage handling and disposal in use. Hospitals conduct
supervisions and inspections mainly on storage and labelling
on hazardous chemicals and conclude the analysis results on
a quarterly basis. As required by the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation” ({1 % A R F1
HE 49 &JR%E)), the Group formulated the “Optimization
System of Resource Decision” ((ERRKREBEHIE)), which
focuses on the management of resource decision-making
process and specifies the requirements on the quality,
reasonable allocation and use of newly procured resources.
The Group monitors the outcome of such decision upon its
implementation, and assesses the effectiveness and safety
by using relevant information and makes further decision so
as to ensure the effective implementation of the above
policies.
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Meanwhile, the Group has formulated the “Utilities Safety
Management Plan” ({RR&EELEEEFE])), “Safety and
Protection Management Plan” ((ZZ2F#EEE:TE)) and
“Medical Technology Safety Management Plan” (& & : i
Z2%EH:4El)), and passed the “Facility Safety
Management Plan” ((RiEZZ2EE5TE])) to ensure the
effective implementation of the above plans. The Group has
formulated the “Radiation Safety Management Plan” ({5t
Z2E1#51El)) and “Radiation Emergency Plan” (#8571 &=
FEZE)) for all hospitals, which focuses on the management
of radiation safety and specifies the requirements on all
radiation equipment, protection and radiation-related waste
treatment. Every year, qualified testing and rating agencies
are engaged to monitor the radiation level of all radiological
equipment and workplaces in the hospitals. Moreover, the
hospitals carry out drills against radiation accidents and
evaluate and conclude the responsiveness.

Details of the Group’s environmental, social and governance
("ESG") measures will be covered in the Group’s ESG
report, which will be published no later than three months
after the publication of this annual report, on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief as at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable
manner while balancing the interests of our
stakeholders including our Substantial Shareholders,
employees, patients, customers, suppliers, business partners

and the community.

various

An account of the Group’s relationship with its Substantial
Shareholders is included in the "Interests of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares"” set out on pages 45 to 46 of this annual report.
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The Group considers its employees as the key to
sustainable business growth. We are committed to providing
all employees a safe and harassment-free working
environment with equal opportunities in relation to
employment, remuneration management, training and career
development. incorporated

Corporate Responsibility Policy and Employment Policy.

This commitment is in our
Workplace safety is a priority of the Group that, with due
awareness of all employees throughout the year, the Group
was able to maintain a high standard of health and safety
measures in all company activities. We have in place a fair
and effective performance appraisal system and incentive
bonus schemes that are designed to motivate and reward
employees at all levels, which helps to deliver their best
performance and achieve business performance targets. For
talent acquisition and continuous development, the Group
offers training programs as well as leadership and talent
development programs for talents with different academic
backgrounds. The Group believes that direct and effective
communication is essential for good partnership built-up
between management and employees. The Group holds
regular
Company developments and obtain their feedbacks and

meetings and forums to brief employees on
suggestions.
As a patient-oriented healthcare services provider, we

patients as one of the most important
stakeholders. We are committed to serving our patients to

consider

the best of our ability and continually enhancing the level of
service excellence. The Group has embraced new media
platforms as an effective communication channel with our
patients to collect feedbacks and help us identify areas for
further improvement.

The Group is committed to upholding the highest ethical and
professional standards when dealing with suppliers and
contractors. To integrate CSR principles throughout our GPO
business, the Group has implemented the Group Purchasing
Policy and Principles, and a Supplier Code of Conduct to
facilitate a common means whereby we can better
communicate with our business partners regarding their
compliance with local regulations governing labor, health and
safety, and the environment. In order to have a better and
close monitoring of supplier performance, our procurement
department conduct supplier performance review annually
targeting our major suppliers and contractors, and will
communicate with the suppliers that have unsatisfactory
rating for rectification or improvements.
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Results and Final Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 106 to 107
of this annual report.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of 10 HK cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB9.0 cents) per Share for
FY2019 (FY2018: final dividend: 12 HK cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB10.2 cents)). The proposed final dividend
will be payable to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, June b5,
2020. Based on the number of Shares in issue of the
Company as of December 31, 2019, the total amount of
final dividends is approximately HK$130 million. Subject to
the approval by Shareholders at the annual general meeting
to be held on Thursday, May 28, 2020, it is expected that
the final dividend will be distributed on or before Tuesday,
June 16, 2020.

The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Dividend Policy

According to the dividend policy of the Group, subject to
compliance with applicable rules and regulations (including
Cayman Islands laws) and the articles of association of the
Company, pay dividend to the
Shareholders. The Company intends to share its profits with
Shareholders in the form of annual dividend and the
remaining net profits will be used for
development and operations.

the Company will

the Group's

The Company’s ability to pay dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the general financial condition of the
Group, the Group's current and future operations, liquidity
position and capital requirement of the Group as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries. The
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws and articles
of association of the Company.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time
to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2019 are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 111 of
this annual report.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or
Shareholders subject to the provisions of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

dividends to

As at December 31, 2019, the Company’s share premium
amounted to RMB5,992,888,000 (as at December 31, 2018:
RMB6,180,977,000), subject to a solvency test, is available
for distribution to the Shareholders.

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year ended December 31, 2019 are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five

financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 260 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

BHEREBERDE KRR  TMREGHEE
fa] 5 7 BRI (S E R E 2 AR o

ANEBEFHE2019F12 8318 [FFE MR
BN ANFERFEE G RERMEEIT7 -

ANEBEHE2019F 12831 B I FENFE
HEFBHENAERB1INBENGAERE
EES B

REMEBESEME - T —EREDE(KE
) EARERBERAMALARESER
AR 2R - WA RRERREX S
KA BT - BRE NN B EEBBIZT
BEREE - BIARRFZBDEE R AER
RS D IR S o

R-ZBE—NE+-_A=+—BARRZKH
%8 A AR #5,992,888,0007T (A =& — )\
F+-A=+—H: AR%6,180,977,000
JT) R B E T e B BIRT 9 R FARER ©

HE2019F12A31MBILFEAEERYE -
BB KRR EREBFIBEH N AT REGE
WERMTEED o

AEBRBERLEAVBRFENEEARE
E -BEVMFZEEEaME (FxagEXR
MIFHKR) N ANFHRE2608 - tHBL T
BREERMBRRO &5 -

EHERERERAA



Details of the borrowings of the Group for the year ended
2019 are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

December 31,

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended December 31,
2019.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 44% (2018: 48.7%) of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 19.6% (2018: 16.5%) of the total sales.
Purchases from the Group’'s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 20.9% (2018: 25.0%)
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 8.1% (2018:
12.3%) of the total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the
Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any direct or indirect interest in
the five largest customers or the five largest suppliers of
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2019.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, each Director shall
be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in the execution of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Group has
taken out insurance policies against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceeding.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2019
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report are as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Yan

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Han Yuewei (Resigned on October 15, 2019)
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President)

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with one another.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and
Senior Management

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 88 to
98 of this annual report.

Disclosure of Information of Directors
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
October 15, 2019, Mr. Han Yuewei resigned as executive
Director, the Authorised Representative of the Company and
a member of the Remuneration Committee on October 15,
2019, and Mr. Cheng Libing was appointed as the
Authorised Representative of the Company and Ms. Ren
Yuan was appointed as the member of Remuneration
Committee on even date. Save as disclosed above, there
are no other changes to the Directors’ information as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the

Listing Rules.

Service Contracts and Letters of
Appointment of the Directors
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Wu Ting Yuk Anthony #A7E B

Letter of appointment & {E (K

Song Qing K& Service contract R A

Cheng Libing A% £ Service contract [RIE4 A
Ren Yuan fFi& Service contract fRT A
Fu Yanjun i #38 Service contract fRTS4 A
Wang Yan & Service contract lRI5& A
Kwong Kwok Kong BBEL ¢ Letter of appointment & {E X
Chiu Kam Hing Kathy # &8  Letter of appointment & {E (K

Lee Kar Chung Felix =R Letter of appointment & 1T [k

August 7, 2018 to December 31, 2020
20188 A7HE2020%F12H31H

August 7, 2018 to December 31, 2020
201848 A7HE2020%12A31H

February 1, 2016 to December 31, 2020
201642 A1HE2020%12431H

October 12, 2019 to October 11, 2022
201910128 =20229F 10411 H
October 12, 2019 to October 11, 2022
2019104128 E2022410A118
November 25, 2016 to November 24, 2021
2016411 A25HZ2021F11 H24H
September 1, 2013 to December 31, 2020
2013F9H1HE2020F12H31H

March 23, 2018 to December 31, 2020
201843 A23AE2020F12A31H

August 21, 2015 to December 31, 2020
20158 A21HZ2020F 12 A31H
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Each of the abovementioned service agreements/letters of
appointment can be terminated by either party giving to the
other party not less than one month notice in writing.

Pursuant to the letters of appointment, each of Mr. Wu Ting
Yuk Anthony, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, Mr. Lee Kar Chung
Felix and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy is entitled to an annual
Director's fee of HK$1,000,000, HK$500,000, RMB240,000
and HK$300,000 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has
entered into or intends to enter into a service contract with
any member of our Group which is not terminable by the
employer within one year without payment of compensation
(other than the statutory compensation).

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and remuneration
payable to members of senior management by band are set
out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

The remuneration of the Directors is subject to review of
the Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board,
such remuneration is determined by taking into account of
the relevant Director’'s experience, responsibilities, workload
and time commitment to the Group and the operating
results of the Group and comparable market statistics.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company believes that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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Director’s Interests in Competing
Businesses

As of December 31, 2019, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates had engaged in or had any
interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or its Associated Corporations

As of December 31, 2019, the interests/short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company in
the Shares,
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
interests or

underlying Shares and debentures of the

(including short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules were as follows:
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Long Positions in Shares of the
Company

Wu Ting Yuk, Beneficial owner Long position
Anthony
HAETB BEHEAA "R
Song Qing Beneficial owner Long position
KB BEHEAA "R
Cheng Libing Beneficial owner Long position
DAV EnEEA o=y
Ren Yuan Beneficial owner Long position
Fi= EnEEA "R
Fu Yanjun Beneficial owner Long position
NE:3:: BEHEAA "R

Note: This includes also the long positions of the Award Shares, which have been
declared to be granted by the Company to the corresponding Directors on
August 31,
1,500,000 Shares to Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony; 400,000 Shares to each
of Mr. Song Qing and Mr. Cheng Libing; 300,000 Shares to each of Ms.

Ren Yuan and Ms. Fu Yanjun).

2018 (the corresponding number of Award Shares are:

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2019, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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1,500,000 0.12
400,000 0.03
1,774,746 0.14
300,000 0.02
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The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option
Scheme as of September 30, 2013.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
incentivize or reward the Eligible Participants (defined
below) for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, the Board
may grant options to any full-time or part-time
consultants or potential
consultants, executives or officers (including executive,

employees, employees,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at its sole
discretion and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or will contribute to our
Group (collectively “Eligible Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from September 30, 2013,
after which time no further option will be granted but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force, and effective in all other respects
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto and other rights as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme and options granted prior
thereto but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 83,376,300 Shares, being 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date (with the over-allotment option fully
exercised), which is also the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme as
at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue.

An offer of a grant shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant for a period of 14 days from
the date of offer, provided that no such offer shall be
open for acceptance after the expiry of the effective
period of the Share Option Scheme. An option shall be
deemed as has been granted to (subject to certain
restrictions in the Share Option Scheme), and accepted
by, the Eligible Participant (the “Grantee”) and taken
effect upon the issuance of an exercise notice, if the
Company receives a copy of the offer document
(including the document for the acceptance of share
option) duly signed by the grantee (the "“Offer
Document”), together with a remittance in favor of our
Company in the amount of HK$1.00 in consideration
for the granting of the option on or before the last
date for acceptance. The remittance is not refundable
under any circumstances and shall be deemed as
payment of part of the exercise price. Once accepted,
the option is taken as granted from the date of offer
to the relevant Grantee.
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China

There is no general requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised. The period during which an option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (the "“Option Period”) shall be the
period of time to be notified by our Board to each
Grantee as determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that such period shall not exceed 10
years from the commencement date of the vesting
period as stated in the respective Grantee's Offer
Document.

The price per share for subscription by a Grantee
pursuant to the exercise of share options (the
"Exercise Price”) shall be determined by the Board, but
in any event shall not be lower than the highest of:

()  the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
on the date an option is offered (the "Offer
Date”);

(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

(ii)  the nominal value of the Shares.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, no share
option had been granted, exercised, expired, cancelled
or lapsed and there is no outstanding share option
under the Share Option Scheme. The remaining life of
the Share Option Scheme is 3 years and 6 months.

Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme as a
means to recognise the contribution of and provide
including
Directors and senior management, employed experts and
core employees of the Group. The Share Award Scheme

shall

incentives for the key management personnel

be valid and effective for a period of 10 vyears
commencing from July 7, 2014 (the “Adoption Date"”) on
which the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme and is
administrated by the Board and the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme.

In order to provide more flexibility in the administration and
implementation of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
resolved on May 25, 2015 to make amendments to the
terms of the Share Award Scheme and the scheme rules,
having retrospective effect from the Adoption Date, to the
effect that the Board may, from time to time, in its absolute
discretion, determine if the Award Shares shall be granted
to a Selected Participant with or without payment of a price
per Award Share payable by the Selected Participant (the
"Grant Price"”) which shall be notified by the Board to each
Selected Participant. In determining whether the Selected
Participant shall pay a Grant Price for the Award Shares and
the amount of the Grant Price, as the case may be, the
Board shall take into consideration matters, including but not
limited to the Selected Participant’'s position, experience,
performance and contribution to the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or associated entities.

years of service,
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The Board also resolved on August 31, 2018 to make
further amendments to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme to the effect that the maximum number of the
Award Shares, which have been and to be awarded by the
Board throughout the duration of the scheme, to be revised
to 5% of the total
Company as at the date of the abovementioned resolution

number of issued Shares of the
and the maximum number of the Award Shares to each of
the Selected Participants to be revised to 1% of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of the

abovementioned resolution.

The Board will implement the Share Award Scheme in
accordance with the scheme rules. The Company shall
comply with the relevant Listing Rules when granting the
Award Shares.

Since the Adoption Date of Share Award Scheme and up to
December 31, 2019, an aggregate of 32,212,216 Award
Shares have been granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme subject to certain vesting criteria and conditions.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and
Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As of December 31, 2019, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or
were deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Interest of a controlled

China Resources Company

Limited corporation
REEFERA A 2L EER
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Interest of a controlled
Group, Inc. corporation
“ZABemEE ZiEEEER
L: Long position
Notes:
1. (1) 463,681,516 of these shares are directly held by CRH (Medical) Limited.

CRH (Medical) Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited. China Resources Healthcare Group Limited is wholly
owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited. CRH (Healthcare) Limited is wholly
owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited is wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited.
CRC Bluesky Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Inc. is wholly
owned by China Resources Company Limited; (2) 10,638,000 of these
shares are directly held by Commotra Company Limited which is wholly
owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.

2. Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. is the sole shareholder of Mitsubishi
UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation whilst the latter is directly holding the
entire shareholding interest in Carol Australia Holdings Pty Limited. Carol
Australia Holdings Pty Limited (via its wholly-owned subsidiary First State
Investment Managers (Asia) Limited) held the entire interest in First State
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited and the latter directly held 128,601,000
Shares (representing 9.92% of the issued shares of the Company).

474,319,516(L)" 36.58
128,601,000(L)@ 0.2
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2019, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Save as the details as set out in the paragraphs headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or its Associated Corporations”, “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, at no time during the year ended December 31,
2019 has any right to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate been granted to Directors or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, and
none of any such right has been exercised by them; and
none of the Company and any of its subsidiaries has been a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

Br a3 58 & b 0 A2019%12A8318 ' &
EWENBAMNALT(TEEARARAIES
EEITHAB)RARQE [R5 KRN R
HEAREN AR AIREFF KIS KHI5336
BAEGFE 2 ELMANERI AR -

RAEEERE [ EERERTBRABRAE
AR HBEEBRG - ARG RE#EE
ZHEmEkKE ] [HEIRETE ] R[IRH =R
ETEI B ATE 2 FFIEAN - RELE 2019412
ASTHIEFERNEMRRFEAMER FTESHRE
ZERBEBHARMI8HE T F L AU
RNElREAEMEE R DESFMER
R MESENETFEEMARER: AR
RAREFRM B AR NE L ERNLZHS
EFYURESAZRBIRMI8HEHE L FTLA
W R E A E 2 BRARER -



On May 23, 2019, CR Hospital Management & Consulting as
lessee and the Fengtai branch of China Resources Land
Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (£
EHols (R FHERZEERARILZEHSAF) ("CR Land
Hongjing Fengtai Branch”, a branch company of a subsidiary
of China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1109)) as lessor
entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) in
relation to the lease of the 14th floor of China Resources
Kunlun Center Office Building, No. 5, Courtyard No. 9, Fuyi
Street, Fengtai District, Beijing, with a total leasable floor
area of 2,225.38 sg. m. (the "Property”) for use as the
Group's office. Beijing Yalinxi Property Development Co.,
Ltd. (b REMFAFHMERZBR QR is a subsidiary of CR
Land which owns the Property and engaged CR Land
Hongjing Fengtai Branch to handle the lease of the Property
and the signing of corresponding lease agreement(s) for the
period from September 1, 2018 to August 31, 2033
pursuant to its letter of entrusted assets management.
Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the rent for the period
from June 1, 2019 to May 31, 2022 is RMB393,246.90
(including value-added tax calculated at 9% and excluding
utility charges) which shall be payable in cash on a monthly
basis and seven days in advance of each month. For the
period from June 1, 2022 to May 31, 2024, a sum of
RMB405,063.67 (including value-added tax calculated at 9%
and excluding utility charges and property management fees)
of rent shall be payable in cash on a monthly basis and
seven days in advance of each month. The lessee shall pay
a sum of RMB879,959.76 by way of cash, cheque or
telegraphic transfer to the lessor as deposits within 7 days
after entering into the Lease Agreement or before delivery
of the Property, whichever is the earlier
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On the same day, CR Hospital Management & Consulting,
China Resources Healthcare Technology Development
(China) Co., Ltd (EEREMREXER (FE) ARAA)
("CR Healthcare Technology”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China (“CR
Healthcare"”) and Beijing Uconia Decoration Engineering Co.,
Ltd.* (tRESHEL TIEFRAA) (“Beijing Uconia”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Land) entered into a
decoration agreement, pursuant to which, Beijing Uconia
should provide decoration services to the respective new

Resources Healthcare Group Limited

offices of the Group and CR Healthcare (together with its
subsidiaries) in Beijing (the “Decoration Agreement”,
together with the Lease Agreement, the “CT Agreements”).
Pursuant to the Decoration Agreement, the decoration fees
amount to RMB14,000,000 (tax inclusive) in total and will be
equally shared between CR Hospital Management &
Consulting and CR Healthcare Technology (which amounts to
RMB7,000,000 for each party) for the reason that their
respective offices are of the same size. Out of the said
amount, RMB14,000,000 is a preliminary estimate (“Original
Amount of the Agreement”),
amount shall be determined in accordance with principles of

and the final settlement
measurement and pricing stipulated in the agreement, with
reference to the <Engineering Project Pricing Basis &
Budget Quota in Beijing City> and other corresponding
documents on price charges. The Board agreed that the cap
amount for decoration fees to be borne by CR Hospital
Management & Consulting should be RMB8,000,000. The
Decoration Agreement is determined after arm’s length
negotiation with reference to market prices and
normal commercial terms or better. In particular, the price

is on

under the Decoration Agreement is no less favorable than
prices available from any independent third parties to the
Group.

At the date of the CT Agreements, China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the
Company) indirectly holds 61.27% equity interests in CR
Land. CR Land Hongjing Fengtai (as a branch
company of a subsidiary of CR Land) and Beijing Uconia (as

Branch

a subsidiary of CR Land) therefore are connected persons of
the Company, and each of the Lease Agreement and the
Decoration Agreement constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent

shareholders’ approval requirement.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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On September 19, 2019, Unison Champ Limited (“Unison
Champ”, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and as a limited partner to the CMH Fund) and
CMH Healthcare Investment Co., Ltd. (as a General Partner
to the CMH Fund, the “General Partner”) entered into the
subscription agreement in relation to the Group’s investment

which

to the CMH Fund (the “Subscription Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Subscription Agreement entered into by Unison
Champ, the proposed capital commitment of the Group shall
amount to US$40 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB285 million), and the CMH Fund intends to raise a total
of US$1 billion. The CMH Fund's primary investment
objective is to generate attractive risk-adjusted returns by
investing in companies that are active in the healthcare
sector and assisting their expansion globally. Unison Champ
shall appoint the General Partner as its attorney to sign the
limited partnership agreement (the “LP Agreement”) on its
behalf. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated September 19, 2019.

As at the date of the agreements, CR Healthcare Group
holds 35.7% of the issued shares of the Company and is
the Company’s single largest shareholder and controlling
shareholder (as ascribed under the Listing Rules). China
Resources Healthcare Fund Management (Hong Kong)
Limited (“CRHFM (HK)") is a subsidiary of CR Healthcare
Group, and therefore is a connected person of the
Company. In addition, the General Partner is held 40% by
China Resources Healthcare Fund Management Limited
which is held as to 60% by our controlling shareholder, CR
Healthcare Group through CRHFM (HK) (Unison Champ and
CR Capital GP Holdings Limited, which is another wholly-
owned subsidiary of CR Holdings, are respectively holding
the remaining 20% and 20% shareholding interests), and the
General Partner is therefore also a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of our controlling
shareholder. The Subscription Agreement and the LP
Agreement constituted connected transactions of the
Company that are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

requirement under
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Continuing Connected Transactions

New CR PMM Framework Agreement

The Company and CR Holdings entered into the
pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables
supply framework agreement on October 5, 2016 (the
“Original CR PMM Framework Agreement”). As the annual
caps under the Original CR PMM Framework Agreement
were not sufficient for the expected transaction amounts for
the purchase of PMM items from CR Holdings for the years
ending December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018, the
Company proposed to increase the annual caps for the
purchase of PMM items by setting new annual caps for the
three financial years ended December 31, 2019 under a new
framework agreement dated July 21, 2017 (the “New CR
PMM Framework Agreement”). The New CR PMM
Framework Agreement and the proposed annual caps for
New CR PMM Framework Agreement were approved at the
extraordinary general meeting on September 4, 2017. The
renewed annual caps for the purchase of PMM items under
the New CR PMM Framework Agreement for the three
financial years ended December 31, 2019 are as follows:

FEBEEE G - BRI EFFEHNHER
1% %

R2016F10A5H » AR AIHEFEEE L
R BESMLEAEMEREEZRBS
(TREHSEERD  BESHMLEREME
BipEl  c ARREEEEESG - BESEW
REREMERBZOFE LBRTEAME
B Z=2017%12A31H &2018F 128318 1k
FEREDEBRBED BEEMEER
HEVMIEENTERRSSE  AQFERER
BB B A2017F7821 B O FIE R 5
(FhEHEEER  BESMMEREMIE
B E DRI ME E2019F12A318 1E=
BV BRFEENFEE LR - EMEEER -
EESMEEREMBENFE LR - #E
HEEERD  BESRLEBEREMERBZ
ManEHEEER  BESBEERABEMIE
R FE FREN2017F9 408
THRERRI RS & E - FrEHEE 5
M BERWMAEAREMERBZETHE
201912 A31 8 1k = {8 §f Bt F [Z $R B8 &
M EESWMAEREMEENKEENTE
EBRIT

FELR

Annual cap

RMB970 million

RMB1,500 million RMB1,710 million

ARBII0EETT AR¥15008E8TT AR¥17108ETT
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Pursuant to the New CR PMM Framework Agreement, CR
Holdings may, through its subsidiaries, supply PMM items to
the Group and its sponsored hospitals from time to time.
The Group and its sponsored hospitals may place purchase
orders for PMM items with CR Holdings or its subsidiaries
from time to time and CR Holdings or its subsidiaries may
sell the products to the Group and its sponsored hospitals at
a price in accordance with the agreed pricing policy. The
details of each purchase order, including price, payment
terms and delivery arrangement, are to be separately agreed
in accordance with the principles laid down in the New CR
PMM Framework Agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the amount of
the purchase orders under the New CR PMM Framework
Agreement paid/payable by the Group was RMB386.7
million.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of the Company.

The Company and CR Bank entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement (the “"CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement”) on July 21, 2017. Pursuant to the CR Bank
Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Group and its
sponsored hospitals may place deposits with CR Bank and
use other financial services and products of CR Bank,
including (but not limited to) the provision of letters of
credit, guarantee, loans with collaterals, bill of exchange and
discount services, assignment of receivables, RMB and
foreign exchange settlement, entrusted loans and collaterals,
financial and cash management services, financial advisory
services and other financial services and products as agreed
by the parties. The term of the CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement is from July 21, 2017 to December
31, 2019.

RiFEBEEER BRSNS ERREY
BERGE EREENTRKEBENBLAR
AN N E BB EEm, - BEIRW
KERBEMIER - AEBEMESRER AN
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AENHB(BRERS  XMEIRZXMZ
BORREMEBEE LR  BRIMNE
REMERBZETRENRASITHEE °

HE2019F12A31BItFE  AEEBE
FEREELR - BEXRWMAKERAEMIEZR
WEEN BN RBIIESEAARE3.867
(A

EHEEAARTNERERRMEAL -

M201767R218 « RAG BEEHRITE] L
e EmE ((ERRITESERHZE]D -
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The annual caps for the principal amount and interest in
relation to financial products provided by CR Bank and the
service fees and commissions payable by the Group and its
sponsored hospitals for other financial products and services
to be provided by CR Bank during the term of the CR Bank
Strategic Cooperation Agreement for the three financial
years ended December 31, 2019 are as follows:

REBIRITERESFHHEBRA - BE2019
F12A3MA =AM BEFEABAERRITE
HNEMERNASSBERMERAEE R
HEREGABEBRRTE FRENE LS
BMEMMREENNRFEELRBEHFE L
PREAT :

Maximum daily TR EBRTH RMB300 million RMB300 million RMB300 million
deposit amount BEREREREE ARBI0EET ARBI0EET ARBI0EET

placed with CR Bank (BREREEFE)
(inclusive of interest (H3E)
receivable) (Note)

Maximum daily BRAEBRITE TR RMB200 million RMB200 million RMB200 million
principal amount HOERERNT ARKE200EETT ARKE200EET ARKE200EET
and interest in BEaAeEBR
relation to financial 2 ()

products to be
provided by CR

Bank (Note)

Maximum service fees — ZEEIRITH IR A RMB3 million RMB3 million RMB3 million
and commissions Hiv & mbE m MR AREBIEETT AREBIEETT AREBIEETT
for other financial BRRaEREER
products and ik

services to be
provided by CR
Bank

Note: The above maximum daily deposit amount or daily principal amount and
interest is applicable for each day during the relevant period, and is
calculated on an individual basis remaining as of the end of each day,
without aggregating the amount incurred on the days before.

fizd: LSRG FREEATALASEERNEER
RNERSRNE R TRTABEREOREE—
AE B TEAM—HEENSHEAHH -
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In 2019, the actual highest amount of the Group and the
Sponsored Hospitals' daily deposit balance
interest receivable) and daily principal amount and interest in
relation to financial products to be provided by CR Bank
amounted to RMB293 million and RMB130 million,
respectively. In 2019, the service fees and commissions for
other financial products and services provided by CR Bank
were nil.

(inclusive of

CR Bank is an associate of a controlling shareholder of the
Company and therefore a connected person of the
Company.

The Company and China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd.
("CR Trust”) entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
(the "CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement”) on July
21, 2017. Pursuant to the CR Trust Strategic Cooperation
Agreement, the Group and its sponsored hospitals may use
the services and products provided by CR Trust, including
(but not limited to) cash management, asset management,
custodian trust loan services, assignment of receivables,
advisory services in relation to redemptory monetary capital
for sale, and other financial or trust services and products as
agreed by the parties. The term of the CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement is from July 21, 2017 to December
31, 2019.

R2019% - AEBE R BRERET B FRER
(BHREEFE) RBBERRITE TIRHEDN
THEMNEEASSRNMNEERRS S
BOBR/ARE293ETRARKE130E
7> RN2019%F - BAFEBRITRENEMS
BMEMEBRBHOREERBE /T -

EHRITRARA —BERBKROBEA -
R SR RBINEEAL -

M2017F78218 » AA R EHEHRRIE(E
FEERAR ([EBET] AT LEREERZ
(FEBETEREERZE] - RIBEBET
HEaERE  AEBEREBMRERAER
EHEARENRBELER 21 (BERR
MBReERE BAEER TEGTEEIRR
% EEEKNRIE HEARESREER
B SR AR S S ET 4075 15 E A9 H ftb & @l 3k
ErEARTE REM - EHETEE S EREL
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The annual caps for the principal amount and interest in
relation to financial products provided by CR Trust and the
service fees and commissions payable by the Group and its
sponsored hospitals for other financial products and services
to be provided by CR Trust during the term of the CR Trust
Strategic Cooperation Agreement are as follows:

RERETEBBEAIFHZEHRA - ARER
EREHNEREMN AT S ERAE LA
SEREBRBERMAEBEES TRMEN
H iy Bl EE o R IRTS B IRTS B KBS M
FELERMT :

Maximum daily EHEFER TRE RMB100 million ~ RMB100 million ~ RMB100 million
principal amount NERERNE ARKI10BELT ARKI00BET ARKI00EET
and interest in HeEatcs i
relation to R AE ()

financial products
to be provided by
CR Trust (Note)

Maximum service EHEFRREENE RMB3 million RMB3 million RMB3 million
fees and b B8 R AR AREIEETT AREIEETT AREIEETT
commissions for B &R E
other financial kE€

products and
services provided
by CR Trust

Note: The above maximum daily principal amount and interest is applicable for
each day during the relevant period, and is calculated on an individual
basis remaining as of the end of each day, without aggregating the
amount incurred on the days before.

In 2019, the Group and the Sponsored Hospitals did not
have any balance of financial products provided by CR Trust.
In 2019, the service fees and commissions for other
financial products and services provided by CR Trust were
nil.

CR Trust is an associate of a controlling shareholder of the
Company and therefore a connected person of the
Company.

M LR ssAeeB LA ERRERARNE
—B - WREAARBNBREE —TE  BTEN—
REENSRAME -

20195 » AN B KB P P W AT (A B %
BETRENSRERNLEH - 1R20194F -
FRERETRENEMSRERKRBEH
REEBRAEAT -

EFRETARRF —RERBEROBEA -
Hit B ARNAEAL ©
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Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement

The Company and China Resources Leasing Company
Limited* (ZEHHEEBR A F]) (“CR Leasing”) entered into a
cooperation agreement on June 21, 2018 (the "“Finance
Lease Cooperation Agreement”), and pursuant to which the
Group may use general finance lease services (“Finance
Lease Services”), factoring services and related consultancy
services (“Other Financial Services”) provided by CR
Leasing. The annual caps for certain services under the
Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement for the two financial
years ending December 31, 2019 are as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

AEHEEFlHH

R2018F6H21H » ARFIHEBEEER
ARl ([FEBRED VA EHZ ((RERE
AEHZE]) MASE R FERAEPREER
Hy—RREHERE ((REEERK])
PRI RS RABEE R RS ([ Ei & mhk
%)) c mEMESERRE FEE2019F12
A 318 1R E R B F E R A G E LRI
B

The maximum aggregate amount && 8 & IR

of Finance Lease Services &= A%
Maximum commission and/or EHERMEHEEREH
service fees in relation to Eefe k=

Finance Lease Services Ri%E
Maximum commission and/or HEwErmRHas
service fees in relation to Beh/ SREE

Other Financial Services

The commission and/or services fees to be paid by the
Company to CR Leasing in relation to the Finance Lease
Services and Other Financial Services to be provided under
the Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement should be
determined at arm’s length negotiation between the parties
with reference to the prevailing market prices for
comparable services, after taking into account various
factors, such as finance costs and normal market rate. Such
commission and/or services fees shall not be less favourable
than those offered for other independent customers by CR
Leasing.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, (i) the aggregate
amount of Finance Lease Services of RMB5.3 million was
utilised by the Group; (i) the commission and/or service
fees in relation to Finance Lease Services were nil; and (iii)
the commission and/or service fees in relation to Other
Financial Services were nil.

RMB100 million RMB200 million
AREI100E & T AREE2005E BT
RMB8 million RMB13 million
ARKSEETT AREIBEET
RMB27 million RMB28 million
ARB27TEE T ARBE28E BT

ARBIBBMEMESFHER MeHZRE
HERSMEMSBRFAEBEEH
ek IRBBEFLITOFARZEER
(BIIEE R A R — R HKFE) & - ERF
ERY2ERELBERBOHBATHERE
EeoBRMEN HIRBERTHERE A
EMEMBIRFRENAS R SRBEE -

HE2019F12A31HIEFE » (\AEEEF
BraEfEREESESEAEARKE308
LA EEEEREHERBELEMS
Y/ RREE RN EBERE MBS R R
BEEZRER IRBEERT -

EHBRERARLAT T 5%
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As the aforesaid four continuing connected transaction
agreements in this section have expired on December 31,
2019, the Company has entered into the new arrangements
on November 7, 2019 in advance whereby the annual caps
are renewed under the new continuing connected
transaction agreements. The new continuing connected
transaction agreements include: 1. the pharmaceuticals,
medical devices and medical consumables framework
agreement entered into between the Company and CRH on
November 7, 2019 (the “Renewed Agreement 1"); 2. the
strategic cooperation agreement entered into between the
Company and CR Bank on November 7, 2019 (the
“"Renewed Agreement 2"); 3. the strategic cooperation
agreement entered into between the Company and CR Trust
on November 7, 2019 (the "Renewed Agreement 3"); and
4. the finance lease cooperation agreement entered into
between the Company and CR Leasing on November 7,
2019 (the "Renewed Agreement 4"). The transactions
contemplated under the Renewed Agreement. 4 are only
subject to reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company has convened the
extraordinary general meeting on December 24, 2019 and
sought the independent Shareholders’ approval for the
transactions contemplated under the abovementioned first
three agreements and the corresponding annual caps.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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The renewed annual caps under the Renewed Agreement 1 1RBEE % FIE & £2022F12A31H
for the three financial years ending December 31, 2022 are IF=EAMBFEZEEEFE LRFFINT
set out as follows:

Annual Caps FEER 1,000 1,140 1,400

The renewed annual caps under the Renewed Agreement 2 1B EEWHZE L MNEEHZRIE FEE2022
and Renewed Agreement 3 for the three financial years F12A31BI=ZHFRFEZEEEFE L
ending December 31, 2022 are set out as follows: PREFFIANT :

Maximum daily deposit TR E B RTT 400 400 400
amount placed with NEBHERT
CR Bank (inclusive of REB(BE
interest receivable) Mot e F B
Maximum daily principal BHEERRBRTR 400 400 400
amount and interest in ZHEFTHT
relation to financial ARy € R
products to be provided EmNEAK
by CR Bank and CR BAEEER
Trust Note) Mm@
Maximum service fees and ~ ZEERIT R EH 8 8 8
commissions for other B T AR
financial products and HHE e H
services to be provided = R AR Y
by CR Bank and CR RERB%E R
Trust ik

ERBEERERLAT T L0 57
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Note: The above maximum daily deposit amount or daily principal amount and
interest is applicable for each day during the relevant period, and is
calculated on an individual basis remaining as of the end of each day,
without aggregating the amount incurred on the days before.

The renewed annual caps under the Renewed Agreement 4
for the three financial years ending December 31, 2022 are
set out as follows:

i LIABARSFEXREEXERAESERMNSER
RERBRNE A XRTABREOHREE—
AHE B TEM—HEELNSEEHHE -

WREEHET B N 22022012 A31H
=R FEEZEEEFE FRFMNMT

The maximum aggregate MEHERS
amount of the general R= R
finance lease services

Maximum commission and/ Bt & T &R
or service fees in relation HEMEE
to general finance lease %/ R%E

services

Maximum commission and/ ~ H A& BRER T
or service fees for HEENAE
factoring services and &/ R%E
related consultancy
services

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
November 7, 2019 and December 24, 2019 and the circular
of the Company dated December 6, 2019 for further details
of the new continuing connected transaction agreements.

200 200 200
13 13 13
28 28 28

AR ERERSHEZTBERLHAR
7 H 8§ 22019411 A7H M2019412 24
HeRE UMERAARIHEAR2019F12H6
A 2K -
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules"” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 50
to 55 of this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

Financial Information” and with reference to

auditor has

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that for the year ended December 31, 2019:

(i)  these transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

(i) these transactions were entered into either on normal
commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

(il)  these transactions were entered into according to the
agreements governing them on terms that were fair
the interests of the

and reasonable and in

Shareholders as a whole.
Save as disclosed above, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related-party transactions set out
in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report fall within the scope of discloseable connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. The connected and continuing connected
transactions of the Group are
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

in compliance with the

BIE T BIE14A 5615 - NABIZEEIT
BREZSZE KBREBSHMASEMZ
BB EEEEERIFE300057 [ JEFE %R ERH
BEVBKERZEETIEIRTE T2RE
TEHEAE 74058 [BERA B L iR B PTat 75 48
BEISFHZEMEG I HAEE 2 HER
ERXHERRE - ZHAIDIRE ETARRE
14A GBI AEBEH N FMFELS0BEEFEL5H
FENRERERSBHLEEREBER X
 ERHEEERASERLER -

BYRTESCEM T NBEREBERST
MRREZE2019F 12831 BILFE -

() ZERHHAAEERER—MESA
AT

(i) ZEXFOHERBEGIIRAEHE
NI = 77 BUS 4R T BV RRET

(i) ZEXZIRTAEER 2 BHIGERFT
o BREGEHRBATAE  YNEKR

B PR FEE SN - BLEH MBS N AF R
iR B B S IR M L A3 M BB T X H 5
BUEBOIRXZIBR EMBRAETETREN
REXZFAFERERS - AEERERS
MFEREXFENAELMRAUETHAE
H BRI E ©
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On January 21, 2019, the Company received a letter from
Yan Hua Hospital to unilaterally
terminate the Yan Hua IOT Agreement with effect from
2019. On April 17, 2019, the Group has
submitted the civil claim statement against Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital in relation to the Yan Hua 10T
Agreement dispute to Beijing Second Intermediate People’s

Yan Hua Phoenix and

January 21,

Court on the even date to seek the court’s ruling that the
unilateral termination of Yan Hua IOT Agreement by Yan
Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital on January 21, 2019
shall be void and that Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital should be liable for damages for breach of the Yan
Hua IOT Agreement. On December 18, 2019, the Beijing
Second Intermediate People’s Court handed down the civil
judgment ([2019] Jing 02 Minchu No0.304) and the major
details are as follows: (1) the unilateral termination of Yan
Hua IOT Agreement by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital is declared to be void and that the parties shall
continue to perform its obligations under the Yan Hua IOT
Agreement; (2) the amount of RMB14,400,000, being the
damages for breach of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement, is to be
paid by Yan Hua Phoenix to CR Hospital Management &
Consulting; (3) reliefs sought by CR Hospital
Management & Consulting shall be dismissed; and (4) other
counterclaims of Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital

other

shall be dismissed. Pursuant to the laws of the PRC, the
Judgment is still not effective. Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital have filed appeal in January, 2020 to Beijing
Higher People’'s Court and the court hearing date is not yet
fixed as at the date of this annual report.

The Company will use its best endeavours and will take all
appropriate actions to protect the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders.

Please refer to the announcements published by the
Company on January 15, 2019, January 21, 2019 and April
17, 2019 for more details.
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Continuation of the Yan Hua Hospital Investment
Management Agreement

As per the circular of the Company dated October 30, 2019
and the poll results announcement dated November 18,
2019, the Shareholders have approved the continuation of
the Yan Hua Hospital Investment Management Agreement
for the period from November 23, 2019 to November 22,
2022 at the extraordinary general meeting on November 18,
2019. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated November 18, 2019 and the circular of the Company
dated October 30, 2019 for further details of the
continuation of the Yan Hua Hospital Investment

Management Agreement.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

No Director nor any connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the holding company of
the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year
ended December 31, 2019.
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As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” above, (1) the Company entered into the CR
PMM Framework Agreement with CR Holdings, a
Controlling Shareholder of the Company, on October 5,
2016 and the New CR PMM Framework Agreement on July
21, 2017; and (2) the Company entered into the Finance
Lease Cooperation Agreement with CR Leasing on June 21,
2018. As disclosed in the same paragraph, there were also
a series of agreements entered in by the Group in 2019 in
relation to certain of its connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions, which include: (1) the
Lease Agreement entered into between CR Hospital
Management & Consulting as lessee and CR Land Hongjing
Fengtai Branch as lessor on May 23, 2019, and Decoration
Agreement entered into among CR Hospital Management &
Consulting, CR Healthcare Technology and Beijing Uconia of
even date; (2) the Subscription Agreement entered into
between Unison Champ, which is a subsidiary of the
Company, and CMH Healthcare Investment Co., Ltd. in
relation to the Group’s investment to the CMH Fund on
September 19, 2019; and (3) the agreements respectively
entered into by the Company on November 7, 2019
including the pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables framework agreement with CRH (i.e. the
Renewed Agreement 1), the strategic cooperation
agreement with CR Bank (i.e. the Renewed Agreement 2),
the strategic cooperation agreement with CR Trust (i.e. the
Renewed Agreement 3) and the finance lease cooperation
agreement with CR Leasing (i.e. the Renewed Agreement
4). Save for the aforementioned, no Controlling Shareholders
or its subsidiary had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for the
provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the year ended December 31, 2019.

Other than the service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Directors, the Company has not entered into any
contract with any individuals, firms or corporate entities to
manage or regulate the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company during the year ended December
31, 2019.
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The Company established the Audit Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
((EEZ:#E1))) of the Company in accordance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal
point for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to
time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

As at December 31, 2019 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Audit Committee currently comprises
one non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Yan and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong
Kwok Kong (Chairman) and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy. The
Audit Committee, together with the management of the
Company,
accounting standards and methods adopted by the
Company, discussed the matters concerning risk
management and auditing and financial

has reviewed the accounting principles,

internal control,
reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,

2019.
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
(ZEEExEMA )) of the Company in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on
November 4, 2013. The Remuneration Committee is mainly
responsible for: (i) making recommendations to the Board on
the policy and structure for Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management; and (iii) reviewing and evaluating the
performance-based remuneration and ensure that no
Directors or any of his associates is involved in deciding his

own remuneration.

As at December 31, 2019 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Remuneration Committee currently
consisted of one executive Director, Ms. Ren Yuan, and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chiu Kam
Hing Kathy (Chairman) and Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
November 4, 2013. The Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible for: (i) identifying individuals suitably qualified as
potential making
recommendation to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (ii) reviewing the structure, size

Board members and selecting or

and diversity of the Board and the required skill mix as well
as making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to ensure the implementation of the Company’s
strategic goal; (iii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
qualification of senior management nominated by the Chief
Executive Officer, reported to the Board for consideration
and adoption.
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As at December 31, 2019 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Nomination Committee consisted of
Cheng Libing,
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar

one executive Director, Mr. and two

Chung Felix (Chairman) and Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
jurisdiction
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

being the in which the Company was

Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as rules governing

dealings by Directors in the listed securities of the

Company.

Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed that
all members of the Board complied with the Model Code
2019. As senior
managers, executives and officers who, because of their
offices in the Company, may possess inside information of
the Company, they shall comply with the provision of the
Model Code. To the best knowledge of the Company, no
incident of non-compliance to the Model Code has been
committed by such employees during the vyear
December 31, 2019.

during the year ended December 31,

ended
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For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, May 28,
2020, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, May 25, 2020 to Thursday, May 28,
2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify as members
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting,
investors should lodge all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Friday, May 22, 2020.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, June 3, 2020 to Friday, June 5,
2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
registered.
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must

shares will be In order to qualify for the

be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, June 2,
2020.

The full text of the Corporate Governance Report is set out
on pages 68 to 87 of this annual report.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’'s listed securities.

Based on the information publicly available and to the best
of the Board's knowledge, information and belief, the
Company has always maintained sufficient public float as at
the date of this annual report.
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Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

Events Subsequent to December 31, 2019

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Subsequent Event(s)"”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 25 of this annual report.

Auditor

The Company has appointed Messrs. Ernst & Young as the
auditor of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2019.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on May
30, 2019, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the
auditor of the Company and Messrs. Ernst & Young was
appointed as the auditor of the Company.

Messrs. Ernst & Young will retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting and is eligible to stand
for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
Wu Ting Yuk Anthony
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 24, 2020
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company confirms that it has complied with all material
code provisions of CG Code during the vyear
December 31, 2018.

ended

The Company will review and commit in making necessary
arrangement to comply with all the code provisions under
the CG Code and the rising expectations of Shareholders
and investors.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "“Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct for dealing
Company by the Directors.

in securities of the

the
Company confirmed that all Directors complied with the
Model Code during the year ended December 31, 2019.
Senior management, executives and staff who, because of

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors,

their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provision of the Model Code and the Company confirmed
that there was no incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by such employees during the year ended December
31, 2019.
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The Directors are accountable to all Shareholders for their
leadership and supervision over the Group’s operation, and
are committed to achieving the goal of increasing
Shareholders’ value.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including four executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors, and changes to the Board members during the
year ended December 31, 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

Mr. Wang Yan

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Han Yuewei (Resigned on October 15, 2019)
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President)

None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 88
to 98 of this annual report. The list of the Directors (by
category) is also disclosed in all of the corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Board
complied at all times with the requirements of the Listing
relating to the appointment of at
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least

Rules least three
one-third of the Board), of which at least one Director has
appropriate professional qualifications, or
related financial management expertise.

accounting or

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
During the vyear ended December 31, the non-
executive Directors

2019,
(including independent non-executive
Directors) brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and judgement to the Board. Through
active participation at Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and
serving on Board committees, all

Directors have made various contributions to the effective

the non-executive

development of the Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
to protect Directors from possible legal action against them.

The Board is responsible for the performance of the
functions of corporate governance.
December 31, 2019, the Board has performed the functions
set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

For the year ended

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
while the Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Mr.
Cheng Libing. The Company has complied with Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive should not be
performed by the same individual.
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Under the leadership of the Chairman and the Vice
Chairman, the Board is responsible for the approval and
supervision of the Group's general development strategy,
the review and approval of the annual budget and business
plans, the consent of material investment projects related to
the Group’s business development, the
Group's performance and the supervision of the work of the
management, and ensures that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Group, operates effectively and performs

review on the

the necessary duties, as well as discusses all the significant
and appropriate issues of the Group’s business in a timely
manner. All the Directors are entitled to propose the
inclusion of any item in the agenda of the Board meetings
for appropriate discussion. The Chairman, and the Vice
Chairman, have appointed the secretary of the meeting to
draft the Board meetings’ agendas. Under the assistance of
the executive Directors and the secretary of the Board, the
Chairman will ensure that all the Directors are provided with
reliable information

sufficient and in a timely manner

required for necessary analysis based on their expertise.

The Chief Executive Officer
authority for the operation and management of the Group’s

has delegated sufficient
business to the executive Directors and other senior
management members, who are in-charge of the daily

management of the Group in every aspect, including
implementation of the Board's resolutions unanimously, and
be accountable to the Chief Executive Officer for the
operations of various aspects of the Group's business, while
the Chief Executive Officer shall be accountable to the

Board for the Group’s operations as a whole.

The responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

(a)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’'s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In order to enhance its corporate governance structure, the
Company has formulated the “Rules and Procedures for
Board Meetings”. The “Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings"” specifies that the CEO Management Meeting is
composed of executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer and
Deputy President, all being called together by the Chief
Executive Officer. As the approval organization for the
Company's daily operational management, the committee is
responsible for organizing and managing the Company’s
daily operations and accountable to the Board.

According to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, regular
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. During the year ended
December 31, 2019, there were only two regular Board
meetings held to review and consider the interim results
and the annual results, respectively, as the Company is not
required to announce its quarterly results under the Listing
Rules. 10 other Board meetings were held during the year.

The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent

non-executive Directors without presence of other Directors
during the year.
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For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Board has #{Z2019F12A31B It FEEF &F &

convened and held 12 Board meetings. Attendance records B AMWRITI2AEESE

of the Directors at the Board meetings are set out as & &% H/FCEEy 0T ¢
follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board) HMEBREE(EEFLR)

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB B ok S A

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HEWrzt

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRELE

Non-executive Director FHTES

Mr. Wang Yan ITERE

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board) RERE(GIEER)

Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) PSSR (%)

Mr. Han Yuewei BRELE

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) FEZT (BEEHIEE)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) B L (F/45)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings e3F

Notice of regular Board meetings had been served to all ®EiH=ES

Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend.
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For regular Board and committee meetings, all agendas,
meeting papers, together with all applicable, complete and
reliable statistics will be sent to all the Directors or
committees at least three days before a meeting is held. All
Directors may propose any business to be included in the
agenda of the Board or committee meetings and contact the
company secretary to ensure full compliance with all of the

Board's procedures and applicable regulations.

In general, the senior management members shall attend all
the regular Board meetings and, if necessary, other Board
and committee meetings to advise on the Group's business
development, financial and accounting matters, statutory and
regulatory compliance,
management as well as other significant issues. The Board
if appropriate,
independent and professional advice at the expense of the
Group. Matters discussed and resolved at Board meetings
will be recorded in detail by the Board secretary who shall

corporate governance and risk

may, authorize the Directors to seek

prepare and file the minutes or resolutions. Generally, draft
minutes of Board meeting shall be issued to the Directors
within reasonable time for their comments after such
meeting is held, and the final version will be open for
inspections by the Directors.

The Articles of Association contains provision requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or their associates have a material interest

and this provision has always been complied with.

According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but no less than one-third) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold
office until meeting of the
Company and for any Director appointed as an addition to
the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election.

the next following general
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Any other appointment, resignation, removal or
designation of Directors will be timely disclosed to the
Shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his

resignation.

re-

Each of the non-executive Directors was engaged on a
service contract or letter of appointment for a fixed term
and shall be subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Group has established a formal
procedure for formulating policies on
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended December 31,
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

and transparent
remuneration of

2019 are set out in note 10 to the

Details of the remuneration of the senior management of
the Company, by band for the year ended December 31,
2019 are set out below:
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6,001 to 7,000
5,001 to 6,000
4,001 to 5,000
3,001 to 4,000
2,001 to 3,000
Nil to 2,000

6,001 %7,000
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General Meetings

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company
has convened and held one annual general meeting
("AGM") and two extraordinary general meetings ("EGM").
Attendance records of the Directors at the general meetings
are set out as follows:

BRERKRE

HZE2019F12A3MBILFE  ARAIE A
FAERBIT-ARREAFAE((REBEF K
BUEMABRERIAE ([RESB X
gl) EFHRRERG 2 HELRHEEHTIAT :

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board) HTEB%E(ZEEK) 171 2/2
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BPBE ¥ o 171 2/2
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HemWzt 71 2/2
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FREESE A 2/2
Non-executive Director FHTES

Mr. Wang Yan ITEE4LE 0N 12
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board) RBERE(FEER) 1/1 0/2
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) B () 171 2/2
Mr. Han Yuewei (Resigned on October 15, 2019)  TERB{R & E (R2019F 105 15 H BFE) 171 N/ATE A
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) EERL(BEHFEE) 71 2/2
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) B L (F/4EH) 171 2/2

The 2020 annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on Thursday, May 28, 2020. The notice of the annual
general meeting will be sent to the Shareholders at least 20
clear business days before the annual general meeting.

RARE]2020F % A F R #12202095 A
288 (2HIMW) 817 - REAFAKLBEEER
MERBEFAXSRRDC0ELEHFE TR
% o
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On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package to ensure that he/she has
a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and is fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations as being a Director as well as the compliance
practice under the Listing Rules and other relevant

regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are kept updated on the

statutory and regulatory development and changes in the

development to develop and

business and the market so as to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in the
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a
professional development by the way of attending training
courses or reading relevant materials for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

listed company or further enhanced their

EZEMAERZER  SEFHERE— M=
Bz ABERS  BREZATHRAEEZE
BReEE URANBREIMERESTNEE
RER AR EMHRRBE TN RERLE
L EBERERE

AEBZRE2REE2EFESTEER U
EREEMBREZANB LR - EERFHE
RUICEENEEER  UNEBLRTREE
ZEFBE  WEREETHRE - 81E2019
FI2ANALFE  2REF2EEHE LT
RAEFZAC BELRBEZRE 3B
BHEEEIIRIZREEB @M EE — SR8
WELEEER -

EHBREZERARAT
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A summary of the training received by the Directors for the 1RIEE BRI - B E20195128
year ended December 31, 2019 according to the records 31BHILFEE  BEMESEIZBENT :
provided by the Directors is as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board) HMEBREE(EELR) J
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BPE S S A4 \
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy Hemz Lt {
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FREXE |
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wang Yan TEEAE J
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board) RBEE(BIEER) {
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) B ST (#B ) \
Mr. Han Yuewei (Resigned on October 15, 2019) BRELE(R2019F104 15H BHE) J
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) EERLT (BEHAEE) J
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) B L (5/4E#) \
Nomination Committee REEZEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee on EEER2013F 11 A4BKIIRREZEE -
November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one ¥BE—ZHITEE(KILELLE)ERWELE
Executive Director, Mr. Cheng Libing, and two independent 7 JEEH1TEE (B) : ZRIALE AL (X FE) L&D
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix BIY5E4) c KEOKE BB IERITES -
(Chairman) and Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong. Majority of the

members are independent non-executive Directors.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019



The role and function of the Nomination Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
size and composition
knowledge and experience) of the

include reviewing the structure,
(including the skills,
Board, identifying appropriate and qualified individuals to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment

directorships, assessing the

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

To comply with the provisions in the CG Code on board
diversity which became effective on September 1, 2013, the
Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
(the "“Board Diversity Policy”) setting out a
number of factors which the Nomination Committee would

members

consider in reviewing and assessing the Board composition.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition
and makes recommendations of changes to the composition
of the Board. The Nomination Committee would consider
the benefits of all aspects of diversity set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age,
ethnicity, and educational

cultural background,

communication styles, skills, functional
expertise, problem solving skills, professional qualifications,

knowledge and industry and regional experience and other

interpersonal

qualities in reviewing and assessing the composition of the
Board and all appointments to the Board will be based on
merits and will take into account of factors based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs from time
to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis (which will include a review on the
effectiveness of the policy), discuss any required changes
with the Board and make recommendation of revision to the
Board Diversity Policy for consideration and approval. The
Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient
resources to perform
Nomination Committee will seek independent professional
advice,

its duty. When necessary, the

at the Company’s expense, to perform its

responsibilities.

oE S

g

A E

REZEENAGLBEHNEBEHRE -
HIZEIEERIESTSRE  HEIAE
ARk B (BiEfEE - MBLER) - Mels
AEERMALTREESFSNE LEERE
FEFEERBRABFRMUMKEA FHEE
VHEPTEENBEUMN BEEFSTEL
BREELEFMEFSE LEEXTRLE
£ o

BB 2013F9 A1 BARB D EE AT
EHEFEZ LB  EFEEHME
HMEETKEZLIEHBR([EEES Rt
BE])  EvR#HBRAZESNER EKTE
EEgHRNEREEENETREX -

REEFSZTILRE  REZEERF N
AEEZESHERKE  URESTSHEAKE
MEFIRLERERZ RAZESEMRIM
AEEESERKER  SEBEEZEE T
EBRABMMEZTICRENES B
BEARRRIER - Fik - Bk XEREEE
REBEFHA AR BREER BR
REmIT - EEER  MBRITEA LR
BBANEMRE  BEESZ2MBERER
WEEEEEAEE WAt MAKE A & XK
BARARZABFREFRAREL -
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During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Nomination
Committee has convened one meeting to review the

structure, size and composition of the Board and the

committees and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the
retiring Directors standing for re-election at the annual
general meeting and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors. The particulars of the
attendance of the Nomination Committee are set forth as
follows:

HE2019F12A31ALFE REZZEg
ERAMIAEEURNESSREES R
B REREKKEUARBYIENTESR Y
B ERREESENRFRBEFARGHEE
BEACZERITRZETEREEZ -RBEZ
BEHFEHBEHINOT

Chairman: xfE
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRIBEE 11
Members: KB :
Mr. Cheng Libing B S 11
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BBB o S A A

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee on
November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one
executive Director, Ms. Ren Yuan, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Chairman) and Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix. Majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing and formulating policies in respect of
remuneration structure for all Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board for
its consideration.

FMEES
ZEE2eMN2013F1MA4BR I FMEE S -
BERE—ZRTEE (TELXLT) AWABL
FMITESE (AN B2 EL T (TF) RER
S E) c KEDKE BB IERNITES -

FNZEenAe MBEEHN LRERE -
HIBHARERILFIEAHEEBESENR
SREEABHHRENER YAESFE
ROEBZZEEEE -
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During the vyear ended December 31, 2019, the

Remuneration Committee has convened four meetings to
review the remuneration policy for all Directors and senior
management and service contracts of newly appointed
The particulars of the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee are set forth as follows:

Directors.

HZE2019F12A3MBEFE - FTMHEES
EER4REZE URIEBESERARE
BABNTHERERNZEESTORE S
B-FMEESLFEFBEHINAT :

Chairman: FE:
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HEWrzt 4/4
Members: BB :
Mr. Han Yuewei (Resigned on October 15, 2019) BRELE (R2019F107 158 B1(F) 0/3
Ms. Ren Yuan (Appointed on October 15, 2019) EELX L (R2019F 105 15 HEZ (F) 171
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRELE 4/4

Audit Committee

On November 4, 2013, the Board has established the Audit
Committee currently consisted of one non-executive
Director, Mr. Wang Yan and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (Chairman); and
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy. Majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board considered
that the members of the Audit Committee possess
sufficient professional knowledge and experience of
accounting and financial management for the performance of
their responsibilities.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out
in its terms of reference. In view of the amendments to the
CG Code effective for the accounting period beginning on
January 1, 2016, the Group adopted a revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee on January 18, 2016 in
order to comply with certain changes relating to the risk
management and internal control section of the CG Code.
Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal point
for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and

EREE®

BEEN2013F 1M A4 L EZZEE
REFE—ZINTES (FEXE) KMEE
SIERITEE(B) : BB (EF) M
SELZ L) KEDKEERBBILIENTE
Z-BRERE ERZECREAERD
SRV BEREEMBNRER  CAET
FERBRE -

ERZEENBE BN ERERE -
201641 A1 BT R ERA B
ERsTAIEEIME AEEZR20165F1 A
1SRN ERLZESRERE - &
BEEERTAEERRERERANIPEE—
HmETES HFXrZEXREEAEME
F - HNEAZ BAD K2 A EDE AT RD (N ER A EB
B cHAREMBMEMRS - AR
ERRAGEE  INFMARLETRESE
THETHNZSEMV BN EES T E
WEBENZIZEBBER RAEEUPBRE
B E - R R R B B 2 6 2 A AR AR 1% B
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accounting matters as the Board determines from time to
time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to discharge its
responsibilities and review the Group’s annual and interim
results, continuing connected transactions, reporting and
compliance procedures, reports from the management on
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control function and
procedures and also the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The particulars of the attendance of the Audit
Committee are set forth as follows:

Exg@URS  BEEERER FBHAE
BHPBEREA BRI ERNETEESRE
ERMEHMBEMRIT -

HE2019F12A31ALFE EZZES
ERTIAEHENUBTEBREYEMNASE
FEMTHERS BEEBRS BERE
REF EEEREASERRBREE XA
ERHE AEEASEEBEREFZK
Mz mEANRBIEINEZEE - BEREEE
HEFBEERHIINAT

Chairman: X
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB o & 3/3
Members: KB :
Mr. Wang Yan TERHE 0/3
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy Hemz Lt 3/3

Appointment and Remuneration of
External Auditor

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the total fee
paid/payable to the external auditors of the Group in respect
of audit is RMB3.01 million, including the annual audit
service fee payable to Ernst & Young amounted to
RMB2.51 million. The total fee paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Group in respect of non-audit service (in
respect of review interim period financial statements) is
RMBO0.5 million.

SEZBMBNEREMNMM S

B E2019F12A3MBIEFE EZKIF
BZRBE XN AN AEBINEZEEN
BRBAEAAREINE L HhaiEREM
TXKEFMEFMNFEEZRBEARKE
2518 7T - B X/ AN & B SMNE A% Bh A
MIEEZRE (APHMBEENITE EE
BRBEA/AANRELOETT -

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019



The Audit Committee is
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment, re-
appointment and Such
appointment, re-appointment and removal are subject to the
approval by the Board and the general meetings of the
Company by the Shareholders.

responsible for making

removal of the external auditor.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Group
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
is set out in the
independent auditor’s report from pages 103 to 105 of this
annual report.

financial statements of the Group

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2019 which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as well as the results and
cash flow during that year.
The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements are
met and applies appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and makes judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept so that the Group could prepare
financial statements in accordance with statutory
requirements and the Group’s accounting policies. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities within the

Group.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Board, as
supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, has
performed an annual
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal

review on the adequacy and

TERER®RSE
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control systems in different aspects of the Group such as
financial, operation, compliance and risk management, and
has also assessed the accounting and financial reporting
functions of the Group, estimated the resources and
budgets for training programmes and appraised the staff
members’ respect of

the Group has

qualifications and experience. In
continuing connected transactions,
implemented a series of general management policies
controlled by multiple departments to improve corporate
governance structure and monitor the implementation of
internal control policies, including financial control system,
anti-fraud and legal monitoring system, operations and
compliance management system, risk management and

assessment policies and internal audit rules.

The Board considers that the abovementioned systems are
effective and adequate.

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
comprehensive audits of each department, subsidiary and
member of the Group to facilitate the management’s control
on the assets of the Group. In addition, it offers consulting
services in respect of internal control to each department of
the Group to assist them in optimizing and enhancing the
risk management and internal control systems and the
operating processes. As authorized by the management, the
internal investigation on
internal corruption. For the year ended December 31, 2019,
the internal any
circumstances involving fraud, non-compliance or violation

audit department conducts an

audit department did not discover

against laws, regulations and rules or any material incidents
due to lack of internal control.

The Board considers that the current risk management and
internal control systems cover the existing businesses of the
Group, and will continue to be optimized in line with the
business development of the Group.

In particular, the Board will devote efforts to complying with
the Listing Rules, ensuring compliance with the relevant
laws and regulation and safeguarding the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general
officers, senior management and
handling confidential

guide to the Company’'s Directors,
relevant employees in
information

information, monitoring

disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that

unauthorized access and use of inside information are

strictly prohibited.

The Board of the Company assesses the likely impact of any
unexpected significant event that may impact the price of
the Shares or their trading volume and decides whether the
relevant information is considered as inside information and
needs to be disclosed as soon as practicable pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside
Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO.
Executive Directors and the company secretary are also
responsible for approving certain announcements and/or
circulars to be
delegated by the Board from time to time.

issued by the Company under powers

Mr. So Yiu Fung has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary and an authorized representative with
effect from July 20, 2018.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, Mr. So has
complied with the requirement of taking no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group has not
made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles of
Association.
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To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the re-election of individual
retiring Directors. Except where the chairman, in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
resolutions tabled at the general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

show of hands, all

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are primary forums for communication
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on the
resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed

resolution(s).

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to propose a request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with
the procedures set out in the paragraph below.

resolution may

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one
or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a

proceed to convene such meeting, the

result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board believes that effective communication with
investors is essential for establishing investors’ confidence
and attracting new investors. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables investors to make the
best investment decision.

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. Updated
and key information of the Company is also available on the
Company's website at www.crmedical.hk. The Company also
replied the enquiries from Shareholders timely, if any. The
general meetings of the Company provide an important
channel for communications between the Board and the
Shareholders. The Chairman, as well as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committee and where appropriate, the chairman
of the independent Board Committee, will be available to
answer questions at the general meetings.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or
mentioned above to the following:

requests as

Address:  14/F, Kunlun Center Office Building
No. 9, Fuyi Street
Fengtai District
Beijing, China

Email: ir@crmedical.hk
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Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, aged 64, joined the Group in
August 2018 as an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman. Mr. Wu is a leader in the healthcare industry
and has extensive management experience in medical
system. Mr. Wu joined the board of the Hong Kong Hospital
Authority in 1999 and was formerly its chairman from 2004
to 2013. He has so far been the longest-serving chairman of
the Hospital Authority. He has led the team of the Hospital
Authority to manage all public hospitals and public clinics in
Hong Kong and implemented the public health policy of the
Hong Kong SAR Government. He has also actively promoted
a number of public and private medical co-operation projects
during his tenure. Mr. Wu is currently the principal advisor
to the State Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine
of the People’'s Republic of China, a member of the Chinese
Medicine Reform and Development Advisory Committee. He
was a member of the State Council’'s Medical
Leadership Advisory Committee and an advisor to the Public
Policy Advisory Committee of the National Health and
Family Planning Commission. Other important public
positions that Mr. Wu has served include member of the
12th and 13th Standing Committee of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference National Committee, and a

Reform

member of the Chief Executive’'s Council of Advisers on
Innovation and Strategic Development and the Task Force on
Land Supply of the Hong Kong SAR, and has been awarded
JP and GBS by the government of Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Wu
also served as the chairman of the Chamber Council of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce from 2010 to
2012, is currently a member of
committee. Mr. Wu was a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY")
from 1985 to 2015, and served as chairman of the EY's Far
East Region from 2000 to 2005. He is currently the chief
advisor to MUFG Bank, Ltd., the chairman of The China
Oxford Scholarship Fund,
Faculty of Medicine of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and the Peking Union Medical College Hospital, and an
honorary fellow of the Hong Kong College of Community
Medicine. Mr. Wu also has directorships in certain listed
companies of the Main Board of the Stock Exchange: he is
an independent non-executive director of Power Assets
Holdings Limited (stock code: 006), Guangdong Investment
Limited (stock code: 270), China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 966), Cstone Pharmaceuticals

and its consultation

an honorary professor of the
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(stock code: 2616) and Venus Mecttech (Hangzhou) Inc.
(stock code: 2500). He was an executive director of Sincere
Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444).
an independent non-executive director of Agricultural Bank of
China Limited (stock code: 1288) from 2009 to 2015. He
was also a director of the Fidelity Funds from 2011 to
2014. Mr.
Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
in England and Wales, and the honorary
chairman of the Institute of Certified Management

He was also

Wu is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Accountants
Accountants (Australia) Hong Kong Branch.
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, aged 72, is an independent non-
executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and has been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee on March 23, 2018. He was the
chief executive officer of Pok Oi Hospital, a well-known
non-profit hospital in Yuen Long District, Hong Kong. As the
chief executive officer, Mr. Kwong provided corporate
governance and management support to the board of
directors for development, management and supervision of
these units for the past 10 years, He joined Pok Oi Hospital
as an internal audit manager in 2003. Mr.
Director of Yuen Long District Healthy City Association
Company Limited, a non-profit organization supporting the

Kwong is a

government to promote public healthcare messages to
people in the district. Before joining Pok Oi Hospital, Mr.
of the Audit
Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Kwong served in the Audit
Commission of the Government of Hong Kong since 1980.

Kwong served as the principal auditor

Mr. Kwong has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 1982.
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Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix, aged 38, joined the Group in
August 2015 as an independent non- executive Director and
also a member of the Remuneration Committee, and has
been redesignated as chairman of the Nomination
Committee on March 23, 2018. Mr. Lee is currently a senior
vice president of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“Chow
Tai Fook Enterprises”), responsible for making investments
in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally. He is also a
director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises and a
substantial shareholder of UMP Healthcare Holdings. Mr.
of UMP Healthcare

Holdings (stock code: 722), a leading corporate healthcare

Lee is also an executive director
solutions provider in Hong Kong, where he is responsible
for corporate development, operations and
merger and acquisitions. The Group, through Pinyu, owns
11.99% of UMP Healthcare Holdings. Mr. Lee has over ten
law and finance.

international

years of experience in He was an
associate with the law firm Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
before he left in February 2008 to join UBS AG, Hong Kong
branch as an analyst in the investment banking department
until January 2009. He then joined the investment banking
department of Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong branch and
last held the position of Director in the Corporate Advisory
Group, where he worked from January 2009 to August

2014.

Mr. Lee obtained his bachelor’'s degree in laws from the
London School of Economics and Political Sciences and his
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of
Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004, respectively. He is
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since September
2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts of
England and Wales since February 2013.
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Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy, aged 70, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director from March 23,
2018. Ms. Chiu has years of banking experience in Canada
and the Asia Pacific Region. Ms. Chiu was a senior vice
president at the Republic National Bank of New York and
was responsible for the management and investment of
third party client’s funds. Ms. Chiu has been an associate
and a fellow of the Institute of Canadian Bankers since July
1975 and August 1976 respectively. Ms. Chiu was appointed
as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong government in
July 1992 and as a Cavaliere by the Italian Government in
December 1998. Ms. Chiu
Investments Group Limited and is currently an independent

is the chairman of Prime

non-executive director of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8200) and CPM Group Limited (stock code:
1932), whose shares are all listed on the Stock Exchange.
She was also an independent non-executive director of
National Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code: 1236)
from 1999 to 2019. Ms. Chiu is licenced to carry out asset
management business under Type 9 regulated activities
under the SFO.
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Mr. Wang Yan, aged 48, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director from November 25, 2016 and a member
of the Audit Committee from December 28, 2016. He
joined China Resources National Corporation in July 1994.
From February 2016, Mr. Wang has been appointed as the
general manager of internal audit department of CR
Holdings. Since August 2014, Mr. Wang has been appointed
as the non-executive director of China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1313), China Resources Gas
Group Limited (stock code: 1193), China Resources Land
Limited (stock code: 1109) and China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 836). From August
2014 to April 2016, Mr. Wang was a non-executive director
of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (stock
code: 291). He was a deputy general manager of Internal
Audit Department of CR Holdings between April 2012 and
February 2016. Mr. Wang was a deputy general manager of
China Resources Gas (Holdings) Limited from September
2007 to April 2012. Mr. Wang was appointed as a director
of China Resources Gas Limited in November 2005. Mr.
Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in economics from the
Finance and Accounting Department, Capital University of
Economics and Business and obtained a master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of South
Australia. Mr. Wang is a qualified PRC Certified Accountant.
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Mr. Song Qing, aged 54, joined the Group in August 2018
as an executive Director and the vice chairman. Mr. Song
holds a bachelor's degree in Chinese medicine from Anhui
University of Traditional Chinese Medicine in Hefei, the PRC,
and obtained his chief pharmacist title from the general
logistics department of the People’s Liberation Army in April
1999. Mr. Song has extensive experiences in corporate
management, and has over 30 years of experience and
sophisticated background in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
Song
Healthcare Group Limited and also takes the role as the
Company’'s vice chairman in order to lead the healthcare
segment of China Resources. The Company believes that
with Mr. Song's extensive experience in corporate
management and mergers and acquisitions, and his deep
understanding of the healthcare industry, he will lead the
Group to promote business development, actively participate
in the reform of state-owned enterprises hospitals,
accelerate the scale expansion plan of the Company, further
leverage advantages of China Resources Group and further
synergize the collaboration between the Company and China
Resources Healthcare Group. Mr. Song was the director of
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (which is
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock
code: 3320) from May 2016 to August 2018, and also its
president from June 2017 to August 2018. Mr. Song was
the director of China Resources Sanjiu Medical &
Pharmaceutical Co Ltd (which is listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange; stock code: 000999).
inspection pharmacist of quality inspection department, a
pharmacist in charge and the director
department, the director of the enterprise management
department and an assistant to president of Shenzhen South
Pharmaceutical Factory, the general manager and chairman
of Shanxi Sanjiu Tongda Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(U= NREIEZEZEFRE ARF]) (currently known as Shanxi
Tongda Pharmaceutical Company Limited (IUFa[RZE EZEG[R
2A])). Mr. Song served as an assistant general manager,
the director of technology center, the director of medical &
pharmaceutical department of Sanjiu Enterprise.

is currently the chairman of China Resources

He also served as an

of production
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Mr. Cheng Libing, aged 55, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Cheng joined the Group in
September 2010 and responsible for daily
operations of the Group. He has been appointed as an

is primarily

executive Director and the vice Chairman in February 2016.
He has also been redesignated as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since August 2018. Mr. Cheng
served as the deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren
Intech Hospital Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (1t R
HEBREBHMERAR) from 2006 to 2008 and the
deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren Intech Hospital
Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Beijing Intech Eye
Hospital Co., Ltd. (Gt REEREIEL AR A F]) and Intech
Medical Chain (3% B &E#H#EME) from 2008 to 2010. From
1999 to 2002, Mr. Cheng has served various positions at
Beijing Kangchen Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (1b 7 F fx B8 &5 5%
BAMRAF]), including assistant to the general manager. Mr.
Cheng also served in various positions such as an attending
doctor at Dongzhimen Hospital Affiliated to Beijing
University of Chinese Medicine (1t & A &2 %5 X 2 f(f & 5 & P9
E&PBt) from 1988 to 1998. Mr. Cheng is currently the
chairman of Beijing Jiangong Hospital Co., Ltd., the
chairman of Runneng Medical Management Co., Ltd., the
chairman and general manager of China Resources Hospital
Ltd.
chairman and general manager of China Resources Hospital
Investment (China) Co., Ltd., and he also director of certain
other subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Cheng received a

Management Consulting Co., and he is also the

bachelor's degree in Clinical Traditional Chinese Medicine
from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (b R A E %K
E) in Beijing in July 1988.
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Ms. Ren Yuan, aged 46, joined the Group in October 2017
Ms.
of the finance

as an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer.
Ren worked as the deputy manager
department of China Resources Microelectronics (Holdings)
Limited (ZEEMEF (ZER) BRAR]) from June 2002 to
December 2006. From February 2004 to February 2010, Ms.
Ren served as the finance director of Wuxi CR Micro-
Assembly Tech., Ltd. (5 ELZEEHF AR AF]). Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Ren worked as the consultancy
and deputy general of the
information management department of China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (%38 (%£&) BFR A 7)) since March 2010.
Ms. Ren obtained her master’'s degree in accounting from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong (B X KEZ) in
December 2007. Ms. Ren obtained the qualifications of
China Certified Public Accountant (FEzEf&5TA0) and
China Certified Public Valuer (7 B & EFHEAD) in
December 1998 and September 1999 respectively.

general director director

Ms. Fu Yanjun,
executive Director on October 12, 2017. Ms. Fu joined the
Group in December 2014 and has been appointed as the

aged 40, has been appointed as an

deputy general manager of the Company since December
2016. She is currently the chairman of the board of Beijing
Wanrong Yikang Pharmaceutical Company Limited (1t &8
EFEEZARAA) and Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical
Equipment Company Limited (It REEEHEER=MAR QD
A]), which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
and the chairman of the youth committee of the Group. Ms.
Fu previously served as the managing director of strategic
investment department of the Company. Ms. Fu has been
appointed as a supervisor of Beijing Jingkelong Company
Limited (stock code: 814) since May 2017. Ms. Fu also
worked for Ernst & Young Hua Ming from September 2002
to October 2010 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.
from October 2010 to December 2014. Ms. Fu obtained a
bachelor's degree in accounting from Renmin University of
China (Bl AR AZ) in July 2002 and obtained the
qualification of China Certified Public Accountant (5T fff}
& 5HAf) in May 2008.
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Mr. Xu Zechang, aged 57, is the Executive President of the
Company. Mr. Xu joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Xu
served as an executive Director of the Company from
September 2013 to November 2016 and from December
2016 to October 2017. He also served as the executive
dean of Yan Hua Hospital (1t #{EEFT) from May 2007 to
December 2010 and the vice dean of Beijing Jian Gong
Hospital Co., Ltd. (bR = ERAR A A from May 2005
to May 2007. Mr. Xu has experience as an attending doctor,
vice director doctor, vice director of the cardiology
department and an acting director
department at the General Hospital of China PLA Beijing
Military Region (FEIARBNEIL R F R 42EP), a Grade I
general hospital, from 1991 to 2003, and a resident doctor
at the General Hospital of the People’'s Liberation Army of
China (FEI AR MEH L), the largest Grade Il general
hospital affiliated to the People’s Liberation Army of China,

from 1984 to 1991.

of the cardiology

Mr. Xu attended the Military Medical School of People's
Liberation Army of China (FBIARMBMEEFEEEBER) in
Beijing in July 2006 and July 1991 respectively to study
medicine. He obtained his bachelor's degree in military
surgeon from Southern Medical University (FJ5 2Rl AE2)
(formerly known as First Military Medical University of
People’s Liberation Army of China (FEIARMEMEE —F 2
KE) in Guangzhou in July 1984.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

BEBEBLE 575 ARFRMITHAE - R
AR2004F3AMAREE © 1REEM2013
F9A £2016%F 11 A %2016F 128 £2017
FI0ABMETARRMITES - 52007
FHHE2010F 12 A EFEIL AL BITA
#}17BT & %2005 5 A £2007F5 A EF
RmiEERARARNERE - HREED
1991 F £ 2003 F BIETFPFRHARBHEIL R
BRABER(—R=ZFHFEER) DARER
BAD - BIEEEBMAMBEIEEARKREEF -
TE1984F E19914F « HRITERFBIA RN
BEHBER (BBRTPEARBHRENZA=

MER A B M EBTEEAD o

%A BRI 20067 A F199147 A E 4L
AMPEARBREERESEREER
Flo L EM1984F7TAREMNESRE HE
BRB(RIBAPEAREREE —EBARZE)

B LB -



Mr. Wu Xinchun, aged 49, is the vice president of the
Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as the vice president of
the Company in December 2018. From September 2016 to
2018, Mr.
chairman of China Resources Wugang Medical Management
Company Limited. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wu
was the director of technology management department and

November Wu served as the director and

technology innovation department of Wugang Group, steel
smelting factory’s deputy general manager and the general
manager of innovation and innovation department, general
manager of Wugang Modern City Services Group*, chairman
of Wugang CR Gas*, general manager of Wuhan Yangtze
River Water*, assistant to general manager of China Baowu
Wugang Group* from September 2001 to November 2018.
He also served as deputy secretary general of China lron
and Steel Industry Association. He was the independent
director of Kingray New Materials Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. (a company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600390). Mr. Wu was granted the title of senior
engineer at a professor level from Titles Evaluation
Committee of Hubei Province and obtained his doctor’s
degree from Wuhan University of Technology in December

2009 and June 2012, respectively.

Mr. Zhou Hang, aged 52, is the assistant president of the
Company. He joined the Company in August 2012 and was
appointed as the assistant president of the Company in
October 2018. Mr. Zhou served various positions in the
hospitals or companies affiliated to the Company, such as
the general manger of Jian Gong Hospital,
Mentougou Hospital and general manager of Central and

dean of

Southern China Department of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Zhou was the assistant manager of
general manager office of China International Cooperation
Company For Agriculture, Livestock and Fishery and deputy
director of logistics department of Beijing New Oriental
School. Mr.
Finance and Economics, majoring in audit.

Zhou graduated from Tianjin University of
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Mr. Du Lin, aged 40, is the chief general counsel and board
secretary of the Company. Mr. Du Lin joined the Company
in March 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Du was
the legal counsel on PRC law, senior legal counsel and chief
legal counsel of legal department of China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. from October 2008 to March 2018. Mr.
Du graduated from China University of Political Science and
Law with a doctor's degree in Law in 2008. He also
graduated from University of Leicester in the United
Kingdom with a master's degree in law in 2005 and
graduated from West China University of Medical Sciences
(currently known as West China Faculty of Medical
Sciences, Sichuan University) with a bachelor's degree in
medicine in 2002.
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To the shareholders of China Resources Medical
Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 106 to 259, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and
the consolidated statement of profit or
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

loss, the

ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

and have been
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"),
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

and we have fulfilled our other ethical

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements section of our

consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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Key audit matter

HEESEE

BYRBENRE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEHEESPROAEHHN

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

BERABRIEHFHEREEZHETFE
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives as at 31 December 2019 were
RMB1,463,611,000 and RMB1,844,203,000,
respectively. The impairment tests performed by
management regarding the cash-generating units
("CGUs") involved significant judgement for the
determination of the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs.

MR2019F12 A EEENAERAERAFH I ELE
ENRAARK,463,611,000 K AR
1,844,203,0007T - ERERREeELELML ([REEE
B ETRREARSMAET R EEBELAA
Y [0 & %8 1E B K ) o

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude,
the complexity, and the management’s estimates
involved in the impairment testing. The accounting
policies and related disclosures are included in
notes 2.4, 3, 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ERNRERR S ROEE BB R B GE
WHERARESFE - SRR MEEARBERRNES
s HmERNE2.4 -3 17K18°

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives included:

BB ELRABRAERAFR BV EE ZBER
HFTEAITIR P 815 -

o Evaluating the independent valuers’
competence, objectivity and qualifications;

o FEBUMGMEMZBERS) FEUEREE:

o Involving our internal valuation specialists to
assess the discount rate applied underpinning
the discounted cash flow models by
performing re-calculations based on market
data and certain company specific parameters,
as well as evaluating the reasonableness of
parameters applied by the independent
valuers;

e EAMEEERR  BREMBEELE TR
T2 BTENMEE LA RESRER
REFTAMARE - WA BB (EEMTAZ28H
M

° Evaluating the reasonableness of other key
assumptions, such as growth rate and inputs
included in the financial forecast, by
comparing to historical performance and
industry data;

o  HIBERBRRITHEEE - U EMBIENA
Hith F 2RBOINBREUARBAENSIRN

o Performing sensitivity analysis and evaluating
the adequacy of disclosures of impairment

assessment.
o  ETHRENMUAKEREN G HENTE
M o
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

information.

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
responsibility read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit

statements, our is to

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

ERFESFHEMERAR - EMEEE
BRHEREERESANGEES - BFEESEE
MR LRI L BB RS -

BB GEAVHREANERL NREEME
B BATA T HZEEMEERREMER
HEERE 4o o

FBARMYERA P BEHRROBT > RMANE
TEMEEMES  El@iEh  ZRHEM
EERBDEGAVBHRRIRMAEZTTBE
FAEBENER FEEARBAEUTFHE
BERERRANBER - ERHAEHITHT
5 MREMBREMEEFEEKRERR
- BPFEREZEE -EEE - M
BRBEERRE -

ERREFAAEREER S ENESS
M BB B 7 5 D) R BB A Bl &
PDBBEERERBREM T 5 HKE TS
BE - UHHERS/ESEMBHRERNEE
PEEBRREFREER M E M E R RR
AAATHENABIEFES -

ERBEEMBEHRRE  EFR AN
SEBELENRES  YEBERBERN THKE
HEEQERBNTR  URERFERLE
SEtER - KRIF EAREFAER B
SEBRYFILLE IR EEMERA
(W

s

R

S

m D

EZZEgmY EQREFETRE B
B EEENMBERERE-



Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery,
the override of internal control.

risk of not detecting a material

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

in the circumstances,

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BYRBENRE
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Tsz Tat.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBRE®MR

Year ended 31 December 2019 # £ 2019F 12 A31HIEFE

REVENUE g %5 5 2,115,320 2,059,478
Cost of sales 85 & B AR (1,353,029)  (1,302,800)
Gross profit E7 762,291 756,678
Other income HEagA 6 75,270 72,910
Other gains and losses, net Hb s RS -
F R 7 (26,562) (11,176)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (16,135) (19,888)
Administrative expenses THEA (237,434) (203,542)
Finance costs B 75 & A 9 (16,942) (7,701)
Impairment losses PBEERERE -
on financial assets, net ikl (1,577) (65)
Other expenses HEMER (2,258) (420)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAEFE R EE -
A joint venture —EEEAd 4,502 2,093
Associates iR /NE] 144 54
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5 B0 ) B 8 541,299 588,943
Income tax expense Frig®i & A 12 (140,665) (149,387)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F [ZFE 400,634 439,556
Attributable to: FEAh -
Owners of the parent ISYNCIETEE PN 390,865 430,898
Non-controlling interests JEVE RS HE 9,769 8,658
400,634 439,556
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &R a]E@mAAEZR
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BB AEGEER
THE PARENT BH 14
Basic (RMB yuan) EXR(AR%TT) 0.31 0.34
Diluted (RMB yuan) e (AR%IT) 0.31 0.34

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEBRARR

Year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F12 A31HIEFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F [ F)E 400,634 439,556
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hib2mEKA
(LOSS) (E18)
Other comprehensive income that may REZHMKeE
be reclassified to profit or loss in FoBEBERN
subsequent periods: HEf2mEBA :
Share of other comprehensive income FEAE —EE &
of an associate AR ZEA
ZEKA — 1,108
Other comprehensive loss that will not ~REZHMETS
be reclassified to profit or loss in B0 BEEES
subsequent periods: I E M2 EE -
Remeasurement losses on defined FE @A E 28
benefit plan BHGEEE 35 (1,658) —
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FRNEMEE
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX WA (1) -
R IE (1,658) 1,108
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR & EZ2MmA 4258
THE YEAR 398,976 440,664
Attributable to: FEfh -
Owners of the parent (SY/NECIEZFE PN 389,539 432,006
Non-controlling interests FEVR RS ME S 9,437 8,658
398,976 440,664
ERBERERERLAT —T LW

C N
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31 December 2019 72019412 A31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Prepaid land lease payments

Goodwill

ERBEE
W B R
EREEE
+ iR E T B
T

Other intangible assets

Investment in a joint venture

Investments in associates

Receivables from invest-
operate-transfer (“IOT")
hospitals

Loan to a sponsored hospital
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
("FVTPL")

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories
Trade receivables
Contract assets

Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables
Due from related parties
Financial assets at FVTPL

Certificate of deposit

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Contract liabilities
Due to related parties

Payables to hospitals sponsored

by the Group (the
“Sponsored Hospitals”)

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Lease liabilities

Tax payables

Hi\E & E
R—EeErmzikE
REEE R A2 RE
KEKRE — 28 —BX

(0T J) BB z e Y 3R IR

e — R R At 8 B AR (L O B K
NAREBEFEBEZEHE

AIB (AT AR EEE
ERHFE T AEX])
TEMEE
HibIERBEE

FRBDEELR
mBEE

e

U B 5 IR

BHEE
BENRIE - RES M EM
& Y 5K IR

& Uk B Bt 05 kIR
RonBEAEARSE
AAABRZERMEE
17 B RE
ReMREEEY

BB EARR

mBBE

EATE 5308
E {18 (4 OB R 3B D
AtB &

B BB 5 308

R ARE R

B0 ([EMEER)
e

HBRTER

HEAE
REH &

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

mE) A B
mEBEEFE
BEERRBEE

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

Notes

B &E

15
16(b)
16(a)

17

18

19

20

21
22

23
24

25
26
27

28
44

23
29
29

30
31
32
44

33

34
16(c)

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETT

181,375
156,050
1,463,611
2,035,762
513,028
151

80,979
55,062

113,485
76,269

4,675,772

62,121
618,698
12,120

219,783
9,384

244,769

25,114
2,006,220

3,198,209
241,303
247,454

4,666
4,843

255,571

578,337
5,286
46,795

1,384,255

1,813,954

6,489,726

2018

20184
RMB’000
AREEF T

259,363

136,970
1,463,611
2,095,640

508,526

23,741

108,974
52,687

136,744

4,786,256

77,885
498,506
9,464

44,294
6,039

315,000

57,863
1,524,176

2,533,227
224,082
220,170

12,754
3,247

254,876

490,672

71,472
1,277,273

1,255,954

6,042,210



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR |

31 December 2019 72019412 A31H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EmBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(c) 13,597 —
Retirement benefit obligations RINEFEE 35 18,120 16,017
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 36 317,834 316,374
Total non-current liabilities ERBAEERE 349,551 332,391
Net assets BEFE 6,140,175 5,709,819
EQUITY W
Equity attributable to owners B AREZSA A
of the parent JE {5 7 2=
Share capital A& A 37 267 267
Reserves E] 39 5,903,433 5,589,231
5,903,700 5,589,498
Non-controlling interests JEIE R FE e 236,475 120,321
Total equity B 6,140,175 5,709,819
Cheng Libing Ren Yuan
R E &=
Director Director
o BZE
EPEERERERAT — =T L5

X
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EREEBBRE

Year ended 31 December 2019 # %= 2019412 A31H L5 &

N

n
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GEREREBHR

Year ended 31 December 2019 £ 2019612 A31HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profits and losses of
associates and a joint venture

Interest and investment income
Dividend income on financial
assets at FVTPL

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Loss on liquidation of an
associate

Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment,
net

Fair value losses/(gains) on
financial assets at FVTPL

Foreign exchange differences,
net

Equity-settled share-based
payment expense, net

Impairment losses on financial
assets, net

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in contract
assets

Decrease/(increase) in
prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Decrease/(increase) in amounts
due from related parties

Increase/(decrease) in trade
payables

Increase in other payables and
accruals

Increase/(decrease) in contract
liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in amounts
due to related parties
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Notes
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2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETT

541,299
16,942
(4,646)

(64,984)

(525)
38,983

5,911
18,750

118

795

13,491
12,158
13,083

1,577

592,952
15,764
(120,973)

(2,656)

1,068
(3,347)
17,221
28,273
(8,088)

1,596

2018
20184
RMB’000
AREEF T

588,943
7,701
(2,147)
(66,423)
(2,319)

48,589

SESYS

21,024

(2,355)

1,560

(4,992)
16,963
(5,314)

65

604,670
(37,287)
(200,904)

33,159

(532)
82,889
(32,912)
38,505

7,570

(4,013)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERTREHR

Year ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F12 A31HIEFE

Cash generated from operations KEFMEARSRE 521,810 491,145
Interest received B UFI B 8,124 5,690
Income tax paid BEFTEHE (163,882) (162,689)
Net cash flows from operating KEERBFERERE
activities JFRE 366,052 334,146
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING & EEFBFMBRETE
ACTIVITIES
Investment income on financial BUAREEFEAAEY
assets at FVTPL Bt ABZNEMEE
ZRERA 44,279 44,611
Dividends received from financial ENAARBEAEEEE
asset at FVTPL it AERNERMEE
WER 2 B B 525 2,319
Purchases of items of property, WEWE  BERK
plant and equipment THH (36,365) (57,607)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEWE  ME KL&E
property, plant and equipment BB Fr5 5B 3,710 2,857
Purchases of financial assets at BEUNAAEBAEFEAHR
FVTPL SEGABRNES
BE (5,635,000) (4,623,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial EEUAABEAEAH
assets at FVTPL FHT ABENS R
BEMSHRIE 5,715,000 4,973,506
Purchases of certificates of BETAE
deposit (52,174) (227,638)
Proceeds from redemption of BEFRBMENRIEA
certificates of deposit 84,923 225,201
Payments to an |OT hospital under  |OTZHE FAIOT 5B 15 3K
an |OT arrangement = (300)
Repayment from |OT hospitals REIOTERR 28R 9,022 15,639
Investments in associates HEERRINIEE = (4)
Proceeds from liquidation of an Bt N RBEE TS RIA
associate 23,619 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary W ig— B A A 47(p) (300) (2,656)
Disposal of a subsidiary BE—EHBAR 47(c) - 2,495
Net cash flows from investing REFHFABRERE
activities FEE 157,239 355,423
EPEERERERAT — =T L5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n_\éIﬁlﬁﬁiiﬁ%

Year ended 31 December 2019 & E201912 A31H L FE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from award of shares

MERDAERERE
B BT 8l 2R AR (0

under the Share Award Scheme B T 15 3IE 42,985 —
Purchases of shares for the Share BB %) BB 8108 1H

Award Scheme = (213,947)
Advance from the Sponsored 1 52 3 4 B2 B A B

Hospitals 41(b) 695 =
Repayment to the Sponsored ) 22 9% 1 B8 B 32 K

Hospitals 41(b) — (42)
New bank borrowings FIR1TE K 41(b) 92,941 303,606
Repayment of bank borrowings IRITIERMER 41(b) (17,156) —
Principal portion of lease MENZTOEREEH D

payments 41(b) (2,733) =
Capital contributions by non- R EIEE

controlling shareholders 1,289 1,000
Capital contribution by a related —BE R EE

party 266 1,139
Dividend paid BRI S (131,487) (118,566)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ST T IR AR R 2 BR B

shareholders (10,933) (11,109)
Interest paid B FE (16,833) (6,800)
Net cash flows used in financing BMERFMARSRE

activities FRE (40,966) (44,719)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND Re kB EEYIEM

CASH EQUIVALENTS e 482,325 644,850
Cash and cash equivalents at FUReRFASEEY

beginning of year 1,524,176 877,054
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXRFE T B FE

changes, net (281) 2,272
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRBEMEASEEY

AT END OF YEAR 2,006,220 1,524,176

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019



China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office of the
Company is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, PO Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-
1002, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business
of the Company in Mainland China is located at 14/F,
Kunlun Center Office Building No. 5, Courtyard No. 9,
Fuyi Street, Fengtai District, Beijing, the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC").

During the vyear, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "“Group”) were mainly
engaged in the provision of general healthcare
services, hospital management services, group
purchasing organisation (“GPQO"”) business and other
hospital-derived services in Mainland China.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at FVTPL which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

Amendments to Prepayment Features with
IFRS 9 Negative Compensation
IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment

IAS 19 or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
IAS 28 Associates and Joint
Ventures
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
Annual Amendments to IFRS 3,
Improvements to [FRS 11, IAS 12 and |IAS 23
IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

Except for the amendments to IFRS 9 and Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are
not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and

revised IFRSs are described below:

B BIRR B 5 3R & R B9 2 B 7] &
(BB B 73R &5 2RI 2015 F £ 2017 F /Y
FRUE)(EFERAE B M ERKRILD
) S - FEH RS T R B i 3R 5
EREE R ERAT

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under
IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17.
Lessors continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles
as in IAS 17. IFRS 16 did not have any significant
impact on leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method with the date of
initial application of 1 January 2019. Under this
method, the standard has been applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 January
2019, and the comparative information for 2018
was not restated and continued to be reported
under IAS 17 and related interpretations.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys a right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct
the use of the identified asset. The Group
elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to
contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified as
leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not
reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease
under IFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts
entered into or changed on or after 1 January
2019.

Bt 35 SRR BT
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for office
properties. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the
Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except
for two elective exemptions for leases of low-
value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis)
and leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing from
1 January 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-
of-use assets and interest accrued on the
outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were
recognised based on the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.
The right-of-use assets were measured at the
amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before 1 January
2019.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

Impact on transition (continued)

All these assets were assessed for any
impairment based on |IAS 36 on that date. The
Group elected to present the right-of-use assets

separately in the statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective
practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 at 1
January 2019:

o Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within
the date of

12 months from initial

application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to
extend/terminate the lease

B ERARMEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.2 St BEES BRI E @)
AND DlSCLOSURES (continued)

(a) (continued) (a) ()
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 201915 1A B &
The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 R2019% 1 A 1 BEM BRI 75 5R
as at 1 January 2019 was as follows: FEEBFB1REENTENT -

Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets FRAEEEEM 140,483
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments TEA b 7 & A OB (140,345)
Increase in total assets 4B & EE N 138
Liabilities afE
Increase in lease liabilities and increase in HEaELIINFE S FEIE N

total liabilities 138

122 China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1

January 2019

reconciled to the operating lease commitments as

at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

B ERARMEE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

22 ST HREHREE @

(a

) &)
2019415 1H B 51 7 57 £ ()

MR2019FE1ATRHEEBEEAR
2018412 A31 AR LT EHAIE
HERMOT ¢

H20185F12 831 H 2 & &

Operating lease commitments as at

31 December 2018 HERIE 5,478
Less: Commitments relating to short-term B BEEEEENHBT
leases and those leases with a FAEHMN2019F12 4
remaining lease term ended on or 31HFKZ AL R
before 31 December 2019 MHEAE (3,195)
Commitments relating to leases of FHAREEEEHEN
low-value assets AIE (2,136)
147
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate 201941 81 H K& F1H
as at 1 January 2019 S B E 4.75%
Discounted operating lease commitments 420191810 WELE
and lease liabilities as at REFERERTEEAE
1 January 2019 138
EPERERERAT — = N4k 128
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Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity
method is applied and does not include long-term
interests that in substance form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than
IAS 28, including the impairment requirements
under IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term
interests. IAS 28 is then applied to the net
investment, which includes the long-term
interests, only in the context of recognising
losses of an associate or joint venture and
impairment of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture. The amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of
IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”).The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable
profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv)
how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. The interpretation did not have
any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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Amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting for
a defined benefit plan when a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement occurs during a
reporting period. The amendments specify that
when a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement occurs during the annual reporting
period, an entity is required to (i) determine
current service cost for the remainder of the
period after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement using the actuarial assumptions used
to remeasure the net defined benefit liability or
asset reflecting the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after that event, and (ii)
determine net interest for the remainder of the
period after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement using the net defined benefit liability
or asset, reflecting the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after that event and the
discount rate used to remeasure that net defined
benefit liability or asset.

The amendments also clarify that an entity first
determines any past service cost, or a gain or
loss on settlement, without considering the effect
of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in
profit or loss. An entity then determines the
effect of the asset ceiling after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any
change in that effect, excluding amounts included
in net interest, is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to Definition of a Business'

IFRS 3

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 9, IAS 39 Reform’
and IFRS 7

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets

IFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
IAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture®
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to Definition of Material'

IAS 1 and IAS 8
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
IAS 1 Current or Non-current®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

g Effective for annual periods beginning an or after
1 January 2022

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.
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Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to transactions or other events that occur
on or after the date of first application, the Group will
not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
period of uncertainty before the replacement of an
existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and a joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associates or joint venture, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.
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If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. \Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

The Group measures its financial assets at FVTPL at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets and financial
assets), the asset’'s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’'s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.
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A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);
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(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms and
10%

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

20% to 50%

Medical equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings
and related leasehold improvements under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The operating rights are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful economic lives of
16 to 48 years.

Sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite
useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The GSP Licence is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its estimated useful economic life of 19 months.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.
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The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets. At inception or on reassessment of
a contract that contains a lease component and non-
lease components, the Group adopts the practical
expedient not to separate non-lease components and
to account for the lease component and the associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.
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(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income.
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Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’'s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’'s business
model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
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The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
model are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet
the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is
not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’'s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or
effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s
own equity instruments.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to disposal.
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’'s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.
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When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to be that which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one vyear, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a)  Provision of general healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of in-patient services
is recognised over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time when the
services are provided.
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(b)

(c)

(a)

Provision of hospital management services

Revenue from the provision of hospital
management services is recognised over time
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the

Group.

The service fees are calculated based on pre-set
formulas set out in the arrangements and certain
service fees are subject to limitations primarily
relating to the 10T hospitals’
Hospitals' net income before tax (W% 4 &r) and/
or the performance rating assessments of the
Group. Such service fees are accounted for

and Sponsored

variable consideration and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of such service
fees because this method best predicts the
amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

GPO business

Revenue from the sale of merchandises, such as
pharmaceuticals,
consumables, which is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer,

medical devices and medical

generally on delivery of the
merchandises.

Provision of other hospital-derived services

Revenue from the provision of other hospital-
derived services is recognised at the point in
time when the consultation reports are issued to
the customer.
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Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Bt 35 SRR BT

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

H & WA TR 49 HA 1 322 s ] £ ) B 22 T

27
TN

MBUWA - ABBRF R RIZ BT E 2R
R AR R T AR FHRERH
A (2038 ) % i 5 R R 3R & WK R 7
MEEZSREEREFENE -

P B AT BT B SR I P B 6 By T
R B SBRNLENRRATGEER
AREE - X HERB A SRS R] i

5o

BHEERAKERATFRIAKE
EEENE MR ERER -
MRASEEBER P T HEREL
R AR EFEEEmEREAT - Al
KA HNEERRSAE GRIFRRIEE -
BHMEERZETRENE - EFAE
EEEEEREERENSFTEES -

EHERERERAA



5ot 75 0 2% B o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related
goods or services to the customer).

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of
the revenue to which the asset related is recognised.
Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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The Company operates a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’'s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.
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For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms
of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and share
awards is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Bt 35 SRR BT

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

AEBRIFFR AR E LB TSR
& —TRE B FR B R TE R R IKAE
MEtBl(TREEAE))  HEER2
MBS EMEE2 M - BRAHEKTS
RGBTSR SRR - RIBEEBEXR
HEeWXBEOLFE - WRBRNE
RIBE R - BB S EEHIEL
EENESEAREEESFRTE - K
SEEETHARABRESF SIELHE
AEEHEETEE -

AEBETEANMELNNBARNE
THAZNHAERHRFEEN P RE
EEAtE c BREEMBARKHETE
BMAN—ELPIXMeh RELZ S
g HRRBEPRAEZEFENREE
BNRERRBHRR

EHERERERAA



5ot 75 0 2% B o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan.
The benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension
plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability) and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at
the earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment;
and

o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss by
function:

o service costs comprising current service costs,
past-service costs, gains and losses on

curtailments and non-routine settlements

o net interest expense or income
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Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company's memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

These financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.
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The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.
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In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

The Group entered into a series of IOT agreements
with certain not-for-profit hospitals and their sponsors
in which the Group agrees to make investments to the
hospitals and/or the sponsors to improve the medical
facilities of the hospitals in exchange for the right to
manage and operate the hospitals and receive
performance-based management fees for periods
ranging from 16 to 48 years. The operating rights are
expected to be transferred back to the hospitals or
their sponsors after the end of these periods.

Management assessed whether or not the Group has
control over these not-for-profit hospitals through the
IOT agreements and whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the hospitals’ relevant
activities unilaterally. In making that judgement,
management considered the composition of the
internal governance bodies and certain committees
which oversee the operations of the hospitals. After
assessment, management concluded that the Group
does not obtain the decision making power under
these bodies and committees to direct the relevant
activities of the hospitals and the Group does not
control these hospitals. Instead, these |IOT agreements
are considered management contracts to generate
management service income.
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The Group acquired the sponsorship rights from other
parties and became the sponsor of certain not-for
profit hospitals. The Group also entered into a series of
service contracts with those not-for-profit hospitals in
which the Group agrees to provide management
services to the hospitals and receive management
fees. According to the service contracts, the
management fees to be received by the Group shall be
comprised of supply chain management service fees
and hospital management fees. The supply chain
management service fees were based on certain
percentage of the procurement of the hospitals
whereas the hospital management service fees were
based on certain percentages of the revenue and net
income before tax (Y32 4 &) generated by the
hospitals.

Management assessed whether or not the Group has
control over these not-for-profit hospitals through the
sponsorship rights and service contracts and whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the
hospitals’ relevant activities unilaterally. In making that
judgement, management considered the composition
of the internal governance bodies and certain
committees which oversee the operations of the
hospitals. After assessment, management concluded
that the Group does not obtain the decision making
power under these bodies and committees to direct
the relevant activities of the hospitals and the Group
does not control these hospitals. Instead, these service
contracts are considered contracts to generate service
income.
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of goodwill was RMB1,463,611,000 (2018:
RMB1,463,611,000). Further details are given in note
17.
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The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the healthcare sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in note 26 and note 27 to
the financial statements, respectively.
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The Group’'s management estimates the useful lives of
the sponsorship rights and service contracts of the
hospitals are indefinite. This estimate is based on an
analysis of all of the relevant factors, such as the
expected useful life of similar nature and functions, the
period of control over the right and legal or similar
limits on the use of the rights (including the ability to
renew the service contracts upon their maturity
through the sponsorship rights to appoint
representatives in the board of trustees of the
Sponsored Hospitals), and the useful life is dependent
on the operation periods of the hospitals. Based on
this analysis, the Group’s management considers there
is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
right is expected to generate net cash inflows for the
Group.

The carrying amounts of the sponsorship rights and
service contracts are reviewed to assess whether their
recoverable amounts have declined below their carrying
amounts annually. The recoverable amount is
determined based on the cash-generating unit to which
the sponsorship rights and service contracts have been
allocated, which is the higher of the value in use and
fair value less costs of disposals. The impairment
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit, which has taken into account the estimation of
expected future cash flows of service contracts, and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised to
write the assets down to its recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the
sponsorship rights and service contracts was
RMB1,844,203,000 (2018: RMB1,728,026,000). Further
details are given in note 18.
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Certain of the Group’s hospital management services
contain variable consideration. The relevant service
fees are recognised based on pre-set formulas set out
in the arrangements and subject to limitations primarily
relating to the |OT hospitals’" and Sponsored Hospitals’
net income before tax (UZ# %) and/or the
performance rating assessments of the Group. Where
the finalised net income before tax (WX 458%) are
more or less than expected, or the finalised
performance ratings of the Group are higher or lower
than expected, the difference between the finalised
revenue and the estimated revenue is recognised in
profit or loss.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  For-profit hospitals — this segment engages in the
provision of out-patient and in-patient services;

(b)  Sponsored hospitals — this segment engages in
the provision of services to the Sponsored
Hospitals;

(c) 1OT/operate-transfer (“OT") hospitals — this
segment engages in the provision of services to
IOT hospitals and an OT hospital; and

(d) Others — this segment engages in the provision
of services to other kinds of clients.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

AEEETBRERREEEITERE
B RIR PR B8 e B IR AR 16 9 AR 75 B HE 1T (i
it o HMERBEDREBELZHEMSATEER
NEREXBEREEEBIOTER K8
3% B8 B B4 Al Llﬂl)\/%‘gﬁ(uﬁlif Eer) &
AR ERREFRT o ZEBATHA
FEE (W4 ’E@*)KEAEJZJ RIBEA A
SERBEFTHRNIERTESR - R
TFE%?%HQ@E@%EN&?&E’\J%%ﬁﬁ’t‘?ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ

_ﬂ
at ©

IR E M) - A E IR IR AR 2
BB - A T E RS S
#

(@) =ZRIMEBE — RO RPEEREH
BEYEI v

(b) EfiERER — ZOHE
#j#*%ﬁlg?ﬂ?ﬂ{f/\ i% ;

(c) 10T/& & B2 ([0T]) Bk
—%"*Mﬁ%ﬁ IOT &P &2 —FA
Bl iR HERS : &

(d) Hfh — ZoEIEEREMER
BEPRER -



Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
facilitating decision-making process of resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measurement of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss
before tax except that share of profits and losses of a
joint venture and associates, fair value gains/losses on
financial assets at FVTPL, dividend income on financial
assets at FVTPL, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, loss
on liguidation of an associate, investment income on
financial assets at FVTPL, unallocated interest and
investment income, impairment losses on financial
assets, net, equity-settled share-based payment
expense, net, finance costs, foreign exchange
differences, net, as well as other unallocated income,
other unallocated administrative expenses, other
unallocated expenses and losses are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, interests in
associates, financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances
and certificate of deposit and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
changed the internal reporting structure for making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Accordingly, the amounts previously
reported under the reportable operating segments have
been reorganised to conform with the current year's
presentation.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results, and assets and liabilities by reportable and
operating segments.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)

Segment revenue and

results

ReEqsPER @

7B U = I R AE

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019%12H8318 1

FE
External revenues SNEBUL Z
General healthcare services REBERY 721,055 - - — 721,055
Hospital management services B EERY — 134,029 98,600 — 232,629
Third-party supply chain service E=FREERGE
fees 23,077 100,164 91,610 = 214,851
GPO business GPO#7% — 191,919 716,891 = 908,810
Other hospital-derived services H B B 0T A AR TS = - - 37,975 37,975
Inter-segment revenue el E
GPO business GPO%7% 199,867 — — — 199,867
Other hospital-derived services HAth B8 B OT £ IR TS 475 = = 661 1,136
Segment revenue 2 HpUER 944,474 426,112 907,101 38,636 2,316,323
Eliminations Eiigic! (200,342) - - (661) (201,003)
Consolidated revenue mEWE 744,132 426,112 907,101 37,975 2,115,320
Segment cost BB AN (551,995) (173,902) (607,856) (19,276) (1,353,029)
Other income N 1,655 - 10,206 4,584 16,445
Other losses H b Esia (790) - - - (790)
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHER (2,412) (4,389) (8,924) (25)  (15,750)
Administrative expenses T E R (65,043) (6,715)  (20,298) (7,059) (99,115)
Other expenses EMER (836) - - (1,125) (1,961)
Segment results D EPELE 124,711 241,106 280,229 15,074 661,120
Share of profit of a joint venture Efh—REE&%RaFE 4,502
Share of profits of associates FE (LBt & R B A 144
Fair value losses on financial assets MARAEEFEBEE
at FVTPL AABRNEREE
AR EEERE (13,491)
Dividend income on financial asset BEAAREBEFEEHR
at FVTPL BHTABROSH
BERBRZKRE 525
Loss on liquidation of an associate —MBE QR EEREE (118)
Investment income on financial LARBEFEBEEES
assets at FVTPL FFABRNEREE
#E W 44,279
Unallocated interest and investment k7 Fe Fll B K 4% & U A
income 10,499
Impairment losses on financial CREERESRFE
assets, net (1,577)
Equity-settled share-based payment  LAMEZS 45 &A% 15 4 2B 2
expense (13,083)
Finance costs B 75 & A (16,942)
Foreign exchange differences, net [E 1855558 (12,158)
Other unallocated income Hib R D BULA 3,522
Other unallocated losses HARDBEERE (5)
Other unallocated administrative EMARSBETHRER
expenses (125,621)
Other unallocated expenses Hth R D EREZ (297)
Profit before tax BATFE 541,299
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MR R

4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and

Year ended 31 December 2018

results (continued)

B E2018512A31H L
FE

4,

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

EE D BER @

TEPU R R EE )

External revenues ijﬁﬂﬁlé
General healthcare services REBERS 712,607 = = — 712,607
Hospital management services B EIERS — 101,475 98,926 — 200,401
Third-party supply chain service E=RHEHERGE
fees 25,081 117,618 109,268 — 251,967
GPO business GPOX7 = 81,403 782,571 — 863,974
Other hospital-derived services EH M ERITERB = = = 30,529 30,529
Inter-segment revenue 7 BB U &
GPO business GPO %7 194,846 = = — 194,846
Other hospital-derived services E h B8 B 0T A R TS 725 = = 334 1,059
Segment revenue o EpURE= 933,259 300,496 990,765 30,863 2,255,383
Eliminations Eiigic (195,5671) — — (334) (195,905)
Consolidated revenue mEWE 737,688 300,496 990,765 30,529 2,059,478
Segment cost DEHRA (553,608)  (76,644) (652,189)  (20,359) (1,302,800)
Other income =R PN 1,916 — 13,747 — 15,663
Other losses HiEsE (1,472) = = = (1,472)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (3,407) (2,314)  (14,088) (79)  (19,888)
Administrative expenses THER (74,136) (7,395)  (19,495) (2,954) (103,980)
Other expenses HhEA (103) = = (136) (239)
Segment results DEPELE 106,878 214,143 318,740 7,001 646,762
Share of profit of a joint venture FEE—RE& % RRFE 2,093
Share of profits of associates FE (B & N R FE 54
Fair value gains on financial assets LWAREEFEBHES
at FVTPL ARG ERMEE
AR EEYE 4,992
Dividend income on financial asset BUARAREBEFZEE
at FVTPL B ABRNSR
BERIMZBE 2,319
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MHB AR Z kS 2,355
Unallocated interest and investment k7 Fid #ll 8 K 3% & W A
income 52,676
Impairment losses on financial CREERERIEFE
assets, net (65)
Equity-settled share-based payment  BDAMEZS &5 & B0 ZF
expense, net FER 5,314
Finance costs B 7% & A (7,701)
Foreign exchange differences, net = Erdc ] (16,963)
Other unallocated income HAh R 5 B A 2,252
Other unallocated losses HEMARkHBEE (88)
Other unallocated administrative EMARSBEITHRER
expenses (104,876)
Other unallocated expenses HAh R 5 BE A 2 (181)
Profit before tax A0 ) E 588,943
EPEERERERAT — =T L5
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BEDIER =
INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE

As at 31 December 2019 7A2019F12H31H
Segment assets DEEE 466,364 2,590,291 868,644 67,021 3,992,320
Goodwill [l 1,463,611
Interests in associates 73’\\35’9%@ Al B 151
Financial assets at FVTPL AR BEFEBEES
quMamE’JﬁraﬂéE 358,254

Bank balances and certificate of RITHRBRIFRE

deposit 2,031,334
Corporate and other unallocated REIREMADEEE

assets 231,614
Elimination of inter-segment 73 5B [ FE W R TE K 5H

receivables (203,303)
Total assets BEE 7,873,981
Segment liabilities DEEE 201,285 258,791 10,108 59,570 529,754
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TRERITEE 578,337
Corporate and other unallocated REIREMADEEE

liabilities 829,018
Elimination of inter-segment B RS SR I K 8

payables (203,303)
Total liabilities e & 1,733,806

As at 31 December 2018 7A20185%F12H31H
Segment assets DEEE 556,553 2,101,619 862,970 6,878 3,528,020
Goodwill EES 1,463,611
Interests in associates 73/\ R NG ¥ 23,741
Financial assets at FVTPL NAREEFEEEEH
ARG ERMEE 451,744

Bank balances and certificate of RITHRBRIFRE

deposit 1,582,039
Corporate and other unallocated REIREMADEEE

assets 476,592
Elimination of inter-segment 7 5B [ FE W R TE K 8E

receivables (206,264)
Total assets BEE 7,319,483
Segment liabilities DEBEE 190,214 267,430 2,078 17,404 477,126
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEER 490,672
Corporate and other unallocated RARHEMRSEEE

liabilities 848,130
Elimination of inter-segment 7 B0 FE AT FRIE K 8

payables (206,264)
Total liabilities waE 1,609,664
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. REVENUE 5. k&
An analysis of revenue is as follows: W™ :

Revenue from contracts ZEARMKA
with customers 2,115,320 2,059,478
Revenue from contracts with customers EEERWA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) Wz EF A
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE2019F12 31 HIFFZF

Type of goods or services [EISER S

General healthcare services FRBRRY

In-patient B AR 297,784 - - - - 297,784

Out-patient P2 R% 423,271 - - - - 423,271

721,055 = = = = 721,055

Hospital management services BREERS

From I0T hospitals KEIOTER - 92,940 - - - 92,940

From the Sponsored Hospitals KRB R ERR - 134,029 - - = 134,029

From an OT hospital RE—HOTER = 5,660 = = - 5,660

From third party suppliers (note) REE=HEER () - 214,851 - - - 214,851
= 447,480 = = = 447,480

GPO business GPO¥#

From I0T hospitals KEIOTER - - 716,891 - - 716,891

From the Sponsored Hospitals REBHERR - - 191,919 - - 191,919

From subsidiaries REMBATE - - 199,867 - (199,867) -
= = 1,108,677 = (199,867) 908,810

Other hospital-derived services H B AT R = = = 39,111 (1,136) 37,975

Total &t 721,055 447,480 1,108,677 39,111 (201,003) 2,115,320

Timing of revenue recognition BAKEHEE

A point in time A (E6% R 2 423,271 = 1,108,677 39,111 (201,003) 1,370,056

Over time R—BRERRA 297,784 447,480 - - = 745,264

Total &5t 721,055 447,480 1,108,677 39,111 (201,003) 2,115,320
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5. REVENUE (continuea) 5. W @
Revenue from contracts with customers EFARERVA @
(continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (a) Wz EF A &)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F 1231 HIFFE

Type of goods or services ELEES SN

General healthcare services FEBRERE

In-patient bR 275,290 = = = = 275,290

Out-patient P IR 437,317 — — — — 437,317

712,607 = e e = 712,607

Hospital management services EREBERE

From 0T hospitals KEIOTER — 94,681 = = = 94,681

From the Sponsored Hospitals RERMEER - 101,475 — - — 101,475

From an OT hospital RE—MOTER = 4,245 = = — 4,245

From third party suppliers (note) REE=HHkER (F:3) = 251,967 — — — 251,967
— 452,368 — — — 452,368

GPO business GPO¥%

From |OT hospitals KEIOTER = = 782,571 = = 782,571

From the Sponsored Hospitals REZHEER = = 81,403 = — 81,403

From subsidiaries REWBARA = = 194,846 = (194,846) =
= = 1,058,820 — (194,846) 863,974

Other hospital-derived services {8 B 57 4 R 7S = = = 31,588 (1,059) 30,529

Total ait 712,607 452,368 1,058,820 31,588 (195,905) 2,059,478

Timing of revenue recognition Fe iR W i Y 5

A point in time A (Bl 26 437,317 = 1,058,820 31,588 (195,905) 1,331,820

Over time R—BERA 275,290 452,368 = = = 727,658

Total a5t 712,607 452,368 1,058,820 31,588 (195,905) 2,059,478

All of the Group's revenue is derived from the AEBEFFEREIRRFE -

PRC.
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REVEN U E (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Note:

The Group entered into agreements with its third party suppliers
for the joint development of a regional integrated pharmaceutical
and/or medical consumable supply chain management system (the
“Supply Chain Joint Development Agreements”). The Group
provides supply chain management services to suppliers and
recognises relevant revenue based on pre-set formulas set out in

the Supply Chain Joint Development Agreements.

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance
obligations is summarised below:

General healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of general healthcare
services is mainly derived from hospital services
provided at the For-profit Hospital, which is
recognised when the related services have been
rendered to customers.

B ERARMEE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

= @
EEFEEREWA @
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(b)
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

General healthcare services (continued)

For in-patient services, customers normally
receive in-patient treatment which contains
various treatment components that are all highly
interdependent and regarded as a single
performance obligation. The period of in-patient
services is usually within nine days. Since the
patient simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits of the Group’s performance in the
medical treatment, the relevant revenue of in-
patient services is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. The progress towards the complete
satisfaction of performance obligation is
measured by direct measurements of the value of
individual products or services transferred by the
Group to the customer.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time, i.e.
when the services are provided.

Hospital management services

The Group provides comprehensive hospital
management services to the IOT hospitals, the
Sponsored Hospitals and an OT hospital and
receives a management fee from each of the
hospitals. The Group also receives supply chain
management service fees from third party
suppliers through setting up a supply chain
management system.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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Hospital management services (continued)

For the hospital management services rendered
on various aspects of daily operations of the
hospitals mentioned above, the contracts contain
multiple deliverables. As such services have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer, it is
therefore regarded as a single performance
obligation.

Revenue from the provision of hospital
management services is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards the
complete satisfaction of performance obligation is
measured by direct measurements of the value of
the services transferred by the Group to the
customer. The relevant service fees are
recognised based on pre-set formulas set out in
the arrangements and certain service fees are
subject to limitations primarily relating to the 10T
hospitals’ and Sponsored Hospitals’ net income
before tax (U %5%:) and/or the performance
rating assessments of the Group.

The Group receives the payments of service fees
on a quarterly or yearly basis after the provision
of the services. Contract asset is recognised
where the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer is conditional.

Bt 35 SRR BT
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

Hospital management services (continued)

The estimated amounts of variable consideration
are updated to reflect changes in factors that
attributes to the measurement of consideration
for the performance obligations satisfied.

GPO business

The Group derives revenue from the sales of
merchandises, such as pharmaceuticals, medical
devices and medical consumables, to the For-
profit Hospital, the IOT hospitals, the Sponsored
Hospitals and other external customers. Revenue
from GPO business is recognised when control of
merchandises is transferred to the customer, i.e.
when the merchandises are delivered and
simultaneously accepted by the customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
accepted as this is the point of time when the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Other hospital-derived services

It mainly represents the provision of professional
medical consultation services. The relevant
revenue is recognised at a point in time, i.e.
when the consultation reports are issued to the
customer.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

&b BRI (%)

AR ERETSEREYEE
BB KB BOEE
0% B T 5 -

GPOEF

AEBEFRMENEEPT - IOTE
Pt - SRR REMINSERS
%EF%% (Plangem - BRI &
BERAEM) RS - R BGPO
EBHRERE RNEH e E
ETEFP AMEEDRMNILRFE
WEPES TR -

EWFIBERE MBI RER -
B &% 5 B 1E = R B BT E
R mSRERASEGEZ

B o

H At 8 br 1T L IR

EETERRHEEXERLEAR
%5 o MW ERNAEF L AEEH
5 By Y 5 (] By PR R R



6. OTHER INCOME

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R R I EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

6. HflrA

Interest and investment FEREEWA :
income on:
Financial assets at FVTPL RARnEBEEZ
BEZHA
Bms o
BE 44,279 44,611
Receivables from |0T hospitals KEIOTERR Z
JE W R IE 10,206 13,747
Bank deposits RITFER 8,124 5,690
Loan to a Sponsored Hospital m— R EE
iRt e E K 2,375 2,375
Dividend income on financial asset MAARBEEAR
at FVTPL HEHHABR
B & B & EHY
P& B A 525 2,319
Others 9,761 4,168
75,270 72,910

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7.

Hftb 35 & 55 18 5 48

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BE B — B A R f U a — 2,355
Loss on liquidation of an associate —HE N REENER (118) —
Loss on disposal of items of property, BREWE¥ BWEKLRKRE
plant and equipment, net HEBE ZEEFE (795) (1,560)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial NARnBEFEAEEES
assets at FVTPL AR RMEE
ZAREERE
(B#R) (13,491) 4,992
Foreign exchange differences, net PE 5 B 1R 5 (12,158) (16,963)
(26,562) (11,176)

ERBRERBRAR — T FH
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Bt A R E

A B BLAT R TS
TEERH -

bR (FEA) A

Cost of inventories sold BEEFEMRAE 1,094,564 1,056,724
Depreciation of property, plant and #1% - B/E K& &
equipment HEE 15 38,983 48,589
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  FE1f - 70& ZHE
payments # 5H 16(a) = 3,375
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (FRAELEENE 16(b) 5,911 —
Amortisation of intangible assets mREEEH
(included in cost of sales) (G ASHE K A) 18 18,750 21,024
Total depreciation and amortisation  #7 8 K & §4 44 %8 63,644 72,988
Minimum lease payments under KEHEE THIE
operating leases MERK - 4,868
Lease payments not included in the THEIENEEERE
measurement of lease liabilities FFEMHAEMNR 16(d) 3,237 —
Auditor’'s remuneration ZE AN & 3,010 3,370
Employee benefit expense BIT@A&ZH
(including directors’ remuneration (BRESEH2)
(note 10): (HfEE10) -
Wages, salaries, bonuses and IE #He -
allowances TEAT o2 RE 316,817 299,061
Equity-settled share-based ERESEEI
payment expense, net R RZ
PSR 13,083 (5,314)
Pension scheme contributions RIKEEEIME R 25,482 22,067
355,382 315,814
Foreign exchange differences, net [E X 18z %% 12,158 16,963
Impairment of trade receivables, FEWE 5 RIARE
net FRE 26 781 65
Impairment of financial assets TMEERE
included in prepayments, (FFAFBR R -
deposits and other receivables RES R HEA
JE W R IE) 28 794 —
Impairment of amounts due from  fEULEFEE 5 ZH
related parties BIE 2 —
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BER
property, plant and equipment R EE 795 1,560
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BIKEHR

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERITAT :

Interest on bank borrowings RITERA B 15,027 6,800

Interest on payables to the Sponsored — JE{HER it hE B& P 7k 18
Hospitals A 879 901
Interest on lease liabilities HEREME 528 —
Others HAh 508 —
16,942 7,701

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERAT M <
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the BE(EBHERSMBERAAES L
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the WA (F B D EEH)E383(1)
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong (@ b EHER(AAI(HEEES
Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the R ER) BEINFE28 D - BEFMEE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the WS HELT -

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees we 1,823 1,339
Other emoluments: HEiNe -

Salaries, bonuses and allowances F4 - AL REE 20,439 13,330
Equity-settled share-based payment EESEEROER

expense 3 2,352 93

Pension scheme contributions RRET S K 237 282

23,028 13,705

24,851 15,044
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERAB M w
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

During the year, certain directors were awarded RERA - BRIBARRFIHRMD ZEIE S
shares, in respect of their services to the Group, under ETEFERRGD  UINHEBEAEER
the Share Award Scheme of the Company, further HIBRTS - B L BN M HREM T
details of which are set out in note 38 to the financial B WERMHAABECERZEH
statements. The fair value of such shares, which has MEBaRTER BEXTHERE
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over AEEMBREPNEECELRES
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of MBS P HEE -

grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration

disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BYHHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FAXNTEIIENTESTHE
directors during the year were as follows: ST :

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk Anthony HATE N8 % A
(BAE JB 5 4 ) 879 358
Mr. Kwok Kong Kwong BB B St S £
(EBE S 55 &) 440 422
Mr. Lee Kar Chung (ZERIELE4E) ZRELA 240 240
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy ik il o nd
(&2 £ 264 199
Mr. Sun Jianhua FEERE
(REZERL) = 60
Ms. Cheng Hong AT At
(FRATZr ) = 60
1,823 1,339
& On 7 August 2018, Mr. Wu Ting Yuk Anthony was appointed & MR2018F8A7H  HAE M E L EE
as an independent non-executive director. During the year, ERBUFNTES -FRN - A5H
the Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment BLAEATE B ST AR T WA SR IR A
expense of RMB1,069,000 (2018: Nil) in respect of the mEER D RAZ ARE1,069,000
shares awarded to Mr. Wu Ting Yuk Anthony. 7L (20184 : #&) ©
0 On 23 March 2018, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy was appointed # MN20185F3H23F HEMWL L EZ
as an independent non-executive director, and Mr. Sun ERBIUFRITES  MAREELE
Jianhua and Ms. Cheng Hong resigned as independent non- RO Z LB IR IERITES -
executive directors.
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAMEAMENEIFNITE
independent non-executive directors during the E88 2 (20187« £) o

year (2018: Nil).
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EEREAB M w
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non- (b) MITEERFHIITES
executive directors

Executive directors: HITESE :
Mr. Song Qing ((R/& % 4) RBFRE - 285 - 285
Mr. Cheng Libing RIS
(B Sz S i) 6,199 285 50 6,534
Mr. Han Yuewei (BEBE5E4E)*  mBRESLA* 5,052 285 59 5,396
Ms. Ren Yuan (fEi&Zt) T+ 4,699 214 78 4,991
Ms. Fu Yanjun ({73 2 +) #IFELZ+ 4,489 214 50 4,753
20,439 1,283 237 21,959
Non-executive director: EHITES :
Mr. Wang Yan (EE % 4) TERE — — — —
20,439 1,283 237 21,959

Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Song Qing (K5 % &) KRBT = = = —
Mr. Cheng Libing DAV
(AR5 H) 5,303 = 49 5,352
Mr. Han Yuewei (8% B2 12 % &) BRESLE 2,841 = 100 2,941
Ms. Ren Yuan (fEEZT) FEZ L 2,159 = 84 2,243
Ms. Fu Yanjun (#3822 +) NEBELZ L 3,027 93 49 3,169
13,330 93 282 13,705
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Mr. Wang Yin (T ED5E 4 )# FEN S = = = =
Mr. Wang Yan (EE % 4) FEXE — — — —
13,330 93 282 13,705
@ On 15 October 2019, Mr. Han Yuewei resigned as an e R20194E10 8168 » BB %&£ 4 &
executive director. EHITESE -
f On 7 August 2018, Mr. Song Qing was appointed as an e R2018F8A7H RBEXR L ERE
executive director and Mr. Wang Yin resigned as a non- BRITES  THAEBIHFNTE
executive director. E
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

11.

REMUNERATION (continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable
by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office (2018: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included four (2018: four) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining one
(2018: one) highest paid employee who is neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

10. EERBEH 22 @

11.

FR - AEEBEREENREMNE
BN RE AR KRB IR AR E
B 2 B2 RS BER AR B (20184F : ) o

FAMBESIRHNELRBREL
A2 B LB (20185 « ) o

INBREHESR

FARU &= FEE BFEN%E (2018
F:OB)ESF BEMEFBIHN L
it EE10 - B B F R FE g — % (2018
F:—R)&aFHEE (WIFEARAAE
ERAR)MMSFBOT

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o JEATELERL 4,046 3,507
Equity-settled share-based payment BESEERO T RAEX
expense 214 =
Pension scheme contributions (defined — iR{R&HEIHE R
contribution scheme) (A EHARETED) 50 49
4,310 3,556
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES M. ANESHFEE @
(Continued)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive MeN T IGEEFEERIFERER
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within FESHAE :

the following bands is as follows:

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 L&
4,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 L=
5,000,000 7T 1 —
1 1
During the vyear, shares were awarded to a non- FN - RIFEFRFLEHEEHERR
director and non-chief executive highest paid employee AEFREREEMER TG - 515
in respect of his services to the Group, further details HRMBHREMEIS - ERNEEBHA
of which are included in the disclosures in note 38 to BairBERNBRONAABEENET
the financial statements. The fair value of such shares, HEEE ' sFARFHBWMEN SR -
which has been recognised in the statement of profit EWALMEHAFERFRI T E
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at BMEHHE -
the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
12. INCOME TAX 12. FRBH

The PRC enterprise income tax has been provided at R BIEAMGFERTABEE - RAF
the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on the estimated R A B AT1S5i25% (2018
assessable income arising in the PRC during the year. F:26%)  HRAEERAFEAL
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made BEBREBELETBNEHERTFE -
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits E LI EET IR B AN G E (2018
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2018: Nil). FE)o

Current — Mainland China BNER — ARE At
Charge for the year rEEEHR 139,321 151,862
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBBEREE (116) (1,222)
Deferred (note 36) BRI (K 7E36) 1,460 (1,253)
Total tax charge for the year RAEEFREHERESE 140,665 149,387
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

12 INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the PRC statutory tax rate to the tax
charge at the Group's effective tax rate is as follows:

12. Fr8% @

AR R AT B 4 AR AT
SRR S B B R S BB RO BB
m -

Profit before tax A 541,299 588,943
Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate of A BEE R R 25%

25% (2018: 25%) (20184 : 25% ) WIFiIE 135,325 147,236
Lower tax rates enacted by specific FFEREEREITHRIE

jurisdictions i = 5,303 7,465
Adjustments in respect of current tax of  FtiE{F AR ENEATL B &Y

previous periods Bk (116) (1,222)
Profits and losses attributable to a joint [E/HE—FRAE A A&

venture and associates i l/NCI Bi= E (1,162) (537)
Income not subject to tax REFFUA (3,145) (5,165)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR B A 3 6,561 5,835
Tax losses utilised from previous BEBEBSANESER

periods (16,003) (9,883)
Tax losses not recognised RERB T EE 10,036 2,690
Others EHAih 3,866 2,968
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax %5 B3R B i R 59§ 18

rate 140,665 149,387

The share of tax attributable to a joint venture and

associates is nil (2018: Nil).

T (2018%F : &) o
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. DIVIDENDS 13. B2

Dividend recognised as distribution BRAEARFEAND KL
during the year: &2
Final 2018 — HK12 cents (2017: 20185 K — BK
HK11 cents) per ordinary share TR 27810
(20174 : 11784L) 136,767 116,725
Less: Dividend for shares held under B IR IEAR D SE BN At £l
the Share Award Scheme BERGOHRKRE (5,280) (1,690)

131,487 115,035

Final dividend proposed after the end of % Hi 7K 1% #t K K HA

the reporting period: SN
Proposed final 2019 — HK10 cents BIRZ2019F K —
(2018: HK12 cents) per ordinary R EBER1081L
share (20184 : 127&10L) 129,668 155,601
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to NEFZEIR KRR S B 5 A RARER AN
the approval of the Company’'s shareholders at the HRITHRRBF RS EHE -

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. B AR EEREREEARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY LHEREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per EREAREERBNDIBBEATFHES
share are based on: Svl

Earnings B2F
Profit for the year attributable to REsTESRER R #E
ordinary equity holders of the parent el /N B35
for the purpose of the basic and IRERFE(EFEF)E
diluted earnings per share calculation 390,865 430,898

Shares Bz 4
Weighted average number of ordinary  FA{EstEESRERRAF 2
shares in issue during the year for MEFEHFAE BT
the purpose of the basic earnings per B E R
share calculation 1,253,291 1,267,176

Effect of dilution — weighted average  fN#EFH L @A A #E

number of ordinary shares: 2
Shares awarded under the Share RIBAR (5 BBt 813
Award Scheme i $v) 1,495 577
Weighted average number of ordinary R{EsTE TRE SR
shares in issue during the year for ZINEFEHEA
the purpose of the diluted earnings EETEEKREAE
per share calculation 1,254,786 1,267,733
The weighted average number of shares used for the ARt E#EZ=2019F K% 2018412 A31
purpose of calculating the basic and diluted earnings HIEFEBRERZNMEERF 2 M
per share for the years ended 31 December 2019 and BEHRMNEE - DS FHEZRN RZE
2018 has been arrived at after adjusting the effect of FEBEREERO CFERTES
shares repurchased and held under the Share Award o e
Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ - BMERRE

At 31 December 2018 and at R2018F12A31A &

1 January 2019: 20191 H1H :

Cost A 179,842 73,855 154,689 4,878 39,117 24,714 477,095

Accumulated depreciation Egin (66,065) (43,474)  (79,098) (2,768)  (26,327) - (217,7132)

Net carrying amount REEFE 113,777 30,381 75,591 2,110 12,790 24,714 259,363
At 1 January 2019, net of R2019F1 818 - Mk

accumulated depreciation ZEE 113,777 30,381 75,591 2,110 12,790 24,714 259,363
Additions NE 259 7,013 7,421 = 8,707 19,720 43,120
Transfer 2B (2,654) 15,321 (643) (41) 5,510 (17,493) -
Transfer to other non-current assets ~ EEEE M I EE

(note 24) (HizE24) (76,269) - - - - - (76,269)
Disposals RE - (6) (3,537) (74) (888) (1,351) (5,856)
Depreciation provided during FANERE

the year (6,856) (7,051) (18,556) (633) (5,887) - (38,983)
At 31 December 2019, net of R2019%12A318 « Mk

accumulated depreciation 2itiE 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25,590 181,375
At 31 December 2019: R2019512A318 :

Cost A 75,413 94,031 144,494 3,525 45,535 25,590 388,588

Accumulated depreciation 2EE (47,156) (48,373)  (84,218) (2,163)  (25,303) - (207,213

Net carrying amount EEEFE 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25,590 181,375

At 1 January 2018: R2018F1 418 :

Cost A 160,096 73,983 143,451 4,828 37,015 13402 432,775

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (56,754) (33,508)  (63,835) (2.271)  (19,805) —  (176,173)

Net carrying amount EEESE 103,342 40,475 79,616 2,557 17,210 13402 256,602
At 1 January 2018, net of R2018F1 8168 - Mk

accumulated depreciation 2 E 103,342 40,475 79,616 2,557 17,210 13,402 256,602
Additions NE 17,092 4,609 17,762 358 3,008 13,966 56,795
Acquisition of a subsidiary YeiE — KB AR

(note 47(b) (FizE47(b)) = 56 = 74 87 - 217
Transfer E 2,654 — — = = (2,654) —
Disposals BE = (2,876) (1,477) (48) (16) = (4,417)
Disposal of a subsidiary RE-HMBAR

(note 47(c)) (Hi3E47(c)) = = (243) (172) (830) = (1,245)
Depreciation provided FANERE

during the year (9,311) (11,883) (20,067) (659) (6,669) - (48,589)
At 31 December 2018, net of R2018F12A318 Mk

accumulated depreciation 2iE 113,777 30,381 75,591 2,110 12,790 24,714 259,363
At 31 December 2018: R2018F12A318 :

Cost A 179,842 73,855 154,689 4,878 39,117 24714 477,095

Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (66,065) (43,474)  (79,098) (2,768)  (26,327) - (217,732)

Net carrying amount REERE 113,777 30,381 75,591 2,110 12,790 24714 259,363

ERBERERERLAT —T LW

191




192

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

16. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office properties
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of office properties generally have lease
terms between 1 and 5 years.

(a) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January
2019)

16. HE

AEBEEREEA

AEBERELLPERNMRAFERR
BAEHEEAR - —RIEMIBRIBAHR
PEERESHEENA0FMNHEST
- BARBE L T MMM - |1
BRNHRIE - FEHENHEERREE
RIELF o

(a) FENLHMBEENH (R2019F 145
14 A7)

Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R2018%1 A1 HHEREE 143,720
Recognised in profit or loss during the year S RREZFER (3,375)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 7201812 A31HH
FREE 140,345
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EHEELE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use AEBEFAGAREEREER
assets and the movements during the year are as FEWT

follows:

As at 1 January 2019 7201941 A1 8 140,345 138 140,483
Additions NE = 21,478 21,478
Depreciation charge EER (3,375) (2,536) (5,911)
As at 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 136,970 19,080 156,050
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16 LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R R I EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

16. FHE @)

AEBERAEABEA @

(c) HEERE

I

FARERENREERESN

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 R2019%1 A1 HHEREE 138
New leases & 21,478
Accretion of interest recognised FAERFEHL K
during the year 528
Payments (N (3,261)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 72019612 A31 HRREE 18,883
Analysed into: pak i=aE
Current portion BN B &6 5 5,286
Non-current portion FEENERES 13,597
18,883

(d) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation
to leases are as follows:

(d) BREENSENEDRERET

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHFE 528
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREEENITEE A 5,911
Expense relating to short-term leases with  E& T HIR 20194

remaining lease terms ended on or 12 A31 B3k Z A& IEHY

before 31 December 2019 (included in REHESEMNAX

administrative expenses) (BRETHERAZA) 3,237
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RE=ERA BT 9,676

ERBRERSRAF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. *HE(%)
The Group as a lessor AEBEREHBEA
The Group leases certain office equipment under AEBLEREAXNHBAEBLIPHA
operating lease arrangements. Rental income B ARBERFARRHESKWAR
recognised by the Group during the vyear was AR #1,953,0007T (20184 : AR ¥
RMB1,953,000 (2018: RMB1,606,000). 1,606,0007T) °
At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease M2019F 128310 AEBERERS
payments receivable by the Group in future periods RN EEEUE S L ETE TR KA
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants MA A ARITRBESNFTAT ¢

are as follows:

Within one year —F R 2,206 2,215

17. GOODWILL 17. &8

At 1 January and at 31 December: R1A1B R
M12A318 :
Cost B AR 3,191,110 3,191,110
Accumulated impairment 25T RE (1,727,499) (1,727,499)
Net carrying amount BREE 1,463,611 1,463,611
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Goodwill acquired through a business combination and
sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite
useful lives with carrying amounts of
RMB1,463,611,000 (2018: RMB1,463,611,000) and
RMB1,844,203,000 (2018: RMB1,728,026,000) are
allocated to the cash-generating units of Ample Mighty
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (the “"Ample Mighty CGUs") for
impairment testing.

The recoverable amounts of the Ample Mighty CGUs
have been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal calculations using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management and are within Level
3 fair value measurement. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 15% (2018: 15%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
Ample Mighty CGUs beyond the five-year period is 3%
(2018: 3%). This growth rate does not exceed the long
term average growth rates for the relevant markets.

Assumptions were used in the fair value less costs of
disposal calculations of the Ample Mighty CGUs for 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018. The following
describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill and sponsorship rights
and service contracts:

Budgeted — The value assigned to the

revenue budgeted revenue is the average
revenue achieved in the vyear
immediately before the budget
year, taking into account the
expected growth rate.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific
risks relating the relevant units.

Growth rates — The growth rates used are with
reference to the long term
average growth rates for the
relevant markets.

Bt 35 SRR BT

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

BREBEHRE 2B R ERERR
AR (ABEERUERFE) H BE
BEA ANR®1,463,611,0007T (2018
F: AR¥1,463,611,00070) M AR
1,844,203,0007T (20184 : AR
1,728,026,0007T) ENEEA QR ZE
EBRAREBEAR AR RENBAR A
MReELSEN ([BEHREELEM])
LAVESRUERIE, -

BN e ES BN 2 A O E 5 R
HARBEREREKRARMEER
1%)% E’ﬁﬁim%?ﬁi HlJEﬁBAI_J & B IE
EEIHRE R FHRRNM RS mE
B rEReERAABEFENS
= ERRBEESRETR EUE’UEEL@%E
15% (20184F : 15%) o AR HEET (i
T RERGELBUZHENRNE
K32 K & 53% (2018%F : 3%) ° % 1%
REMBBEHBATS LORBFHER

}'\:o

ERBREELEEN2019F12 318
M2018F 12 A3 BNEHIR S ELEE
U AREBEBRERENAREER - T
X T EREENERS RETERE
EEMBREETREINN S EER
BREMPREAR :

BEEA — B WA
ﬁ@m&ﬁﬁig
ZHIB—FHER
MFEH A - B
ZREFAHIRREK -

Bh I8 & — FTRAZER XA
B M R M B % B
T ER -

8 % — FRAZHEEAS

EREAMBH RS
FHBRE -

EHERERERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M
31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
-
18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HttEEE=E
31 December 2019 #2019%F12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated #2019 1 A1HAK
amortisation B - 0Bk R
E 3 364,570 1,728,026 3,044 2,095,640
Contribution of intangible assets by non- FERERETEE
controlling interest (note 47(a)) HE (KF47(a) - 116,177 - 116,177
Transfer to other receivables (note 28) B 3 7 At R UK R OE
(Ft3E28) (157,305) - - (157,305)
Amortisation provided during the year R (15,927) - (2,823) (18,750)
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 191,338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762
At 31 December 2019: ®2019F12A318 :
Cost B A 299,639 1,844,203 4,185 2,148,027
Accumulated amortisation Bt (108,301) = (3,964)  (112,265)
Net carrying amount REEFSE 191,338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762
31 December 2018 #2018 12A31H
At 1 January 2018: 201841 /18 :
Cost BA 489,543 1,728,026 — 2,217,569
Accumulated amortisation B (105,090) = = (105,090)
Net carrying amount BRTEE S5 384,453 1,728,026 — 2,112,479
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of accumulated R2018F1A1HHK
amortisation BCAS - HIBR 25T
iy 384,453 1,728,026 — 2,112,479
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 47(b)) Wi — KB AR
(Hi3E47(0)) = = 4,185 4,185
Amortisation provided during the year FREHEBE (19,883) = (1,141) (21,024)
At 31 December 2018 M2018412A31H 364,570 1,728,026 3,044 2,095,640
At 31 December 2018 and M2018F12A31H &
at 1 January 2019: #2019F1 818 :
Cost B AR 489,543 1,728,026 4,185 2,221,754
Accumulated amortisation S 3 (124,973) = (1,141)  (126,114)
Net carrying amount IREEFHE 364,570 1,728,026 3,044 2,095,640
Sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite BmRE A AFHNR N ENRE SR
useful lives are allocated to the Ample Mighty CGUs PEEEHRSELEEMIERBERM -
for impairment testing. Details of impairment testing BB BN B REMFE17
are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SR R M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. A—RIG¥ ARIZ2&E

Share of net assets DIFEE 513,028 508,526

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: AEEGEARAMNERINT :

CR Wugang (Hubei) Registered capital of PRC/Mainland 51 51 51 51 Hospital
Hospital management RMB433,041,528 China consulting
Co., Ltd. services
("CR Wugang")
EBRMORL)BRER SEMERARE hE/ Bl ARS
BRAR ([EHERHE]) 433,041,5287C B A i
The above investment is indirectly held by the LR ETRARAREERFE -
Company.
CR Wugang, which is considered a material joint EHRMEAAEREFBNERESL D
venture of the Group, is accounted for using the equity 7 AR E -
method.

ERERERERAT T NFH 197



198

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of CR Wugang adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the financial statements:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. R—BE&EARAZRE@w

TERHBT AR ERBOH R
T MABHAHE RESHEENER
£ T B - WEEMBERDOER
[EEATHE

Cash and cash equivalents BHeMBEEEEBY 43,825 116,672
Other current assets Hih s & E 461,641 396,532
Current assets BN & E 505,466 513,204
Non-current assets FERBEE 8,844 9,744
Current liabilities mEBEE 113,824 131,290
Net assets BEFE 400,486 391,658
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in  EAEER A E R AH

the joint venture: 5 AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBEHBEENLE 51% 51%
Effect of fair value adjustment at RUEER A 7 BEFAES

acquisition T 308,780 308,780
Carrying amount of the investment REREE 513,028 508,526
Revenue W 25 — _
Interest income B WA 2,661 125
Depreciation and amortisation T8 K5 900 838
Tax %5 — _
Profit and total comprehensive income  FEFE R EEIRALEE

for the year 8,828 4,104
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SR R M

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. IBENTZ2RE

Share of net assets DIEEFE 151 23,741

Particulars of the material associate are as follows: ERBERNRERNT :

UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Ordinary shares British Virgin = 30  Provision of
Group Ltd. Islands/ healthcare
(“"UMP Beijing")* Hong Kong and solutions and
Mainland China services
BEBK(ER)&E TR KERRES/ RUEBEEREFR
BRAR ERERPEAM KR
(MEE® LR
e During the year, UMP Beijing has been voluntarily liquidated and its - FA - BEBKOUtR)EEREER MEE
assets have been distributed to its shareholders in form of cash. EEURREFADRTERRE - BIEAEER
According to the percentage of shareholding, the Group received a REMFRES  AEBSHBBRARYE
total of RMB23,619,000 and recognised a loss on liquidation of an 23,619,0007t * WHER — B E N AMEH
associate of RMB118,000. 518 AR %118,0007T °
The above investment is indirectly held by the LB RARRIEERSE -
Company.
UMP Beijing was considered a material associate of BEeBEB (MR ERAREEMNERX
the Group and was accounted for using the equity Bt N E) R (F AR AT ER o

method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. HFENT 2 BE @
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRHBETHEBABES B L) M
information in respect of UMP Beijing adjusted for any BEHRE  MEBRENEREBESEIK
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the RERETTRAE  WEHPBHRE
carrying amount as at 31 December 2018 in the F2018F12A3 1B E#HITEH
consolidated financial statements: iR

Current assets e & B 78,829
Non-current assets EMBEE 316
Current liabilities nBaE (21)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE —
Net assets BEFE 79,124
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the el ET) N RN e R 2

associate: HEE -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHBEENLE 30%
Group's share of net assets of the associate =~ RNEBMDEHE NG EEEE

and carrying amount of the investment Nz & rREE 23,737
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE SRR M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. HBENTZ2RE®

(Continued)

Revenue W= 4
Profit for the year FEAHE 181
Other comprehensive income Hh2mEBA 3,693
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EKABE 3,874
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRIRTHRAE B B HIFE KA
information of the Group's associates that are not ENAINEBMBER

individually material:

Share of the associates’ profit and total — fE{GEEE A &) F & FHE K&

comprehensive income for the year 2HE U A AR 144 —
Aggregate carrying amount of the EEHBE AT ZRE

Group's investments in the BE [ 4818

associates 151 4
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

21. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS 21. REHIOTE 2 EWHIE

At 1 January ®W1HA18 123,812 125,404
Payments to an IOT hospital BIRIOTZ HEMIOTE
under an |OT arrangement BT % - 2 FRIB - 300
Repayment from IOT hospitals KEIOTER ZEM (9,022) (15,639)
Interest income FEWA 6 10,206 13,747
Reclassification to BN BEEHMENR
other receivables A 28 (32,441) =
At 31 December M12H31H 92,555 123,812
Less: Current portion included & : st AFEfFH -
in prepayments, RiEE REAM
deposits and other FEWRIB Z
receivables BNERER 75 28 (11,576) (14,838)
Non-current portion FERNEREL & 80,979 108,974

Pursuant to the IOT agreements with certain not-for-
profit hospitals, the Group made investment amounts
to the IOT hospitals that will be repaid to the Group
(the “Repayable Investment Amounts”) in return for
the operating rights of the 10T hospitals over a tenure
ranging from 16 to 48 vyears. The Repayable
Investment Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
will be repaid to the Group in equal annual instalments
during the tenure of the |IOT arrangements.

RIREE FIEEF B AIOTHE - &
SERIOTERELIRESTE F BHE
BrAsB([EEERESE] U
BREIOTEBR &L &£ - BHIR16248
FoREERNESHAERR 28
WERIOTL A IZ S FE H BE

BETAER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

22. LOAN TO A SPONSORED HOSPITAL 22. H—Fﬁﬁi%#mg%ﬁﬂmf W&
7r)\

Loan to a sponsored hospital ) — 22 ot Be P FR A 9
8% 55,062 52,687

The loan to a sponsored hospital is unsecured, bears m—ERRERRERNERAER
interest at the prevailing benchmark lending interest A FRERTPBEARBITEMIRIT
rate of 4.75% (2018: 4.75%) per annum as EREEF KN4 75% (20184 -
promulgated by the People’s Bank of China and 4.75%) K ZAF2020F11 AEE - ¥
repayable in November 2020. As at 31 December 201912 A318  AEEAE 12020
2019, the Group intends to renew the loan agreement FNAERI PR EERBREE =
for another period of 3 years upon maturity of the loan FHIMA] -

in November 2020.

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 23. UAREETEAHSE G
ABRBZEHMEE

Listed equity investment, at fair value 1R A R BEN EHRK

(note i) RE (5L 113,485 136,744
Unlisted investments, at fair value BARBEMNIELTIRE
(note ii) (B &) 244,769 315,000
358,254 451,744
Analysed into: Pak =1
Current portion & B 244,769 315,000
Non-current portion EMBE S 113,485 136,744
358,254 451,744

Notes: B 5 -

(i) The listed equity investment was classified as financial assets at (i) ARAEET RBEUAAABES AR
FVTPL as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value HEERZE  BIRARBEN LETRARE
gain or loss through other comprehensive income. It was held for RS BERNARBEFEEEZEHT AR
long-term strategic purposes. The Group does not intend to mZEMEE HAEHERRBEHBKAR -
dispose of it within twelve months after the reporting period. AEBEERBSHET —EANEES -

(i) The unlisted investments were wealth management products issued (i) FEEMBRERFEANWRITHITNNEE R
by banks in Mainland China, with expected annual return ranging Ed BitFREEEITNEST% (2018
from 3.7% to 4.7% (2018: from 3.8% to 4.9%) per annum. They F:38%%4.9%)2M - HRHEARRER
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVTPL as their ETERRASMFSNIN Bt #at o
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and BRANARBEFEEEZHAAEZNS
interest. BEE ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

24.

25.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

During the year, the operation of 999 Medical Clinic
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“999 Clinic”) was suspended as
the location of the site was included in the local urban
renewal plan. The Group entered into an agreement
with a real estate company in which the property of
999 Clinic will be demolished and a new property with
a floor area of no less than that of the demolished
property will be given to 999 Clinic as compensation
when the construction and the development of the
new property have been completed. Accordingly,
property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount
of RMB76,269,000 was transferred to other non-
current assets.

INVENTORIES

HMEREEE

FR - AR ERATRERE
AEFET=NEEM2ECRIDA
REERART=ZNMZHW)WES -
AEBR—FREMEATR T AR
& WMER=NFIDEMERL - L&
ST FERERFARE - SERERE
$9#%&ﬁﬁ%#@¥ﬂ@%ﬂ%¥hﬁi\%uzh
FIZEBERME - Bt - REES/SAR
#76,269,000TTHI% - BE KR EE
BREHMIERDEE -

25. 78

Pharmaceuticals % 53,480 73,000

Medical devices and medical BERWMMEREM
consumables 8,641 4,885
62,121 77,885
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. EWE ZFE

Trade receivables FEWE 5 5 IA 619,453 498,571
Impairment VERED (755) (65)

618,698 498,506
The Group’'s trading terms with its customers are REEREPHRFEREEUNEESR
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where A BHEFPRIN FTRPBER
payment in advance is normally required. The credit TELEAR - (EFRHA30E180K - A%
periods range from 30 days to 180 days. The Group %] B B R MRCER A FE UK R TR e 1 BR AR B
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding = WHEAEEESIEF - UREREE
receivables and has a credit control department to R - 2AREIREEREMBHLEH
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed REEWEREWE ZERERFTEE
regularly by senior management. The Group does not AR G SR A b (S B 15 R 15 1 - J&
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over WESERRRER °

its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 26. EWE ZFHEm
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the RMEAREWE ZFHIBRE DT
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date (BEEZABARNGREEES) T :

and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 year 15K 552,411 439,136
1 to 2 years 15824 66,238 51,500
2 to 3 years 2E34F 49 7,870
618,698 498,506
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment FEE ZFOREBRBENZESIE RN
of trade receivables are as follows: T

At beginning of year F 1] 65 —
Impairment losses, net (note 8) BB BB TR (K Es) 781 65
Amount written off as uncollectible E W B F i SE & 58 (91) —
At end of year FR 755 65
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 TRADE RECE'VABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than three years and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

B 5 R R I EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

26. EWWE J FIE @)

B D ESERE B A EEERER
ERBEEER - BEXENAEERAL
BEEANSETFENABHX
o AT ERBRTHMXRNESER 8%
REARERS BT ESHEREES
= B ATIRS AN R SR A AR S ) T
RMEEMERBENER - —KRME -
IMREWE ZHAEBR=FIL WA
WHEATTITE) - BIMEEFOR

AR BN 5B EER
ARFIIMT -

R2019%12H31H

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEIEX - 0.07% 0.46% 1.58% 100% 0.12%
Gross carrying amount BREELE

(RMB'000) (AR¥F ) 7,080 545,713 66,544 50 66 619,453
Expected credit losses TEEEEEE

(RMB'000) (AR®FT) = 382 306 1 66 755

As at 31 December 2018

M2018%12H31H

Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEX — — 0.02% 0.16% 100% 0.01%
Gross carrying amount FREEAR

(RMB'000) (AR TT) 24,776 414,360 51,509 7,883 43 498,571
Expected credit losses TEHEE &R

(RMB'000) (AR¥TT) = = 9 13 43 65

ERERERERAT T 5 207



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

27. EHEE

27. CONTRACT ASSETS

208

Contract assets arising EHNEEXRS :
from:
Hospital management B EIERTE
services 12,120 9,464 42,623

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the provision of hospital management
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on the performance rating assessments of the Group.
The amounts recognised as contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables when the rights to
consideration become unconditional, i.e. when the
performance rating assessments are finalised. The
increase (2018: decrease) in contract assets in 2019
was the result of the increase in the provision of
hospital management services at the end of the year.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for
contract assets as at 31 December is within one year.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on days past due of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

B HE E R ph iR B8 Bt E 12 AR 7% P BRER
A T Fa TR - A ¥ E A AR
ARAEBH AT - BB E-ENK
BEARGR - BVE ERESGHE -
REBEHNEENSEEN»BEABKE
SFRIE ° 2019F A HEERIE N (2018
FORD) HERIG IR B E R
TEETE -

R1I2ANBAMNEBEENIREREETR
AAREAS—FR -

RE RS BEETRED T - KARE
EEEEEEEEE - FEANEE
BHEEEERANBEE - KRR
WESHREMRAE  REARAHNEE
REWE SHIBTREERAREFE &
HEEMBEERTIRBEUAFHUEE
BRNBF LR D HEREKE 55K IES
HIASGETE - Rt E R TR s
R EXHENURREBETESNE
BBEBM - B AR R AR R K
MHBANEGERBEENER - R
2019 %2018 12 A318 * 2 H&EE
BERETK-
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERARMEE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

28. I RIE -REESRHEME
W FRIE

Prepayments to suppliers ) 4k 8 72 % AT 9 TR R 12,466 20,740
Current portion of receivables from 10T 2R B I0T & bz ~ & Uk 7018
hospitals Y B HA 26 9> 11,576 14,838
Other receivable from “Yan Hua D=HE- (a1 AN 0p )
Hospital” (note i) JE Wk 3E (B aE () 189,747 —
Current portion of prepaid land lease B T EE TR R
prepayments BNEAER 75 — 3,375
Others H Aty 7,121 5,674
220,910 44,627
Impairment VERED (1,127) (333)
219,783 44,294
Note: B 5

(i)

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 15
January 2019, 21 January 2019 and 17 April 2019, Beijing Yan Hua
Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Company Limited (3b 7%
{tRBEEEEEEEAMRAF]) (“Yan Hua Phoenix"), the sponsor of
Yan Hua Hospital, and Yan Hua Hospital unilaterally terminated the
IOT agreement entered into between the Group, Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital (the “Yan Hua IOT Agreement”) from 21
January 2019. The Group has submitted a civil claim statement
against Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital in relation to the
Yan Hua |OT Agreement dispute to the Beijing Second
Intermediate People’s Court on 17 April 2019 to seek the court's
ruling that the unilateral termination of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement
by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital on 21 January 2019
shall be void.

Having considered the terms of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement, the
Group has further claimed that Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital should be liable for damages for breach of the Yan Hua
IOT Agreement. Accordingly, the Group reclassified the related
receivables and operating right under the |OT arrangement with
Yan Hua Hospital to other receivables during the year ended 31
December 2019.

On 18 December 2019, the Beijing Second Intermediate People's
Court issued a judgement in favour of the Group. Subsequent to
the end of the reporting period, Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital filed an appeal to the Beijing Higher People’'s Court in
January 2020 and the court hearing date is not yet fixed.

EHBRERARAA

A DT A HA201941 8158 « 20194
1A21H R2019F4A17B R EFTHEE -
HEBROERALTRCBEBELEES
BAERAA ([FCEE ] R B R2019
F1A2NAREFEKIEEAEE - FEEE
KA BT R S MI0TH &% ([#/LIOTH
#]) c AEBEE R 201964 A17BFFE/LIOT
BERFZAARTE_FRARZERERR
FRFREFFCBE R - BSROE
B 1 7E Ee AL LR K& B AL 2 B 201941 A 21 H
B ERBRFCIOTIR#ER -

ZEIIFACIOTHZENGER - NEEE—FE
kIR BB R L BT A X 8 RIEIOTH
BZBRN® o BUL - BE2019F12A31H1E
FE - ANEEBE BT IOTZH THI1ER
R LSR8 A R A 3T 0 SR B L PR LK
FIE o

201912 A18H  ERME—FHRARE
REMBEBRFRER  AEBERBF - NAR
HHRBERE  REBEANKLCBRER
20201 A it Rm R A RIEB IR B E5F -
SEBr A RE B H M R BESE ©

—E-NER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 28. ERRE RIBERHEME

210

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to deposits and other receivables for which
there was no relevant history of default. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at
31 December 2019 was 0.5% (2018: 1.9%).

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of other receivables are as follows:

Y FRIE ()

TiSRBETIEENeREEIRFEE
BEYORLHNRFCMEMEKKIES
e EABRT  EEERSA S
B2ERNEBMMNE S B RCERASE
EEEITREDT - AREEXUEE
F B & AT A 0 0 R 2R AR E AR A TR
Bl o FA2019F 12 A31 B AR EIB =R
£0.5% (20184 : 1.9%) °

E AR R E AR RS R BB
mF :

At beginning of year F9 333 333
Impairment losses, net (note 8) BEEEFEE (HFE8) 794 —
At end of year FR 1,127 333
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkFeEEY

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2,006,220

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 29. RERREEFYRENRE

1,624,176

Certificate of deposit FRGE

25,114

57,863

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB1,993,848 (2018: RMB1,545,683). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’'s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

As at 31 December 2019, the certificate of deposit
bears interest at a rate of 3.05% (2018: 3.52%) per
annum with a maturity date on 28 January 2020
(2018: 22 January 2019).

RI|BERR - REBAAREHENR
EMRITE/ETFERA/ARK1,993,848

70 (20184 : AR #1,545,68370) ° A
REEIW et B EEFWEJZEE@“M 'r&
TRAE P B A b 2 SINE B IR AR I 4

EERNEEERTE - $%@Tiﬁi@§%

REETINE B EBNRITHEARE

RMREMER -

RITHEE AT RRITFEZOZBAERIA

8 - |RITHEBR/TEAE
BRRIE I 2 RIT ©

M2019F12A31H -

BRI HE

&I RE R ER

337)%3.05%(2018$-3.52%) F|HAR
£2020% 1 H28H (20184 : 20194 1

A228) -

EHBRERARAA

—E-NER
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30. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the date of delivery
goods, is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

30. BN EZME

HERRAENE S F RS DT E
MR EmBRBERNT :

Within 60 days N4 170,322 152,924
61 to 180 days 612180k 62,657 53,331
Over 180 days 180K A 8,324 17,827
241,303 224,082

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ERESFEARE - —MRIKOEIOKR

normally granted on a credit term of 0 to 90 days.

31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

MRS -
31. HittE A RER BB A

Staff cost payables e B TR 85,290 87,235
Deposits from suppliers HERREFS 23,190 36,596
Deposits from patients BARE S 68,085 33,564
Other PRC tax payable R E M A 21,102 19,003
Unpaid travel expenses and Az ZRAS R

administrative expenses TEAX 6,531 9,787
Unpaid expenses in relation to R RIS AE R B9

professional services RAETFAX 11,947 8,085
Payables for purchases of property, BEYE BEEREZ

plant and equipment i ANESE 1,880 2,237
Retirement benefit obligations BIREMEE - 1,621
Unpaid consideration for the acquisition U E& BT E A &Y

of subsidiaries AXFHRE 190 300
Others Hit 29,239 21,742

247,454 220,170
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B K 3R FT ST

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32. EHEE

Short-term advances BWEFEEBR
received from customers
GPO business GPOX7T 3,013 11,667 5,184
Hospital management B Pr B B AR TS
services 1,649 1,055 =
Other hospital-derived H BB iT4
services AR 75 4 32 —
Total contract liabilities ERBERRE 4,666 12,754 5,184
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received BRBEBERINER  BESMKLE
to deliver merchandises, such as pharmaceuticals, RFEMER m &I B B IR AR & H
medical devices and medical consumables, and to it B8 B 07 A AR 7% T U B A 52 ER B R o
provide hospital management services and other 2019 & B &R (20184 : 1 h0)
hospital-derived services. The decrease (2018: FERBERFEREREFP WEIAEGPO
increase) in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due ¥BEBMERRTRLD (20184 : 1E
to the decrease (2018: increase) in short-term hn) FrER -

advances received from customers in relation to GPO
business at the end of the year.

33. PAYABLES TO THE SPONSORED 33. B EpEERNE
HOSPITALS
The payables to the Sponsored Hospitals are FEATER IR BE B SR IE R IR - FAIE
unsecured, bear interest at a rate of 0.35% (2018: #0.35% (20184 : 0.35% ) * IREKI(E
0.35%) per annum and are repayable on demand. oo

ERBEEERERLAT —T 9% 213
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 34. FTERITER
BORROWINGS

Borrowings — R Hong Kong 2020 578,337 HIBOR 2019 490,672

unsecured — A Interbank BBRIT
Offered Rate EESi¥5S
(“HIBOR”) +0.88

EBRITEAE

HE ([BER

TE%HFE ]

+0.88

Analysed into: DT
Borrowings repayable: BEXREER:
Within one year or on demand 1FARILER 578,337 490,672
The bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong RITERABITETE ©
dollars.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R 3k MY &E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. EREFEE
Defined benefit plan RE®BAGE

Total estimated benefit payable HETENRRABRT
to retired staffs PR 18,120 17,638

Less: Amounts due within B FEAE MR SRIBAY

12 months included in 1218 A R ) 8

other payables (Note 31) I8 (FH3E31) = (1,621)
Amounts due after 12 months 1218 A& B 83 2 RIB 18,120 16,017
Pursuant to the agreement with Beijing Construction RAR 2003 F 2 = B8 Fr 0 By B 4k R
Engineering Group upon the reform of Jian Gong BISEBEI V&= N&EER3BE
Hospital in 2003, the Group operates a defined benefit RIKABEBIE—BRERAGTE - RIB
plan for 35 retirees. Under the plan, the retirees are Zat8l ZERARABEEREEZESN
entitled to certain medical insurance and funeral A ZAE TEERR REZEMHE - &E
compensation until death. As at 31 December 2019, 201912 A31H  HEARKA B AH
18 retirees (2018: 20 retirees) remain. 18 A (2018%F : 20 BIKAEB) °
The plan exposes the Group to the risk of changes in ZETEF A EEHBRRAESERESS
the life expectancy for the pensioners. ek o

ERERERERAA —= NFWm 215



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. RAERNZFE @

(continued)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

The movement in the present value of the defined
benefit obligations are as follows:

AEBAFE @
RERNEEZRELBMOT :

At 1 January ®1H1H 17,638 20,297
Current service cost and interest cost  BIHABRFEAK AN K | B A 2K 699 —
Benefit paid =ENE=Fl (1,875) (2,659)
Remeasurement losses in other REMEHEEENERN

comprehensive loss FTEEE 1,658 —
At 31 December M12H31H 18,120 17,638

The remeasurement losses of the defined benefit
obligations represent mainly actuarial losses arising
from changes in demographic assumptions, financial
assumptions and experiences adjustments.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end

RERMEBNEXNTEBEERIEH
RARRER - BBREZNERBRENE
fEMELNBERXK -

BEHREANIERERRDAT ¢

of the reporting period are as follows:

Discount rate

Expected rate of the average per
capital disposable income growth

Average longevity at retirement age for
current pensioners

AL IR = 3.00% 3.00%
FEEFABAI I RBAZ

R K 10.00% 10.00%
EAEE RIKA BRI

= 94 94
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B K 3R FT ST

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. RKBRET @

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(continued)

Defined benefit plan (continued) RERAGE @

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant HERSHR HEEZRIJNTEHX
assumptions as at the end of the reporting period is EDMWM TR :

shown below:

2019 2019%F
Discount rate ALIR X 1.00%
Expected average per TEEI A AT R A
capital disposable TR K
income growth rate 1.00%
Average longevity at RINFRHFEHED 1 year
retirement age 57
2018 20184
Discount rate JEpEpe 1.00%
Expected average per TEHA A9 A] X BL A
capital disposable TR &
income growth rate 1.00%
Average longevity at RINFH O FEHEw 1 year
retirement age 145

(1,126) 1.00% 1,020
1,190 1.00% (1,008)
1 year
1,372 15 (1,465)
(1,024) 1.00% 1,132
691 1.00% (1,132)
1 year
1,501 145 (1,384)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on

EX2MBRED T RRIE—ETE
MSH - AR B R ERS R
BAEMTRRRBELESER LMY AE

defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based
on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
may not be representative of an actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes
in assumptions would occur in
another.

isolation of one

As at 31 December 2019, the Group expected to make
payment of RMB1,872,000 (2018: RMB1,621,000)
under the defined benefit plan in the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

BHNEEELENTE -

o BRI R

EZRENE(L  ARTHAEEMERR
TE o EX2FNEURE DR B RIR
REBMETNERZL  ARHRET

AR R B AR -

R2019F 128318 AEBRERTE
AT B S MEBRETHREK =
8 A TEH 5 B A R #1,872,0007T
(20184 : AR®1,621,0007T) °

EHBRERARAA

—T-hER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36. DEFERRED TAX 36. IELEH
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FREEREBENREEZZEEBHWNT

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities FEEHEE

At 1 January 2018 720181 A1H 317,627 — 317,627

Deferred tax credited to the F AT AL B
consolidated statement of KRB
profit or loss during the (MF3E12)
year (note 12) (1,253) — (1,253)

Gross deferred tax liabilities 72018412 A31H
at 31 December 2018 and %2019 1A1H

at 1 January 2019 JHBEER AR 316,374 — 316,374
Deferred tax charged/ FrMa,/GtA)
(credited) to the ReEBEmR B

consolidated statement of ER (FFE12)
profit or loss during the
year (note 12) (626) 2,274 1,648

Gross deferred tax liabilities 72019412 A31H
at 31 December 2019 ZBRER BE 315,748 2,274 318,022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. Eﬁﬁ(%)
Deferred tax assets EEMREE

At 1 January 2018, at 31 December 2018 and 20181418 -

at 1 January 2019 201812 A318 &
201941 A1H =
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FRFTAGREBER CELER
statement of profit or loss during the year (FfFzE12)
(note 12) 188
Gross deferred tax assets R2019F12 83182
at 31 December 2019 BREERE E 188
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets BIHmME - BUBELEREEMBELR
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of FEHBARRRRPEN - ATEAEE
financial position. The following is an analysis of the MBS S EERRRERN DT

deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE IR R R FER
in the consolidated statement ZEERBEFE

of financial position 317,834 316,374

ERBEEERERLAT T 9% 219
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of the following items:

36. IE LR @)

ATIRE NMERELEHEE

Tax losses M ER 37,007 103,069
Deductible temporary differences AN BERER 23,374 11,871
60,381 114,940

The above tax losses arising in Mainland of China will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the above items as it is not considered
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the above items can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

BaERERASELEREBEEHIN =
hERBIPAREERELAEBRA
BIRRRER B A o L atIR B TR e
RBBIEFISREE - TTHREERE
JERR BN E L P Lt 7R B K 3K 2 T e
MK o

BEFBECEMETE  HEREAM
BRI E P ERINRIREET IR
MR B & 10% K TBIRRL - BREERE
20084F 1 A1 B BAEX - BMAM2007F
12A3TBZEFEEMEZ - IARF
B A BN EE N BB R 2 BA T
WipE - RITEARENTERTIE - 5t
AEEME - EARER10% ° Bt -
BU2008F 1 A1 AFAKRELERN K
REEE R Est H AR B A Sz Bt
BAan iR EREIERE
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37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 December 2019, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries and a
joint venture established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries and joint venture will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB2,019,815,000 at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB1,472,211,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to
the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL
Shares

36.

37.

iR B )

R2019F12A31H » MEELETHEA
REBRFBRAKL 2B AR RE
BN A2 WaR 78 2 AR TR R B 4 i R
WIBRY - EFRR - BLEHMB AT
A& AR TE R R i s
AT EEMERIR » WRERELETIBAE

Z B B A P B R R

REERAZ

WERB s ER =5 2 #5E1N2019F
12 A31H# A AR¥2,019,815,0007T
(20184 : AR#1,472,211,0007T) °

ARBABRRZ RS TG AESE

EAEMFERER -
7S
B 5

Authorised: EE
3,040,000,000 ordinary shares 3,040,000,000 /% &% 0.00025
of HK$0.00025 each BT E B 633 633
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHAE
1,296,676,516 ordinary shares 1,296,676,516 1% & [ 0.00025
of HK$0.00025 each BT L BR 267 267

Share awards

Details of the Share Award Scheme and the shares
awarded under the Share Award Scheme are included
in note 38 to the financial statements.

B 2 B

7 B2 Bt 8 R AR B 1) 2R Rt 81 1%
HY B0 B R 1B B B S TR R P R 38

EHBRERARAA

—E-NER
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5ot 75 0 2% B o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

On 7 July 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme as a means to recognise the
contribution of and provide incentives for the key
management personnel, employed experts and core
employees.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme
include the Company’s directors, senior management,
employed experts and core employees of the Group.
The Share Award Scheme will remain in force for 10
years from 7 July 2014, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to
be granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited
to 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 August 2018. The maximum number of shares
which may be awarded to each eligible participant in
the Share Award Scheme is limited to 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 August
2018.

The eligible participant for participation in the Share
Award Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected
and the number of shares to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme is determined by the board of
directors. The board of directors also determines
whether the shares will be awarded with or without
payment of a price by the Selected Participant (the
“Grant Price”) and the amount of the Grant Price. The
shares to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme
will be purchased by a trustee (the “Trustee”) from the
open market out of cash contributed by the Group and
be held on trust for the Selected Participant until such
shares are vested with the Selected Participant in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award
Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in
respect of any shares held on trust for the Company
or the Selected Participant.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

R2014F7 878 » XA B ERH I 5 82
BhEtElc URETEEBRAS  EBHE
REZOEENEBI A TEE -

KERET SNSRI EEREARN
B £ESREEE  IENEXRM
ZLET o RinEENFTEIB 2014567 A
7THRBRIE10F BRIESTEUES
&2k o

EHZE2018E8A31 8 ' BIERD LB
SRR A TR THEAROEBER S A
NEBBEITRARSY% » A AR TFRHE
REFT NS EER2HEENZARN
HEERNARAN2018FE8H31HE
BATIRARH1% o

EE2NENRBFENER2EE
(MEE2EE ) - REKRD EE)ET 2
BOBRNBEHEESRE -EFQE
RERTHEEZ2EEINER (K
HERDMELEBRNSBERE TR
o XEAUTXFEADBRE QAR
BB THRODBHEBRLEDN
RePRAFAMBEER - WAMEETR
REERSEERE  HIELERNKRE
i BEFFEIM R ERBREESEE D
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38. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

The following shares awarded under the Share Award
Scheme were outstanding during the year:

38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey e
31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

I% 1 S B 5t &l )

FA - RBEED BB EIREHA T
0 M AR BET

22 December 2015 8.98 (207,334) = — 22 December 2015 - 1 January 2019
20156127228 20155125220 220191410

22 December 2015 8.98 (162,667) = — 22 December 2015 - 1 January 2019
20156127228 20155128226 220191718

30 May 2019 5.27 = = 9,279,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2021
2019F5 /308 201951818 2202154 1A

30 May 2019 5.27 = (40,000) 9,239,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2022
2019458308 2019F1A18 2202254 A18

(370,001) (40,0000 18,519,800

25 May 2015 14.92 (1,082,006) - — 25 May 2015 - 13 May 2018
2015%5 /250 2016650250 2201857138
25 May 2015 14.92 (664,673) (416,666) — 25 May 2015 - 13 May 2018
2015457258 2015658250 22018554138
22 December 2015 8.98 (207,333 — 207,334 22 December 2015 - 1 January 2019
20156127228 201656128228 22019%1 A18
22 December 2015 8.98 (162,666) - 162,667 22 December 2015 - 1 January 2019
20159127228 20166128228 22019%1 A18
28 June 2018 9.35 (1,135,000) - - -
2018567288
20 July 2018 8.63 (215,000) - - -
2018%7/208
14 September 2018 7.00 (97,200) - - -
2018594148
(3,563,878) (416,666) 370,001

Dear the year, the Group recognised equity-settled
share-based payment expense of RMB13,083,000
(2018: reversal of equity-settled share-based payment

expense of RMB5,314,000).

RAFE - NEBRERIZRESE R
MEIrHAX A AKK13,083,0007T
(20184 : B HIRIREZE AR N
MHRA X ARY5,314,0007T) °
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E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

38. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 38. IR17 R BT &
The movements in the Company's treasury share FARRAIMEFROHEE 20
reserve during the year are as follows: N

At 1 January 2018 %20184 1818 (195,233)
Purchases of shares BERMm (213,947)
Vesting of shares f& 0558 24,530
At 31 December 2018 and M2018F12 A31H M20191 A1 H

at 1 January 2019 (384,650)
Award of shares HZENA 1 99,587
Vesting of shares R 5B 1,918
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 12 A31H (283,145)
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The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 110 to 111 of the financial
statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China, a portion of the profits of the
Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China has
been transferred to the statutory surplus reserve
which are restricted to use.

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of shares awarded which are yet to be
vested, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to treasury share reserve and
capital reserve when the related share awards are
vested, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related share awards expire or be
forfeited.

The actuarial changes reserve comprises the
remeasurements arising from changes in
demographic assumptions, financial assumptions
and experiences adjustments, as further explained
in the accounting policy for defined benefit plan in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Bt 35 SRR BT

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

S B A A BT 4 R 0B 18 T
BHENPHREEI0EEEINEA
BAERBHRERIIT -

REBETBEAMNE BERER
NN RSt S ATE 1= I al/NET R D
DMBEEAEZERBAE - £
AXR -

ARG RER BN R HEESE R
GENRERNANEE  H
WA RS SRR M 5T 2.4 AR (D B
WO REET KR E— R
B ZR B KRB ARG R
HBREEFTRNDHFHERE NF
1# - A AR IR (D SRR JE R 208
W RF s ZIREB A o

BEEHHEFEEE THRAOR
& VHERRNERAENE L
MELENEHE  BHNEH B
HRME2.4F A ERAENE
AABRRPE—THEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 40. BB E KFEZERERZHE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING BB AT

INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material TRETBREHEE EARIEERERA A
non-controlling interests are set out below: SEMBARMNERS

Percentage of equity interest held by HIFERER T A

non-controlling interests: P& 4 LA
Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd. IERmiEERREERAH

(“Jian Gong Hospital”) (MME=%k ) 20% 20%
Runneng Medical Management Co., Ltd HiEERBEERER A

(“Run Neng") ([B88el)) 35% —
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to RS E D FC R

non-controlling interests: FEFE(EE) :
Jian Gong Hospital =g 10,937 10,113
Run Neng B (101) —

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest {5 72 = & Bz JEHE A%

of Jian Gong Hospital HEEZIRE 10,483 11,109
Accumulated balances of non- RiER 2 R IEER

controlling interests at the reporting WEZE

date:
Jian Gong Hospital = Bhr 118,242 117,982
Run Neng B 114,470 =
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40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

|NTERESTS (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERARMEE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

40. BEEARFEERERZHES
BEME AT @

B~ B Y B BB R E A
T BBz EBEEEANQRBEH
Al Z &%

Revenue WA 722,488 -
Total expenses, net B TR (667,805) (287)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFE(E18) 54,683 (287)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FE2ERA(EE)

for the year BEE 53,024 (287)
Current assets MBEE 505,923 215,471
Non-current assets EMBEE 286,757 111,586
Current liabilities mENAE (182,951) —
Non-current liabilities EMEBBE (18,522) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating &&R&EZEFTE,(FTA)

activities WEMEFH 136,866 (287)
Net cash flows used in investing KEESFABEERE

activities ik (28,122) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing REEEEFTE,(FTA)

activities REeEREFHE (52,418) 215,758
Net increase in cash and cash RekBAEZEEBM2

equivalents FIE N 56,326 215,471

EHBRERARAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 40. BB E AFEERER 2D
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING == NG )
|NTERESTS (Continued)

Revenue A 711,048
Total expenses, net T FEE (660,481)
Profit for the year FEFH 50,567
Current assets mENE E 445 143
Non-current assets ERBEE 291,882
Current liabilities wREBEE (131,099)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (16,017)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHFEREMNEFE 75,672
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEESFABEESREFE (148,078)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BMEFFAREREFE (55,5647)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEWZFRA (127,953)
41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED M. GEBEERERKRMME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEHBRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash FA - AEEEBAYERERH
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities B FAEEEREBERENIE
of RMB21,478,000 and RMB21,478,000, BN 5lAARE21,478,000
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for JCA A R #21,478,0007T (2018
office properties (2018: Nil). F:M|)o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED M. ZERERERKROMET @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) RERMEIBELENAE
financing activities =)
2019 20194

At 31 December 2018 M2018%F12831H 254,876 490,672 =
Effect of adoption RN B B B 7S R 4
of IFRS 16 ERIE165% 2
TE = = 138
At 1 January 2019 R2019%F1A1H
(restated) (#&=51) 254,876 490,672 138
New leases FrEE — - 21,478
Changes from financing BMEREREZ D
cash flows 695 75,785 (2,733)
Non-cash changes: FEEH
Foreign exchange ()
movement - 11,880 —
At 31 December 2019 72019412 B31 B 255,571 578,337 18,883
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

41.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

2018

RERETREBROME @

(b) REMEIBHELENES
#E @

20184

At 1 January 2018 R2018F1H1H 267,834 171,362
Changes from financing MEESREEE
cash flows (42) 303,606
Non-cash changes: FREES :
Foreign exchange movement PE 5 & &) — 15,704
Interest expense FEZ W 901 —
Set off with trade receivables HIHE W E 5 IR (13,817) —
At 31 December 2018 M2018%F12831H 254,876 490,672

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

(c) HEHBEZRRETR

UTRESRERXAEHENE
SR BRER

Within operating activities KEEEA 3,237
Within financing activities BEEBR 3,261
6,498
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

42, FEIE

(a) "EBRBESHREUTZER
AR

. COMMITMENTS

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided &I #1{BREHIR
for: B -
Property, plant and BEHEME - BE
equipment &L 9,076 8,875
Repayable Investment BRAREIOTZ B
Amounts to |OT hospitals mI0T &b E
under |0T arrangements RZEEEBIRE
ok 545,889 538,000
Capital contribution to a m— B AT
subsidiary AE (i) 254,235 —
809,200 546,875
Note: B 5 -

(i)

On 3 December 2019, the Group entered into an agreement
on the formation of a joint venture (the “Joint Venture
Formation Agreement”) with China National Heavy Duty
Truck Group Co., Ltd. (FEERFEEEAFR QA
("CNHTC"), pursuant to which an entity will be formed and
held by the Group and CNHTC as to 75% and 25%,
respectively. The entity will become a subsidiary of the
Group. Pursuant to the Joint Venture Formation Agreement,
the Group committed a capital contribution to the entity in
the amount of RMB254,235,000.

EHBRERARAA

R2019F12A38 - AEEHEFHE
AEEEEERAR ([FHEENSRE
EEMDEINKRTAECENGE ([E
BhEERBH]D - B AEERN
PRERTESEBKZIMNEE @
BB HRE75% F125% MR - % &
BEKAAEENHERR - RES
BERAERR  ARERZEERA
# & AR #254,235,0007T ©

—T-hER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

42. COMMITMENTS (continued) 42. EHE @
(b) Operating lease commitments as at (b) MH2018F12831HEE

31 December 2018

The Group leased certain of its office properties
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
office properties were negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

REHERRE

AEERBEEHELHHEET
REBMRME - WAMENHE
ERHR-—FE2=F-

M2018F12A31H  KEEBE R
TAREMEEHE T RR K
EHEENZETENOT :

Within one year —F R 4,218
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRFE(RE) 1,260
5,478
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition to the balances, arrangements and (a)
transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

B ERARMEE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

43. BB AR 3

SR B RAREME D A

B T RR HFIBIN

ZN- L]

FRERBTNERZXZMT

Hospital management services B EERK
Yan Hua Hospital (note (i)) FAL BB (M) = 3,163
A subsidiary controlled by China REZEHERAF [
Resources Company Limited BUZE R |) Friz il ey —
("CR Co.") (note (ii) El N EPNSIC R - 594
GPO business GPO%7%
Yan Hua Hospital i BB = 15,376
A subsidiary controlled by CR Co. FP B O BT 2R I A9 —
=N 91 3,754
Other hospital-derived services H B B 07 4 BR
Subsidiaries controlled by CR Co. FR B 2 B BT 2 ) /9 BT B
~A] 2,627 2,233
Other income H g A
Subsidiaries controlled by CR Co. o AT I M I B
NET! 2,398 1,909
Purchases of goods REER
Subsidiaries controlled by CR Co. FP B 5P T 2R 1 A B R
NS 35,994 48,086
Investment income on financial DAREBEFEEESS
assets at FVTPL STABENHMEEE
BEWA
Subsidiaries controlled by CR Co. FR B O i 2 1 A B R
INT 5,546 —
Interest income on bank deposits $R{TERF B U A
Subsidiaries controlled by CR Co. FR B 2 B BT 2 ) 9 BT B
NG 274 —
Contribution by setting up an R REDED TN ER
urgent care clinic
A subsidiary controlled by CR Co. HR B AT A — [
Lip=pNG| = 1,139
Other purchases and expenses HihEBRER
Subsidiaries controlled by CR Co. Fh B 2 5P F 2 1 6 B B
NS 12,149 —
EPERERERAT — =47k 233




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Yan Hua Hospital is an entity controlled by the close family
members of a former substantial shareholder of the
Company, which had significant influence over the Group.
The former substantial shareholder of the Company had
disposed of all the shares of the Company it held from 24
January 2018 to 25 January 2018 and the Group ceased to
have any representative holding the position of council
member in Yan Hua Hospital from then on. Accordingly,
Yan Hua Hospital was no longer considered as a related
party of the Group since 25 January 2018 and the related
party transactions with Yan Hua Hospital disclosed for the
prior year were the transactions made from 1 January 2018
to 25 January 2018. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 25 January 2018.

CR Co. has significance influence over the Group.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Due from related parties

Subsidiaries controlled by CR Co.

43. BB AR Z @

o BB 2 8 AT 4R ) &9 B

FisE

(i)

(ii)

FILBRRBAARNEZRRMII
BEZHONER HAKEEEAY
2. ANAAMEERRELHETER
201841 H248 £20184F 1 A26 A
BRARRBABERD - BULbAfE - &
SETHAEMRKRERCEREET
BEE/KE - Bt - 5201851725
Hit  HBERTBHERRAAEEN
BE T M EFRENEKCERN
R 72 5 5201841 A1 H £2018
F1A2ENR S - FAFEFLH
ARNFEHEAE2018F1 258 A

o

FRERHAREEEATZED -

B AR 77 Y i R (EE A B

FE: W 2 Bt 75 RO

INTL
Trade in nature 254E 6,045 3,716
Non-trade in nature IESHMHE 3,339 2,323
9,384 6,039
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B FE SRR M EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BB AR Z @
(continued)
(b)  (continued) b) (%)
Due from related parties (continued) FE U B B 5 TX I ()
An ageing analysis of the trade-related REEBRBEREZE R RME
receivables as at the end of the reporting period, EEBEHBZINABRKE SR
based on the invoice date and net of loss HMERER DT T -

allowance, is as follows:

Within 60 days 60K A 6,045 3,712
61 to 180 days 612180K = 4
6,045 3,716
The amounts due from related parties are JEUW R T B R EEIT - 28
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one MAR—FANEE -
year.
Due to related parties PE 15 BB Bt 5 =K 1E

Subsidiaries controlled by CR Co. A3 B0 & B B2 il 69 B B

NG
Trade in nature =R 2,137 2,837
Non-trade in nature FESHME 2,706 410
4,843 3,247
The amounts due to related parties are ERNEs T REREER 28
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on RIRERERE -

demand.
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E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

43. BB AR Z @

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

236

(c)

Bank balances

BT ER

Subsidiaries controlled

by CR Co. A

o B 2 R T 1 O B B

27,146 154,167

The bank balances carried interest at a rate of
0.35% (2018: 0.35%) per annum.

Financial assets at FVTPL

A subsidiary controlled by CR Co.
g

BRITESR TR FEFNE0.35%
(20184 : 0.35% ) st 2 °

F [ 2 8 P 422 ) B — i

120,675 —

The financial assets at FVTPL carried interest at a
rate of 3.8% (2018: Nil) per annum.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group:

UAABEAEBEEHT AR
HZEMEERFNEISNTE
(20184 : 4#)

€0 AEETXIBZEBEABZHH:

Short term employee benefits HHESEH 34,887 18,612
Post-employment benefits B 2 1m A 450 370
Equity-settled share-based Y PR HE 45 & DARR (9 =2+t
payment expense b 3,335 216
Total compensation paid to key AEESE ASSNHE
management personnel @H%@%ﬁ 38.672 19 198
Further details of directors’ and chief executive’'s ESREIBITBABMEME—

emoluments are included in note 10 to the

financial statements.

FERFRI B RERAOMEEI0 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 4. o EEM T A
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RIEPRZ BB T AMNKREEND
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N

period are as follows:

2019 20194
Financial assets THEE

Receivables from 10T KREIOTERT 2 FE Uk
hospitals FIE = 80,979 80,979
Loan to a sponsored M — R B b
hospital RIENER — 55,062 55,062
Trade receivables JEWE 5 5K I8 - 618,698 618,698
Financial assets included in  FFATENF - REFE
prepayments, deposits & N CH Ath R
and other receivables EHHNEREE = 204,830 204,830
Due from related parties JE i A Bk 75 R IB — 9,384 9,384
Financial assets at FVTPL RAnEBEFEAR
HEFHr ABmn
ZEREE 358,254 - 358,254
Certificate of deposit FRE — 25,114 25,114
Cash and cash equivalents RE&ENBEEEEY — 2,006,220 2,006,220

358,254 3,000,287 3,358,541
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 44. E7EERM I Amw

CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities

ZHERE

238

Trade payables FERE 5 5IA 241,303
Financial liabilities included in other payables and &t A H fth fE < 2008 & fE 5t

accruals ERAMNEHAEE 141,062
Due to related parties FET AR 5 258 4,843
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JE {1 22 i i B B WO 3K TB 255,571
Interest-bearing bank borrowings A EIRITE K 578,337
Lease liabilities HEAE 18,883
1,239,999

2018 20184

Financial assets THEE

Receivables from 10T

KB I0T B 2 eI

hospitals FIA — 108,974 108,974
Loan to a sponsored M) — 2R PR B B

hospital RIEHER — 52,687 52,687

Trade receivables FEW E 5 KIA — 498,506 498,506
Financial assets included in  EFATEN - RE
prepayments, deposits & N H M FE R

and other receivables ENEmEE — 17,231 17,231

Due from related parties JE Wt BA BS: 75 SR IR — 5,696 5,696
Financial assets at FVTPL KAnEEFER
HEFr ABxm

ZERMEE 451,744 — 451,744

Certificate of deposit TFRE — 57,863 57,863

Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY = 1,524,176 1,524,176

451,744 2,265,133 2,716,877

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities

B ERARMEE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. o ELRMI Emw

THERE

Trade payables JERTE 5 5KIR 224,082

Financial liabilities included in other payables and &+ A H fth & {~ X8 & fE 51
accruals BERMemAasE 112,311
Due to related parties JET B 7 & %8 3,247
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JE 1< 2 3 1 B8 B ) SR IR 254,876
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T EERITEK 490,672
1,085,188

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, certificate of deposit, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, balances with related
parties, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, payables to the
Sponsored Hospitals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of receivables from IOT hospitals and
loan to a sponsored hospital have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair value of the listed financial asset at FVTPL are
based on quoted market prices.

The fair value of the unlisted financial assets at FVTPL
are estimated by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the market interest rates of
instruments with similar terms and risks.

45 TRITEMNAABERAR
BEEER

EREFNLTRERASEEY  FX
& BWE SR - s AR - RE
& REMBUGRIRN S REE - MR
TR ENE SR - s AR
NREREHERANSHAE  BHE
W B BT SRR A Mt BERTTR > B
ELTAFHMBERE  fIAEQAE
EROREEE -

EREENBBENAABERENRS
(BHHBFELERINFET ABER
BRIANSTBAR AT AEMBRRE
ARFHERAEE

K EIOTE BT 2 & YOk Ia K a) — ) 8 3%
BBEREHENEFNAABEERER
HARKRERE - RARFHRELUERK -
EE R KRR E HIBAMR 69 T AR A]
SHRARKREH -

UARBEFEAEZSHABENE
MEMEENAABEENTHERE -
AR BEFEAEZESH T ABERIE
themEENARBERREARR

PR R 8 TR IS K - 57A
FRAEREMHERILEES -

EHBRERARLAT T 5%

X
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

P

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

c

45. TR T EMNAREBERADS
EBEE& =

240

|NSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’'s financial
instruments:

DREEER

TRHATARELBIANA S
HEER

i

Assets measured at fair value: BAREBETEZEE
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F 12431 H

Financial assets at FVTPL AR EBEEBEEFHTA

BRzeREE 113,485 244,769 — 358,254
As at 31 December 2018 HR20184F 1231 H

Financial assets at FVTPL AR BEFEEEESA
BEZEHMEE

136,744 315,000 — 451,744

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial
assets and financial liabilities (2018: Nil).

M2019F12 A31H » ANE E I (]
AR BEAENSRAE (20184%F ¢
;) o

FReMEENESHRBEESE RN
E_RBETTFEAREBEFENSE
B REELE = RAEE (2018
Fm)o
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The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents, certificate of deposit,
financial assets at FVTPL, payables to the Sponsored
Hospitals and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to
finance the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as receivables
from 10T hospitals, loan to a sponsored hospital, trade
receivables, balances with related parties, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, and lease liabilities,
which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's loan to a
sponsored hospital and interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
interest rate risk. The Group mitigates this risk by
closely monitoring the movements in interest rates and
reviewing its available credit facilities and their
utilisation regularly.

Bt 35 SRR BT

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

FEENIZcRIARERSMES
FEY  FHE U2 EEFERR
BEABRGNEMEE  [ENRHHE
B RIREA LG BRITER - BLS
BMIANTIZENRAEENEZREM
g AKEERHMEESREEMN
B& - IR B 10T BB &) FE R IE -
REGEMEBRANER  BRESHR
I8 - BERREE T MAER - AT ATREMNR - R
EEMEMBRRBTNEREE &
MNE SR - 5T AR R M ER
ERmeRAE MHERE %FE
RERRBHEHKEED -

AEBCRIAELANHTIEARENEK
R - SNERRR - FEERR - RBIERE
R ERERER EFSFEYRE
TESEBEARNBK - BHANT -

AEBEASZNTISHEEPEAMEEE
AEBERBREBFIRHOETIALE
BEBN RN ERITERER - A%
3 EAE T S B T RS E R R
o AREBRBET I EEIENREBIW T
HESHAREEREREFERBRE
MEERERE R

EHERERERAA
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact on loan to a sponsored
hospital and interest-bearing bank borrowings).

6. EMREEEERKE @

= 2 b2 (@)

TRBRTAKENHAMNECRBY
A2 A B e fR A0 B SR AT BR1THE
RHFE) BRI RSB A sE &1L (FEFT

Ili ®

2019 20194

Loan to a sponsored hospital M — SRR B e IR B X 50 275
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — SR B T IR B (50) (275)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T EERITEK 50 (2,892)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT BERITE K (50) 2,892
2018 20184

Loan to a sponsored hospital M — 2R B T IR B 50 263
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — R HE BT IR E (50) (263)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT BERITE K 50 (2,453)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRIRITER (50) 2,453

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from operating and financing
transactions of operating units in currencies other than
the units’ functional currencies.

5 BE L B
AEMERSEEAR - iWARREES
o B 45 2 B0 LA T B S LA S ) S
BITMEENBERS -
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. I ERERE B ERBE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the United States dollars (“US$") and HK$

TREART REBATE (AEEEE
e EOAL BESE) HHREHRY
£R(ETDABTESS BT S

exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, B (EMEEMESRETEZENEBERLT)

of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the
fair values of monetary assets and liabilities).

HY R o

2019 20194
If the RMB weakens against the US$ A R¥ HETT
A 5 9
If the RMB strengthens against the WA R¥ H3ETT
uss FHE (5) (9)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ AR 4B 7T
2B 5 (28,307)
If the RMB strengthens against the AR X BT
HKS FHE (5) 28,307
2018 20184
If the RMB weakens against the US$ AR X 3ETT
A= 5 1,478
If the RMB strengthens against the WA R X 37T
uss FHE (5) (1,478)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ AR X5 7T
E 5 (24,194)
If the RMB strengthens against the WA RN BT
HK$ A& (5) 24,194
ERBRERERAT —TNFW 243
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group mainly transacts with
creditworthy third parties.

recognised and
Receivable balances are

monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end

staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due

information unless other

information

is available

without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging

classification as at 31

December.

The amounts

presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.

As at 31 December 2019

HREREEREREBEE @
EERE
AREETEEDA N EERITINE=H

‘ﬁﬁﬁé% RN IR AR S X B RE R
MALBHZRARL TEKX ©

B = A B 2 F A P R

TRETENRAEBNEEBGRNEE
BERESEERR  TEENAHE
B (BRIEEMmER T EEANHTHNE
MAKZ IERTER) - K124
NEMFELEBEESIT - 27N E B
CRHESHEERRTME -

R2019F12531H

Receivables from |OT hospitals

FEWIOT B8 B 19 7138

— Not yet past due — A AR 8 AR 80,979 - - - 80,979
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — R BT iR it
K E R
— Not yet past due — & R 8 A 55,062 - - - 55,062
Trade receivables* FEWE 5K IE* - — — 619,453 619,453
Contract assets* EREE* = = — 12,120 12,120
Financial assets included in FFATERF - RES R
prepayments, deposits and other Eﬁﬂﬂﬁqﬁlﬁ)’llﬁﬂ’lﬁ
receivables & E
— Normal** — —fg** 204,873 = = = 204,873
— Doubtful** — RE*> - = 1,084 - 1,084
Due from related parties FE e A Bk 77 RROE 3,339 — — 6,047 9,386
Certificate of deposit FRE
— Not yet past due — [ AR 8 AR 25,114 = = = 25,114
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY
— Not yet past due — & R 8 A 2,006,220 - - — 2,006,220
2,375,587 = 1,084 637,620 3,014,291
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. BB EREEEERBE w
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end BEERBRFERE @
staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2018 R2018F12531H

Receivables from 10T hospitals FEUIOTE& B 1Y
HIE
— Not yet past due — & R 8 AR 108,974 = = — 108,974
Loan to a sponsored hospital R — 52 4f4 i B8 Bt
REHER
— Not yet past due — & R 8 AR 52,687 = = = 52,687
Trade receivables* FE W E 5 5KIE * = = — 498,671 498,571
Contract assets* EREE* = = = 9,464 9,464
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AFEfTF - (RE
deposits and other receivables & R H Ath FEUL SR
HHN S REE
— Normal** — —RR** 17,231 = = = 17,231
— Doubtful** — RigExx — — 333 — 333
Due from related parties JE U B B 5 3R 2,323 — — 3,373 5,696
Certificate of deposit FRE
— Not yet past due — R 57,863 = = = 57,863
Cash and cash equivalents HekREEEY
— Not yet past due — & R 8 AR 1,524,176 = = — 1,524,176
1,763,254 — 333 511,408 2,274,995

e For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies * P E ERSCRES AN EKRE 5 RIE
the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the REHEE  ERBEEENER D BIRIT
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 26 and 27 to the financial BREM 26 R 27 HE -
statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, = EMNFE - RES REMERIES RS
deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when MeMEENEELERRAI—K] XA
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that REERRBZEREEBVHRERARE
the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since BEBRBEZEN - FAl cREENEEL
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial ERRAZ[RE] -
assets is considered to be “doubtful”

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's EBEASERERE S HREMEENE

exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables E R 8 — S E(LBRE T B HREM

are disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements. 26 EE o
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. IR REEEEREE @w

246

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to
shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity
risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities
of financial assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its risk to a shortage of funds by considering the
maturities of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank borrowings. The Group aims to
maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet
its liquidity requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Group

RENE < E

mBE R IEA R EEE S5 5Rm &
NEITHMBEENRER - AEBEEERD
nPpETRRTIEXREEMEENEE
MEHIREEE - AREBRBEETHME
EMEREENDH A RERE SRR
R

AEEHBREBBERRTERESR
SHBEMNER N 2 BREFTE - K
SEEEHFREANES RS EFE
W AmRERBESHL

RIBERREBERMAR  MEPRAEE
TREENIIHBERDT

ZE

Trade payables FERTE 5B 241,303 - 241,303

Financial liabilities included in other FTONE BB A RRIE R e 5T B
payables and accruals Eofertzi =R 141,062 - 141,062
Due to related parties FE AT BABSE 75 3RIE 4,843 - 4,843
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals FE AT 2R Mt i B BT O RUIB 255,571 - 255,571
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTERITER 581,869 - 581,869
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,287 15,178 20,465
1,229,935 15,178 1,245,113
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

B 5 R R I EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

BERREEEERBE @

AEE L E M m

Trade payables FERE 5308 224,082 = 224,082

Financial liabilities included in other T AE AR FRIR R e BB
payables and accruals NemasE 112,311 — 112,311
Due to related parties &1~ BB 7 50R 3,247 — 3,247
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals FE AT 2R P i B B O SR 1A 254,876 = 254,876
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTRIRITERK 493,099 — 493,099
1,087,615 — 1,087,615

- - - pYa
Equity price risk R ERE R

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investment included in
financial assets at FVTPL (note 23) as at 31 December
2019. The Group's listed investment is listed on the
Hong Kong stock exchange and is valued at quoted
market price at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and its respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

E% —
A

Hong Kong —
Hang Seng Index

28,190 30,280/24,897

Rz BSR4 BB P RE 2 18 BN B8 (28
FEENSHERNERFSFAAEE
TEREYE R o AN SR [ A9 55 B AR B Bt
REMR2019F12 A3 BER AR
AEEFEAEEZHTAETHERZNS
BEE (MaF23)MEEERKZE - K
SR EMRERENRERRFM LT - B
RIEHRUTIS RET= -

AT EH R 5 R ANF ERIZ RS
RO 5 ARSI - A RRA
FENGSMRENESERAT

25,846 33,484/24,541

ERBRERBRAR — T FH
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. IR REEEEREE @w
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

ERERERR @

TRER THEEMEERFTEARK

FE - ERERREEARERR
MEEEE BaRkRENQAAEEED
5% K BURE DT ©

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 5% change in the fair value of the equity
investment, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on its carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period.

248

2019

Investment listed in:
Hong Kong — Financial assets at

20194

BE EWR
BE — ARAABEFE

FVTPL BEZT AEHHER
ML EE 113,485 5,674
2018 20184
Investment listed in: BE - FmR:
Hong Kong — Financial assets at BE — UAnEBEFE
FVTPL BEZHT AEHER
ML REE 136,744 6,837
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47. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

e

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

B 5 R R I EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

47. A RRETENB LRIV

China Resources Hospital Management &
Consulting Co. Ltd.*

ERBRERRAERLOA

Jian Gong Hospital

BBk

Beijing Wanrong Yikang Medical
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

ARBREREEARLA

Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical Devices
Co., Ltd.
FTrEREEERRRERAH

Beijing Phoenix Easylife Healthcare
Consulting Co., Ltd.
G RERGERERTHEABRAA

Beijing Phoenix Easylife Technology and
Trade Co., Ltd.
TREREENMBERLA

Beijing Yisheng Yongxin Medical
Equipment Co., Ltd.
FRBEKERREEAERAA

PRC/Mainland China

hE/PEAL

PRC/Mainland China

hE/RER

PRC/Mainland China

hE /R ERL

PRC/Mainland China

hE/PEAL

PRC/Mainland China

hE/RER

PRC/Mainland China

hE /R ERL

PRC/Mainland China

hE/PEAL

RMB500,000,000

AR #500,000,0007C

RMB420,552,600

AR #420,552,6007C

RMB3,000,000

AR #3,000,0007

RMBA4,000,000

AR #4,000,0007

RMB1,000,000

AR %1,000,0007

RMB500,000

AR#500,0007T

RMBA4,000,000

AR #4,000,0007

100

80

100

100

100

100

100

100

80

100

100

100

100

100

ERBRERSRAF

Investment holding and
hospital
management

RERREERER

General healthcare

services
GABERE

GPO business

GPO%#

GPO business

GPO%7%

Other hospital-derived
services

b Uankai v

GPO business

GPO%#H

GPO business

GPO%7%
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47. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 47. X AR EEMB R RANFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()
(continued)
Phoenix Baokong Healthcare Hospital PRC/Mainland China US$5,000,000/ 100 100 Hospital management
Management Co., Ltd.* US$8,000,000
BERRERERERAR" hE/HERD 5,000,0005% 7T,/ BhER
8,000,000% T
Beijing Phoenix United Innovation PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000/ 100 100 Other hospital-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. RMB20,000,000 services
TREBAREANEREAGRAA e/ REN AR%10,0007/ H i B 074 R
AR#20,000,0007
Beijing Runkang Yisheng UCC Clinic PRC/Mainland China RMB10,010,000/ 100 100 Other hospital-derived
Management Co., Ltd. RMB20,000,000 services
IR EREEDMERARAA HE/HERL AE10,010,0007/ ot B80T 67 ARAS
AR#20,000,0007
Wuhan Runzhiyun Technology Co., Ltd PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000/ 100 100 Other hospital-derived
(formerly known as Beijing Phoenix RMB10,000,000 services
United Innovation Information
Technology Co., Ltd)
REASERRARLAR GIEALRBE  +RE/FENH ARE10,0007,/ H BB TR
BEIEERIERAR) AE 10,000,007
Beijing Lihetang Healthcare Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000/ 100 100 Other hospital-derived
Co., Ltd. RMB1,000,000 services
IRENERRERERAA HE/HERL ARE10,0007T,/ ot B80T 67 AR A
AR%1,000,00070
250  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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47. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 47. AR EENB ATV

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()

(continued)

Shenzhen Yukangrun Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 100 100 Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.

RITRREERERERAR e/ HE R ARE10,0007 RERR

China Resources Hospital Investment PRC/Mainland China US$100,000,000 100 100 Hospital management
(China) Co., Ltd.* services

ERBRRE (PE)ERAR* hE/HER 100,000,000 ERERRE

China Resources Hospital Management PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 100 100 Hospital management
Co., Ltd. services

ERBRERERAR hE/REN 10,000,000% ERERRY

China Resources Hospital Holding PRC/Mainland China RMB52,000,000 100 100 Hospital management
Company services

ERBRERERAR e/ HE R AR%52,000,00070 BREBRE

999 Clinic PRC/Mainland China RMB4,000,000 100 100 Other hospital-derived

services

SABEMZ BRI ERERARRA hE/HER AR%4,000,0007T B8 B 7 4 AR 7%

Beijing Hezhongsuyu Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 60 60  Other hospital-derived
Management Co., Ltd. services

FRERERERERBRAT hE/hER AR 1,000,000 E it B h 7 R

Beijing Mingshihoude Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 60 60  Other hospital-derived

Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
FRRRREEREREARRAT

BE/HER

AK#1,000,0007

ERBRERSRAF

services

B ft BB 74 R

—E—NFR
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47. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 47. ZRBETEWB AT NFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()
(continued)
Beijing Zhikangjiantong Hospital PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB1,000,000 60 60  Other hospital-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services
IRERREERERAAERAT HE/HERL AREOT/ H i B 74 R
AR %1,000,00070
Wuhan Jiayi United Medical Devices PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB1,000,000 100 100 GPO business
Co., Ltd.
REEGHABRENERAT PE/RERLY AREOTL/ GPO%H
AR1,000,0007T
Guangzhou Jiayi Medical Equipments PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB1,000,000 100 100 GPO business
Co, Ltd.
BNERBEREERAA E/RERY AREOTL,/ GPO%H
AR 1,000,000
Hubei Wanyining Medical Equipments PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100 100 GPO business
Co, Ltd. (“Hubei Wanyining")
(note (b))
BUABFEBEERAR(TALEFE]) 8/ FEAM AR 83,000,000 GPO%%
(Bt (b))
Beijing Phoenix Lianyi Supply Chain PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000/ 100 100 Hospital management
Management Co., Ltd. RMB5,000,000 services
TREEMEHEEEEERAF hE/PEN AR %1,000,0007,/ BRERRY
AR %5,000,0007
Beijing Phoenix Cinda Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 100 100 Hospital management
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services
IRBBREEREREAARAA hE/hERD AR¥100,0007 BREBRS
Guangzhou Boen Doctor Group Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB1,000,000 60 60  Other hospital-derived
services
ENERELREERAT E/RERL AREOTL/ H BRI RS
AR %1,000,0007
252  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019




47. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

47.

(%)

B 5 R R I EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

RARETEMBLARNFS

Hainan Runfeng Medical Service Co., Ltd.

SEERERREARREAA

Beijing Runhuaxinkang Hospital
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
FTRBELRERERARERAA

Shenzhen Runkang Spring Bamboo
Shoot Clinic
RBREEMDE

Guangzhou Runyitang Pharmacy
Co., Ltd.
BNABERERERAR

Beijing Runhuaxieya Hospital
Management Co., Ltd#
FREEEREERERERAAN

Xuzhou Xinmeijian Medical Technology
Co., Ltd*
RINLERBENRBERAR

Beijing Youaokang Medical Technology
Co., Ltd*
FTRBRRRBERIBERAR

Beijing Duledefang Technical Consulting
Co., Ltd.*
FRMSESREFRERAA!

PRC/Mainland China

hE /R ERL

PRC/Mainland China

hE /R ER

PRC/Mainland China

hE/hEAY

PRC/Mainland China

BE/RERL

PRC/Mainland China

hE /R ERL

PRC/Mainland China

hE/RER

PRC/Mainland China
HE /B,
PRC/Mainland China

hE/PEAL

RMB600,000/

RMB1,000,000
AR 600,007,/
AR 1,000,000

RMB2,500,000

AR%2,500,0007T

RMB1,000,000

AR %1,000,0007

Nil/RMB500,000
ARBERL/
AR 500,007
RMB1,000,000
AK#1,000,0007
RMB500,000/
RMB1,000,000
ARE500,0007/
AR%1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000
AR %1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007

100

60

100

100

51

60

60

60

ERBRERSRAF

100

60

100

100

Other hospital-derived
services

B ft BB 74 R

Other hospital-derived
services

Bt B b7 R

Other hospital-derived
services

R it B 074 R

GPO business

GPO¥%

Other hospital-derived
services

B ft BB 74 R

Other hospital-derived
services

b ankai v

Other hospital-derived
services

b ankai v

Other hospital-derived
services

Efth BB 074 IR
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

47. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 47. KRB EEME A TNFS
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()
(continued)

Run Neng (note (al) PRC/Mainland China RMB318,818,000 65 —  Hospital management
services
EEACIEE) hE/HERD AR%318,818,0007T B EBRK
These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned ZEWBRARRBEPEEZZMAINEGEE
enterprises under PRC law. i1-E
& These subsidiaries were newly established during the year. * ZEWMBRATIRNENFKL ©
The above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the LB AT IRA AR BERS -
Company.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company FRE AN D EED ST B EARE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally BAFEEEESBRAEEEEFELY
affected the results for the year or formed a TERPHARABHE AR - NAAE
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To A BRHEMBAREIEBEY
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion BREENTLE o
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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47. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

During the year, the Group and China Energy Engineering Group
Assets Management Co., Ltd. (REIgEREZREBEEETEARAA)
("CEE Group Assets Management”), the non-controlling shareholder
of Run Neng, contributed additional capital into Run Neng. The
contributions by the Group and CEE Group Assets Management
were in the form of cash of RMB215,758,000 and sponsorship
rights of certain hospitals, respectively. The fair value of the
sponsorship rights as at the date of contribution was
RMB116,177,000.

On 5 July 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Hubei
Wanyining for a cash consideration of RMB3,800,000 from an
independent third party. Hubei Wanyining is engaged in the sale of
merchandises, such as pharmaceuticals, medical devices and
medical consumables. The acquisition was made as part of the

Group's strategy to expand its GPO business.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Hubei

Wanyining as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

(b)

B 5 R R I EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

47. KRR EEME QA TNFERE

(%)

FR - AEEERGEEREREEEETE
BRAR ([PREEEEESE] B3k
PERRBRER) - [AEREEHBEINE S - AEEH
TREEZEEEEETESIUNRSARE
215,758,0007T & & T 2 br 0y 8 P (5 BT
B-REERH REBREZAABER
AR#116,177,0007T °

20186 7A5H « AEBR—EZBILE=H
B BREN100%MHE - BEREAA
R #3,800,0007¢ - Mt BFAEN EHEN D
(Blanged - BEBEWM K EAEM) o ik
RAEEERGPOEB 2RI Z —IR °

REERH - Bt EF BN ARNEERE
BZAREBENT

Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 15 217
Other intangible assets HthEEEE 18 4,185
Inventories w8 2,001
Trade receivables JEWE 5 FIH 3,004
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT SR IE K E At B WK IE 1,727
Cash and bank balances & R|ITAE 844
Other payables H A /&5 58 (8,178)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBEZAIZNEEFENRE 3,800

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a

subsidiary is as follows:

BN B RRRERNITAT

Cash consideration RERE (3,500)
Cash and bank balances acquired BN & RIRITHAR 844
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in REEFBBReRETRERASE

cash flows from investing activities Bz Fm (2,656)
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

47. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 47. R B EXEME A TS
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()
(continued)
Notes: (continued) B aE - (&)
fe) In 2018, the Group disposed of the entire equity interest of a @) N20184F  AEER—EBUF=HHE—
subsidiary to an independent third party for a cash consideration of B AR IRE REABRESARE
RMB2,855,000. 2,855,0007T °

Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFME:
Property, plant and equipment W BB R 15 1,245
Trade receivables FEWE 5 KA 617
Cash and bank balances & RRITRE 360
Other payables F At & T 5R0R (1,722)
500
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MRBA R MK 7 2,355
2,855
Satisfied by: ATEIA XA
Cash BHe 2,855
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HARLE—BNBEARRERECEEBYZ
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: FRANDTAT ¢

Cash consideration RERE 2,855

Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHERS RIBITHERS (360)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect AREE—MENBARNRERREEEYZ
of disposal of a subsidiary FRA 2,495
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The outbreak of novel coronavirus (“COVID-19")
continues to spread throughout China and to
countries across the world. The Group will
monitor the developments of the situation of
COVID-19 closely, assess and react actively to its
impacts on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. Up to the date of approval
of these financial statements, the assessment is
still in progress.

Given the dynamic nature of these
circumstances, the related impact on the Group's
consolidated results of operations, cash flows and
financial condition could not be reasonably
estimated at this stage and will be reflected in
the Group’s 2020 interim and annual financial
statements.

Details of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement dispute are
included in note 28 to the financial statements.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital filed an
appeal to the Beijing Higher People's Court in
January 2020 and the court hearing date is not
yet fixed.

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, the Group adopted IFRS 16 on 1 January
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, the comparative amounts in the financial
statements were not restated and continued to be
reported under the requirements of the previous
standard, IAS 17, and related interpretations.

Bt 35 SRR BT

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

(a BHFAEEMBEE([COVID-19])
ERBIEAEENEE - UARHE
RETHASHEL A5
EER BRI ECOVID-19Z 1F A%
RIBEMR - aF A E B AR KB BAR
SRR S AR B R B i AR R
RE -BEHBKHREREINER
B AHE ST o

ER L BERFES(L - BRIE
EEBMEEEAEENGE
MEEES B RMP KRR
MEATE: ERBREAEE
#20204F R HA A0 F 2 BF 75 R &
q:n °

(b) FHEIOT hk FaE A F BB FIR BT
MK M 728 - MEHI KRR - #
b BB K 351t B& Be 11 202061 A
mitREEAREREL £5F -
EBT BV B B i R A E e

A TSR RMT 2.2 — R - AE
E7X201951 A1 BB KIEET R EW
EEBTBEBRM B RELERE165E
EERIDET @ MBRRTPNAIELER
TRORBEY - MAERBARTHZER -
REFTERIE17TRAMBAREEZ XK
BEETRS -

EHERERERAA
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OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 50. Z< 2 5] 81 # ik 5 3R &

T AARRRERE BB BRR
BEER

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARHKRE 6,107,582 6,094,499
Due from subsidiaries JE Ui B BB N B Rk OB 230,491 141,709
Total non-current assets BIERBEE 6,338,073 6,236,208
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 11,211 3,380
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Other payables and accruals H b B R FEET & A 4,833 4,066
Due to subsidiaries FE BT B R RIFRIB 122,533 33,275
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITEE 578,337 490,672
Total current liabilities wREEE 705,703 528,013
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAaBEFEE (694,492) (524,633)
Net assets BEFE 5,643,581 5,711,675
EQUITY % 1
Share capital &N 267 267
Reserves (note) s () 5,643,314 5,711,308
Total equity B R 5,643,581 5,711,575
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERARMEE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 50. A A R BERRIKEER @
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

51.

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

ff

ARRNREHEREZNT

At 1 January 2018 #2018%1 818 6,296,012 1,655 (195,233) 12,996 (86,816) 6,028,614
Profit and total comprehensive income FEFIBRRZERALE
for the year = = = = 6,137 6,137
Purchases of shares for the Share Award BERH RBEIMRND
Scheme = = (213,947) — — (213,947)
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangement 1Rz 4 E AR (7
DS = = = 5,539 = 5,539
Transfer of share-based payment reserve upon BR1n BN EH I TR D 3R B
the vesting of shares under the Share Award BUARDEREED
Scheme #i = (7.217) 24,530 (17,313) = -
Final 2017 dividend 2017 F KBRS (115,035) — - — — (115,035)
At 31 December 2018 and at 1 January 2019 20185124318 &
20191818 6,180,977 (5,562) (384,650) 1,222 (80,679) 5,711,308
Profit and total comprehensive income FEFMBRZARALE
for the year = = = = 7,425 7,425
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangement 1R 4 E AR (7
[oE§-¢7 3 - - - 13,083 - 13,083
Award of shares under the Share Award RAR (D R EET & R BAR D
Scheme (56,602) = 99,587 = = 42,985
Transfer of share-based payment reserve upon R REFETROEE
the vesting of shares under the Share Award &R G Y
Scheme #y% = (698) 1,918 (1,220) = =
Final 2018 dividend 2018F K EIR & (131,487) = - - - (131,487)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A318 5,992,888 (6,260) (283,145) 13,085 (73,254) 5,643,314

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of shares
awarded which are yet to be vested, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to treasury share
reserve and capital reserve when the related share awards are vested, or
be transferred to accumulated losses should the related share awards

expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2020.

51.

BN AERINNEEEENRABRBENE R T
BROM AR EE  ENERBRRME2.45 AR
DNRO B BRTE—TRE - Z2 RS ERH
RERNGEBREERETRNBEBRARHERF X
E AR A AR D BM Sk ORI 88 R R AT B -

MR R A

B RRN2020F3 A 24 HEZE =€t
R -

EHBRERARLAT T 5%

X
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1N
FINANCIAL SUMMARY — IN ACCORDANCE WITH
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

MBERE — RERERMBEHREEL

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS #R&%4&

Revenue Yz 2,115,320 2,059,478 1,877,724 1,532,831 1,372,267
Profit/(loss) before tax BaiFE,/ (E8) 541,299 588,943 559,507  (1,452,481) 247,968
Income tax expense FEHHAX (140,665) (149,387) (129,812) (47,331) (75,554)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFE/(BE) 400,634 439,556 429,695  (1,499,812) 172,414

Attributable to; IATALES:
Owners of the parent [EUNGIE PN 390,865 430,898 421,034 (1,506,964) 167,045
Non-controlling interests kR 9,769 8,658 8,661 7,152 5,369
400,634 439,556 429,695  (1,499,812) 172,414

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERE&E

Total assets BERE 7,873,981 7,319,483 6,914,201 6,448,336 2,255,469
Total liabilities BafE (1,733,806)  (1,609,664)  (1,312,633) (1,090,806 (392,737)

6,140,175 5,709,819 5,601,568 5,357,530 1,862,732

Equity attributable to: PTRATEG#ES :
Owners of the parent [SUNGIEZDN 5,903,700 5,589,498 5,481,731 5,238,379 1,747,878
Non-controlling interests el e 236,475 120,321 119,837 119,151 114,854

6,140,175 5,709,819 5,601,568 5,357,530 1,862,732
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"Ample Mighty”

“Articles of Association”
or “Articles”

"Audit Committee”

"Award Shares”

"Board” or “Board of
Directors”

“BVI"

“CG Code”

“Centralised Drugs
Procurement Policy”

“Chairman”

"Chief Executive Officer”

“Chief Financial Officer”

“China” or “PRC"

“"Companies Ordinance”

B5

Ample Mighty Premium Limited (formerly known as Ample Mighty Limited), a
company incorporated under the laws of BVI and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

the articles of association of our Company adopted on September 30, 2013
and as amended from time to time

the audit committee of the Board

such Shares awarded pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the maximum
number of which shall not exceed 10% of the total issued capital of the
Company as at August 31, 2018 and 1% of the total number issued Shares to

each of the Selected Participant as at August 31, 2018

the board of Directors of our Company

the British Virgin Islands

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
The centralised drugs procurement policy via cross-regional alliances for the
public medical institutions in eleven pilot cities (i.e. Beijing, Tianjin, Shanghai,
Chongging, Shenyang, Dalian, Xiamen, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Chengdu and
Xi‘an) according to the policy of the “Notice on the National Centralized
Procurement and Use Pilot Program for Drugs” issued by the General Office
of the State Council of the People’s Republic of China on January 17, 2019
the chairman of our Board

the chief executive officer of the Company

the chief financial officer of the Company

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
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“Company” or “our
Company” or “China
Resources Medical”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

“CR Bank”

"CR Healthcare Group”

“CR Holdings”

"CR Hospital
Management &
Consulting”

"

"Director(s)

“Eligible Persons”

"Executive President”

“FY2018"

“FY2019"

BE

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (8 &% AR A 7)),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on
February 28, 2013

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules, or where the
context requires, refers to China Resources Company Limited (FFEZEHER A
A]) (formerly known as China Resources National Corporation (/1 EZ= B8 A
al))

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd.

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Hong Kong

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (ZEH(EE)AR A A, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Resources Company Limited (/1 B#H AR A 7))
and the indirect holding company of CR Healthcare Group

China Resources Hospital Management & Consulting Co. Ltd. (ZEEEREIRK
BB AR]) (formerly known as Beijing Phoenix United Hospital Management
Consulting Co. Ltd. (JtREEE A BRERZAMBMR2AF), Beiing Phoenix
United Hospital Management Co., Ltd. (Jt REEH A B ERER A A]) and
Beijing Phoenix United Hospital Management Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (1t 5Bl /El
A B EERM AR AR, a limited liability company established under the
laws of the PRC on November 6, 2007, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

the directors of our Company or any of them

any of the (i) key management personnel including the Directors and senior
management of the Group; (i) employed experts as nominated by the Board;
and (iii) core employees of the Group

the executive president of our Company

the financial year ended December 31, 2018

the financial year ended December 31, 2019
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“Group”, “our Group”,
“we” or “us”

“"HK$"” or “HKD" and
“HK cent(s)” or
“cent(s)”

“Hong Kong”

“Huaikuang Hospital”

“Huaikuang Hospital
Group”

“IAS”

“IFRSs”

“10T"

"IOT Hospitals”

“Jian Gong Hospital”

“Jing Mei Hospital”

"Jing Mei Hospital Group”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Mentougou Hospital”

BE

our Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollar and cent(s) respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Huaibei Miner General Hospital* (#E1bTE T 4858 F%)

collectively, Huaikuang Hospital and certain affiliated hospitals and community
clinics

International Accounting Standards
International Financial Reporting Standards
the "invest-operate-transfer” model

third-party hospitals and clinics, which we manage and operate under the 10T
model

Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd.* (tRTfEEERARAA]), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on May 12, 2003 and
a subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor, Beijing Construction Worker
Hospital (It M EZ2E T AERR), before its reform

Jing Mei Hospital* (Jb R B & B 48 & Fr)

collectively, Jing Mei Hospital and its affiliated hospitals and community
clinics

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange, i.e. November 29, 2013

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Beijing Mentougou Hospital (It RTFPIEREEEPT), a not-for-profit hospital
established under the laws of the PRC in 1951 and wholly owned by the

Mentougou District government, which we began managing in June 2010
pursuant to the Mentougou IOT Agreement
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“Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children”

“Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children
IOT Agreement”

“Mentougou 10T
Agreement”

“Mentougou TCM
Hospital 10T
Agreement”

“Mentougou Traditional

Chinese Medicine
Hospital”

“Model Code”

“Nomination Committee”

“OT"

“OT Hospital”

“Pinyu”

“Prospectus”

“PMM"

BE

Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children (F9 388 & 17 40 1R & Bz)
incorporated under the laws of the PRC in 1983 and wholly owned by the
Mentougou District government, which we began managing in September
2014 pursuant to the Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children 10T
Agreement

the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District government
on September 23, 2014

collectively, the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District
government on July 30, 2010, as amended

the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District government

on June 6, 2012

Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital (3t R FISEEBRE P EEFR), a
not-for-profit hospital established under the laws of the PRC in 1956 and
wholly owned by the Mentougou District government, which we began
managing in June 2012 pursuant to the Mentougou TCM Hospital |IOT
Agreement

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

the nomination committee of the Board
the “operate-transfer” model
third-party hospital which we manage and operate under the OT model

Pinyu Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI on January
3, 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

the prospectus of the Company dated November 18, 2013

pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables
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“Remuneration
Committee”

“Reporting Period”

“RMB"

“Run Neng Hospitals”

"Selected Participant(s)”

“SFO"

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

"Share Award Scheme”

“Share Option Scheme”

"Stock Exchange”

"UMP Healthcare
Holdings”

“United States” or “U.S.”

“U.S. dollar” or “US$”

“Wugang Hospital”

BE

the remuneration committee of the Board

the period from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

collectively, Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital* (EXR T8 E /1 %Fx), Beijing
CEEC Hospital* (it AP 8E£7EEBR), Guangxi Hydropower Hospital* (/& 77K & &8

Bz) and CEEC Anhui Hospital* (Fr8EE % 2 Fx)

Eligible Persons selected by the Board in accordance with the terms of the
Share Award Scheme

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

share(s) with par value of HK$0.00025 each in the capital of our Company
holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board pursuant to a
resolution passed by the Board on July 7, 2014, as amended by the Board on

May 25, 2015 and August 31, 2018

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant to a
resolution passed by our Shareholders on September 30, 2013

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (Ht& BB SEBEABRAF), a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, whose shares are listed on the

Stock Exchange (stock code: 722)

the United States of America, its territories and possessions, and all areas
subject to its jurisdiction

United States dollar, the lawful currency of the United States

=

China Resources Wugang General Hospital* (£ 8 & S 42 5 F%)
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“Wugang Hospital Group”

“Xukuang Hospital”

“Yan Hua Hospital”

“Yan Hua Hospital Group”

“Yan Hua Hospital
Investment
Management

Agreement”

“Yan Hua 10T
Agreement”

“Yan Hua Phoenix”

In this report, the terms

BE

collectively, Wugang Hospital, Wuhan Iron and Steel (Group) Corporation No. 2
Staff Hospital* (EL)Z#E (S£B) A FE B TEF) and certain affiliated
hospitals and community clinics

Xuzhou Mining Hospital* (%N & 1L E&B7)
Yan Hua Hospital* (1t = #{b B8 Fx)

collectively, Yan Hua Hospital and the community clinics affiliated with Yan
Hua Hospital

the hospital investment management agreement dated February 4, 2008,
which was supplemented in April 2008, December 2010, June 2011, July
2013, September 2013 and October 2013, and were entered into between CR
Hospital Management & Consulting, Yan Hua Hospital and Yan Hua Phoenix

the hospital management right and investment framework agreement dated
February 1, 2008 and the hospital investment management agreement dated
February 4, 2008, both of which were supplemented in April 2008, December
2010, June 2011, June 2013, July 2013, September 2013 and October 2013,
entered into by CR Hospital Management & Consulting with Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital Group

Beijing Yan Hua Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (1t R4t
EEEEEEEEAR AR, a limited liability company incorporated under the
laws of the PRC on July 18, 2005

Denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese entity is provided for identification purpose only.

“associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”, “subsidiary” and

“substantial shareholder” shall have the same meanings ascribed thereto under in the Listing Rules,
unless the context otherwise requires.
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